
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

March 25, 2025
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    

W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas
 

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact the
City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of
the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, including but not
necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations
regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power
Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations).  

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas,
as it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members of the City Council, however,
may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code.  

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

 

12:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into Executive Session.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with legal
counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on matters
in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct
conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Highland Oaks Annexation (Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code)   

 

1. 1. 2. MB3, LLC - Housing Discussion   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. Original Town Lubbock, Block 130, Lots 1-20 and Alley   

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Lake Alan Henry
Board of Appeals.

 

1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to discuss
or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body has received
from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near
the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting
economic development negotiations; and to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a
business prospect described herein above.

  

 

1. 4. 1. Central Business District   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear
in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the
City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later
than 2:00 p.m. on March 25, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to
make comments and express a position on agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. February 25, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting
March 5, 2025 Special City Council Meeting - State of the City

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without separate
discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.



5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0038, Amendment 11, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting
the 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue Capital Improvement Project in the Streets Capital Project
Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 1. 1. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Development
Agreement Contract 18627, with CRS Business Park, LLC., for the construction of a portion of 66th
Street, from I-27 to Ash Avenue.

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0039, Amendment 15, establishing the McAlister Park Playground Capital Improvement
Project in the Parks Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager
to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property insurance to include terrorism from
HDI Global Specialty, Princeton Excess & Surplus Lines Insurance and Underwriters at Lloyds,
London/Hiscox, for a limit of $50,000,000 coverage for John T. Montford Dam, for a total
premium not to exceed $266,791.91.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager
to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, layered excess liability insurance coverage
from Texas Insurance Company (41%) and Upland Specialty Insurance Company (59%), for which
the total premium amount shall not exceed $1,056,926.14.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager
to purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, excess workers’ compensation coverage from
Midwest Employer’s Casualty Company, for which the total amount shall not exceed $283,195
annually for a two-year term.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager
to execute Contract No. 18578, and related documents, for Third Party Workers' Compensation
Claims Administrator Services, by and between City of Lubbock and TRISTAR Claims
Management Services.

 

5. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0030, abandoning and
closing portions of alley right-of-way, located in Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, between 14th Street and 15th Street, west of Avenue X in Block
102.

 

5. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0040, abandoning and
closing portions of an Underground Utility Easement, located on the southwest line of Tract TT,
West Business Park Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, near the southeast
corner of Alcove Avenue and 66th Street.

 

5. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0041, abandoning and
closing portions of an Underground Street Light Cable Easement, located on the east side of Lot 19,
Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 



5. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
an Access Easement, located in Tracts 4C-4F, Huntington Business Park, City of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street.

 

5. 11. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions
of Right-of-Way, located in Section 6, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. survey, Lubbock County,
Texas, at the northeast and northwest corners of 82nd Street and Cedar Avenue.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 43, Block AK, Lubbock
County, Texas (Parcel 37), on the east side of Upland Avenue, south of 27th Street, and north of 28th
Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond
Project.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with real property located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co.
Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 22), at the southwest corner of 82nd Street and Ash
Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with real property located in Section 23, Block E-2, Lubbock County,
Texas (Parcel 52), on the south side of 114th Street, between Elkhart Avenue and Chicago Avenue,
to be utilized for the 114th Street Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 15. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Real Property
Sales Contract and Deed, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and M&M
Homes, for real property located within Lots 2-5, Block 1, Park View Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, southwest of 3rd Street and Avenue C.

 

5. 16. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Texland Petroleum, LP,
for an underground oil flow pipeline on 199.91 square feet of Right-of-Way, crossing East Municipal
Drive, east of Northeast Loop 289.

 

5. 17. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street and
Alley Use License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Texland
Petroleum, LP, for an underground pipeline for secondary recovery operations at 13 locations,
totaling 75,355 square feet of right-of-way, generally north of North Loop 289, between University
Avenue and Interstate-27.

 

5. 18. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.
1 to Design Contract 18087, and related documents, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for water
reclamation electrical replacement and monitoring at the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant.

 

5. 19. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.



5. 19. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.
3 to the Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17130, and related documents, with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for engineering services for the reconstruction of 34th Street
from Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project

 

5. 20. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No.
1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17625, and related documents, with Freese and
Nichols, Inc., for design services for Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street, which is a
portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0042, for a request for
annexation, from Thomas L. Cooke and Deidra DeAnn Williams Martin, to annex an area of
approximately 407.28 acres, adjacent to the eastern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of East
Bluefield Street and east of North Guava Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

 

5. 22. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 23105965, with Essential Equipment, Texas, LLC, in accordance with
Sourcewell Contract No. 120721-RVL, for the purchase of sewer line camera inspection equipment
to verify sewer tap locations and pipe condition.

 

5. 23. Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Consider a resolution authorizing the mayor to
execute Purchase Order 23105947, with James, Cook, Hobson, to purchase two submersible pumps
for use at Lift Station 48 at the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant.

 

5. 24. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to the Department of State Health Services Contract No. HHS001331300015, and
all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas Department of
State Health Services, under the Immunization Local Grant Program, to prevent and control the
transmission of vaccine-preventable diseases in children and adults.

 

5. 25. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Professional Services Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock
Health and Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center, to provide certain infectious disease
healthcare services to the City of Lubbock Health Department Intermediary Care Clinic.

 

5. 26. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement 18708, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock, Community Development and Lubbock Children’s Health Clinic.

 

5. 27. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Community Development Funding Contract 18723, and all related documents, with Lutheran Social
Services of the South, Inc., to provide utility assistance to qualified low-income persons and families
through the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program, administered by Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs.

 

5. 28. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement 18709, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock, Community Development and Children’s Advocacy Center, for
funding to replace the parking garage roof at 720 Texas Avenue.



 

5. 29. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 18761, with
RS&H, Inc., and Contract 18543, with Parkhill, for Architectural/Engineering Services at Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

5. 30. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 18651, with
FMG Construction Group, LLC, for Second Floor Renovations at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

5. 31. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution confirming that the City of Lubbock has
no objection to the proposed 4% Non-Competitive Housing Tax Credit application to be submitted to
the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the Hillcrest Manor Apartments,
located at 1102 North Memphis Avenue in Lubbock, Texas. 

 

5. 32. Resolution - Human Resources: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Plan
Document for the existing Health Reimbursement Arrangement, for the purpose of allowing retirees
to obtain reimbursement of eligible medical expenses incurred by the retiree and their family
members.

 

5. 33. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement, Contract 18678, with Parkhill, to provide Engineering and
Design Services for a new pump station and irrigation system at the Lubbock Cemetery.

 

5. 34. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18669, with SRH Landscapes LLC, for landscape maintenance services for the City of
Lubbock facilities.

 

5. 35. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18399, with Reeder Landscape, for landscape maintenance services for the City of Lubbock
Streetscapes, Medians, Turnarounds, and Rights-of-Way.

 

5. 36. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
10028284, with Angel Armor, LLC, for the purchase of ballistic vests with load-bearing carriers for
the Lubbock Police Department. 

 

5. 37. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
10028285, with GT Distributors, Inc., for the purchase of Glock service pistols for the Lubbock
Police Department. 

 

5. 38. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
10028288, with SSD International Inc., for the purchase of ammunition for the Lubbock Police
Department.

 

5. 39. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 2 to American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding
Agreement No. 16514, to alter the payout agreement for the previously approved funding.  

 



6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 1112-G, a request of
Presto Hail Lifters for Lon Miller, for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
to Auto-Urban Commercial (AC), at 2110 and 2112 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and
west of Avenue U, Felix Addition, Lot 10 and the west 37.5 feet of Lot 9, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 2. Ordinance (Single Reading) - Finance: Consider approval of an ordinance providing for the
issuance of City of Lubbock, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, in one or more series, in a principal
amount not to exceed $54,000,000, for the purpose of paying the costs of acquiring, constructing and
reconstructing street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line relocation and
traffic signalization, necessary and related storm damage facilities and the acquisition of land and
rights-of-way therefor, levying a tax in payment thereof; providing for the award of the sale thereof
in accordance with specified parameters; approving an official statement; approving execution of a
purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto. Street bond projects funded by the
2022 voter authorization include Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street, 114th Street from
Frankford Avenue to Slide Road, 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to University Avenue, and
Residential Unpaved Roadways East of I-27. Street bond projects funded by the 2024 voter
authorization include Broadway from Avenue Q to Avenue E, University Avenue from 50th Street to
Loop 289, Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street, 146th Street from University Avenue to
Avenue P, and 146th Street from Slide Road to Quaker Avenue. 

 



 AI# 13302 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 3. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or
appointments to the Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals.

Item Summary
Discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or
appointments to the Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 13324 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
February 25, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting
March 5, 2025 Special City Council Meeting - State of the City

Item Summary
February 25, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting
March 5, 2025 Special City Council Meeting - State of the City 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
2.25.2025 
3.5.2025 S State of the City 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

February 25, 2025
12:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 25th of February, 2025, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 12:30 p.m.

12:33 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.1-5.9; 5.11-5.19; 5.10; and 6.1-6.7.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 12:34 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:25 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:28 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. Luskey - Tract A

1. 1. 2. Upland Avenue Street Bond Project - 4th Street to 19th Street 

1. 1. 3. Central Business District

1. 1. 4. Baymont Inn and Suites aka Baymont by Wyndham Lubbock - Downtown Civic Center,
601 Avenue Q, Lubbock, Texas, 79401; R552750-00007-00010-000; Memorial Center BLK
7 L1A LESS SE245' X 182.91' & LESS SE 14' & 4A; SAI BHOLE-NATH HOTELS, INC.
(13705 Jones St., Lavonia, GA 30553), managed by Chetan (Chaz) Patel – (Tex. Civ. Prac.
Rem. Code Chapter 125)

1. 1. 5. Executive Inn - 4401 AVE Q LUBBOCK, TX 79412, R851000-00000-00010-000,



1. 1. 5. Executive Inn - 4401 AVE Q LUBBOCK, TX 79412, R851000-00000-00010-000,
Townhouse L1, owned by Dihenia Property Investment LLC, managed/registered agent
Arun Dihenia, Lalitaben Dihenia, Jonalyn Dihenia – (Tex. Civ. Prac. Rem. Code Chapter
125)

 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Luskey - Tract A
 
1. 2. 2. Upland Avenue Street Bond Project - 4th Street to 19th Street 
 
1. 2. 3. Central Business District
 
1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to

discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body
is conducting economic development negotiations; and to deliberate the offer of a financial or
other incentive to a business prospect described herein above.

 
1. 3. 1. Central Business District
 
 
 
2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened at 2:22 p.m.
 
2. Ceremonial Items
 
2. 1. Invocation

 
Pastor Jared Baker, Glad Tidings Church, led the invocation.

 
2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:28 p.m.
 
3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 2 of 9



3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted
on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting,
no later than 2:00 p.m. on February 25, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.
 
No one appeared to speak.

 
4. Minutes
 
4. 1. January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting    

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve the January 28, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve items 5.1-5.9 and 5.11-5.19. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0024,

Amendment 12, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Traffic
Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
5. 1. 1. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Operations: Resolution No. 2025-R0078 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Advanced Funding Agreement No. 0905-06-131, with the Texas Department of
Transportation, for the City to furnish and install vehicular and pedestrian detection equipment at
sixty traffic signals across the City. 

  

 
5. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0023, abandoning and closing

portions of private utility, drainage, and transformer pad easements located in Lots 194-237 and
Tract K-1, Solaris Estates Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, east of
Quaker Avenue and south of 126th Street. 

  

 
5. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0030 abandoning and closing

portions of alley right-of-way located in Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas, between 14th Street and 15th Street, west of Avenue X in Block 102. 

  

 
5. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0031 abandoning and closing

portions of an access easement located in Tracts 4A & 4B, Huntington Business Park, City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 3 of 9



5. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0032 abandoning and closing
an alley right-of-way located in Section 22, Block E-2, L.A. Patillo Survey, abstract No. 744,
Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street. 

5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-R0079 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deeds, and
all related documents, in connection with real property located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC
& SF Railroad Company Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcels 19 & 20), to be utilized for
the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

5. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2025-O0025, amending Chapter
39.04.014 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding the maintenance of drainage
easements.  

5. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2025-R0080 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 18600, and related documents, with Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc., for the reconstruction of 114th Street, from Indiana Avenue to University
Avenue – 22B, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

5. 9. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2025-R0081 authorizing the Mayor
to execute Contract 18655, with Fuquay, Inc., for Cured in Place Pipe for pipeline rehabilitation at
the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant. 

5. 10. Resolution - Public Works Water System Operations: Resolution No. 2025-R0087
authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order 22105397, with VWR International, LLC, for
the purchase of a 6495 Triple Quadrupole Liquid Chromatograph Mass Spectrophotometer, to
enable testing for "forever chemicals", pharmaceuticals, and unregulated contaminants in water
and wastewater.

Wood Franklin, division director of public works, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. 

Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to
approve Resolution No. 2025-R0087. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Traffic Operations: Ordinance No. 2025-O0026,
amending Section 20.05.103 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, with regard to the
establishment of school zones and speed limits. 

5. 12. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2025-R0082 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18460, with Applied Operations Security & Investigation, for armed security
guard services for Citibus. 

5. 13. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2025-R0083 authorizing the Mayor to

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 4 of 9



5. 13. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2025-R0083 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18338, with Michelin North America, Inc., for tire leasing to supply transit bus
tires for Citibus. 

5. 14. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0084 confirming that the City of
Lubbock is in support of the proposed 9% Housing Tax Credit application to be submitted to the
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the Avenue U Villas Development, to
be located at 8401 Avenue U, Lubbock, Texas.  

5. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0085 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18526, with West Texas Services, LLC, dba Tom's Tree Place, for the purchase
of gravel for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID).  

5. 16. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2025-R0086 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18465, with US Digital Designs by Honeywell, for the Zetron Fire Station
Alerting System for Lubbock Fire Rescue. 

5. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2025-O0027, for Zone Case
3515, a request of Lubbock Habitat for Humanity, for a zone change from Medium Density
Residential District (MDR) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), at 1719, 1721, 1723,
and 1725 21st Street, located south of 21st Street and east of Avenue S, McCrummen’s Second
Addition, Block 9, Lots 10, 11, 12, and 13. 

5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2025-O0028, for Zone Case
1635-B, a request of Mr. T’s Auto Sales, LLC, for a zone change from Medium Density
Residential District (MDR) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 4412 Avenue Q, located north
of 45th Street and west of Avenue Q, Syfrett Addition, Block 5, Lot 2A. 

5. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2025-O0029, for Zone Case
2538-OO, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for Yolanda Vargas, for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2210 Research
Boulevard, located south of 19th Street and west of Research Boulevard, on approximately 4.11
acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 5. 

6. Regular Agenda

6. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Declare three appointments by the Mayor to the
Lubbock Housing Authority Board of Commissioners: Toby Cecil, Vecelia Mann, Jerry Ramirez.

Courtney Paz, city secretary, read into the record the declaration of three appointments by the
Mayor to the Lubbock Housing Authority Board of Commissioners: Toby Cecil, Vecelia Mann,
Jerry Ramirez.

6. 2. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2025-R0088 accepting the City of Lubbock Annual

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 5 of 9



6. 2. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2025-R0088 accepting the City of Lubbock Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report, for Fiscal Year that ended September 30, 2024.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, answered questions from
City Council.

Jennifer Ripka, engagement partner with Weaver, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council on the FY 2023-24 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as it relates to the
audit process, engagement timeline, overview, significant risks and required communications.

Joe Jimenez, chief financial officer, gave a presentation on the FY 2023-24 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report as it relates to General Fund revenues, expenditures, fund
balance and current ratios; Enterprise Funds including water/wastewater, the airport, and
stormwater; and the City of Lubock debt profile, pensions, and investments results and gave
comments, answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2025-R0088. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2025-O0033, for Zone Case 437-C, a

request of Michael Session for Raymond and Gaynell Lemon, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) Specific Use
for a Manufactured Home Subdivision, at 2909 East Broadway, located west of David Avenue
and north of East Broadway, Flake Addition, Block 7, Lot 8.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:10 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:21 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to

approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0033. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

 
6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2025-O0034, for Zone Case 3516, a

request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Elliott Arroyo Seco, LTD., for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2415
114th Street, located east of University and south of 114th Street, on 10 acres of unplatted land
out of Block E, Section 15.
 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 6 of 9



Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:10 p.m.

Terry Holeman, with Hugo Reed and Associates, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:21 p.m.

Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to
approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0034. 

Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

NAY:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2025-O0035, for Zone Case 1794-K, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Community Christian Church, for a zone change from
High Density Residential District (HDR) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 3417 96th
Street, located north of 98th Street and west of Indiana Avenue, on 1.16 acres out of Raintree
Addition, Tract F-1.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:10 p.m.

Will Stephens, with AMD Engineering, appeared to speak in favor.

Billie Stelzer; and Marcus Hurd appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:21 p.m.

Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to
approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0035. 

Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

NAY:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

6. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2025-O0036, for Zone Case 2916-F, a
request of SK Architecture Group, LLC, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 8310 and 8314 Upland Avenue, located south of
82nd Street and west of Upland Avenue, Centerline Addition, Tracts B and C.

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 7 of 9



Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:10 p.m.

Gabriel Sanchez, with SK Architecture Group, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:21 p.m.

Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim Collins, to
approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0036. 

Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

NAY:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

6. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 3): Ordinance No. 2025-O0037, for Zone Case 3174-D, a
request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Texas District LCMS and Generator 1, LLC, for a zone
change Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and Heavy Commercial District (HC) to High
Density Residential District (HDR), at 2601, 2605, and 2615 19th Street, located west of
University Avenue and south of 19th Street, on 1.56 acres out of Ellwood Place, Block 7.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:26 p.m.

Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering; Tyler Perlmutter, with Pinecrest; Joseph Ahmadi, with
Lessard Design, Inc.; George Hardberger; and Eric Lamburt appeared to speak in favor. 

Tom Pitts; Cindy Pratas; Richard Murphy; Laurin Prather; Urs Flueckiger; Alaistair Hamilton;
Sally Conroy; Ivan Naranjo; Tai Kreidler; Holle Humphries; Roger Settler, with the Congress of
Neighborhood Associations; Kay Overly; Teresa Greer; and Cyd Seideman appeared to speak
in opposition.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 5:50 p.m.

Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, seconded by Council Member Brayden
Rose, to approve Ordinance No. 2025-O0037. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried* (Mayor Mark W. McBrayer voted "Abstain". See Article 9,
Section 15 of the City of Lubbock Charter.)

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 8 of 9



5:59 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The February 25, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
25th day of March, 2025.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting 
February 25, 2025 Page 9 of 9



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

March 5, 2025
11:30 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 5th of March, 2025,
at Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, 1501 Mac Davis Lane, Banquet Hall, Lubbock, Texas at 11:30 a.m.

11:57 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
         Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, 1501 Mac Davis Lane, Banquet Hall, Lubbock, Texas 

Present:   Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager
W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade

Absent:  Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1

1. REGULAR SESSION

1. 1. State of the City Address and Panel Discussion - concerning the Lubbock economy, economic
development, employment, core services, including but not limited to: utilities
(water, wastewater, and electricity), development and redevelopment, public safety, crime, streets and
transportation, community services, facilities, infrastructure, parks and recreation, and other modes of
delivery of governmental services; budgetary matters, and the operations, communications, programs,
and personnel of the City of Lubbock. No action will be taken by the Lubbock City Council.

Jason Cantu, with Tigris Real Estate and President of the Apartment Association, gave opening
remarks and welcomed those in attendance.

The Lubbock Police Department and Lubbock Fire Rescue Honor Guard presented the colors; the
pledges of allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Lubbock County
Commissioner Mike Dalby; Toby and Jason Burt, with BurtBoys806, performed the national anthem;
and the invocation was led by Pastor Johnson.

Mayor Mark McBrayer delivered the 43rd Annual State of the City Address and conducted a question
and answer session with the following panelists: Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Seth Herman, chief
of police; Richard Stewart, fire chief; Erik Rejino, assistant city manager; Colby VanGundy, director
of parks and recreation; and Wood Franklin, division director of public works. 

Mayor Mark McBrayer gave closing remarks. 



12:54 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The March 5, 2025 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 25th day
of March, 2025.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting 
March 5, 2025 Page 2 of 2



 AI# 13186 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget
Ordinance No. 2025-O0038, Amendment 11, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget
for municipal purposes respecting the 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue Capital
Improvement Project in the Streets Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.
  

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92903, 66th Street from I-27 to Ash
Avenue and appropriate $128,418. Funding will be from the General Fund
and Stormwater Fund.

I.

Increase the transfer from General Fund to the Streets Capital Project Fund by
$96,779, from $14,600,000 to $14,696,779.

II.

Amend the transfer from the Stormwater Fund to the Streets Capital Projects
Fund by $31,638.

III.

The purpose of this project is to improve the drainage and paving along 66th Street
from I-27 to Ash Avenue through a Development Agreement with the adjacent
landowner. 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue is designated as a collector in the
2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan. The north side of this segment of 66th Street is
fully developed and mostly occupied by the Texas Department of Transportation
and City of Lubbock facilities. A City facility is also on the southeast corner of this
segment of 66th Street. This project will increase the safety and functionality of
this segment of 66th Street.

Fiscal Impact
The funding appropriation in the amount of $128,418 will be from the General



The funding appropriation in the amount of $128,418 will be from the General
Fund and Stormwater Fund.
$96,779 will come from the General Fund and the remaining $31,638 will be from
the Stormwater Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 11 







 AI# 13181 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 1. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Development Agreement Contract 18627, with CRS Business Park, LLC., for the
construction of a portion of 66th Street, from I-27 to Ash Avenue.

Item Summary
This development agreement between the City of Lubbock and CRS Business
Park, LLC. pertains to the construction of a segment of 66th Street, extending from
I-27 to Ash Avenue. The agreement outlines the intention for all parties to
contribute financially to the project, with the developer assuming full responsibility
for the construction and completion of the roadway improvements.

The Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) for 66th Street
from I-27 to Ash Avenue is in the amount of $428,059.00. This City's contribution
in the development agreement is up to 30%, with a not-to-exceed amount of
$128,417.70.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18627 in the amount of $128,417.70, is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92903, 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18627 
Location Exhibit 



CIP 92903 - Budget Detail 





















City
 of L

ubbock

Pump Statio
n #06Texas D

epartm
ent of

Transportatio
n

In
te

rs
ta

te
 2

7

A
sh

 A
ve

Slaton Rd

66th St

Ü

66th Street Road Improvements
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,
this product is for informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-
the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property boundaries.

0 250 500 750125
US Feet

LP&L Substa
tio

n



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92903
Capital Project Name: 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                          

Agenda Items, March 25, 2025
Contract 18627 - Development Agreement with CRS Business Park, LLC 128,41

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                   128,41

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Construction of 66th Street from I-27 to Ash Avenue                                              

Remaining Appropriation                                              

Total Appropriation  $                               128,41



 AI# 13259 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget
Ordinance No. 2025-O0039, Amendment 15, establishing the McAlister Park
Playground Capital Improvement Project in the Parks Capital Project Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the
ordinance. 

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92905, McAlister Park Playground
and appropriate funding in the amount of $903,300. Funding will be the
remaining funds from the George McMahan donation.

I.

The McAlister Park Playground Capital Improvement Project will design and
install a new, inclusive playground that caters to children of various ages and
abilities. The project will feature separate play areas for 5-12 year olds and 2-5
year olds, ensuring age-appropriate equipment and activities for different
developmental stages.

Additionally, the playground will incorporate inclusive play elements and adhere
to the American with Disability Act (ADA) standards, making it accessible and
enjoyable for children of all abilities, thus promoting community engagement and
equal opportunities for recreation.

Fiscal Impact
The funding in the amount of $903,300 is the remaining funds from the George
McMahan donation.

Staff/Board Recommending



Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 15 







 AI# 13252 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing
the City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, property
insurance to include terrorism from HDI Global Specialty, Princeton Excess &
Surplus Lines Insurance and Underwriters at Lloyds, London/Hiscox, for a limit of
$50,000,000 coverage for John T. Montford Dam, for a total premium not to
exceed $266,791.91.

Item Summary
It is recommended that the City maintain a property insurance policy covering
exposures to loss at the John T. Montford Dam at Lake Alan Henry. The City has
maintained a policy since taking over the dam and reservoir ownership and
operations in 2005 from the Brazos River Authority (BRA).
 
The City's current coverage for the dam, which is based on a total insurable value
(TIV) of $90,000,000, has a limit of $50,000,000, with a $2,000,000 deductible at
a premium of $198,834. This policy includes coverage for acts of terrorism, with
the exception of domestic terrorism.
 
Zurich American Insurance Company, the City's current carrier, provided a quote
for $578,000 for the same expiring terms; however the City's broker was able to
secure another option. This option offers $50,000,000 in coverage and a
$2,000,000 deductible, based on a $92,270,600 total insurable value. This coverage
would be split equally between two carriers, HDI Global Specialty and Princeton
Excess & Surplus Lines Insurance, and includes terrorism coverage placed with
Underwriters at Lloyds, London/Hiscox, for a premium not to exceed
$266,791.91. 

Staff recommends the purchase of $50,000,000 in coverage with a $2,000,000
deductible, based on a $92,270,600 total insurable value; to be split equally
between HDI Global Specialty and Princeton Excess & Surplus Lines Insurance,



and includes terrorism placed with Underwriters at Lloyds, London/Hiscox, for a
premium not to exceed $266,791.91. This option reflects a 34.18% increase based
on the increased valuation of the dam.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage on April 1, 2025, after notification of City
Council approval. Insurance policies are issued after premiums are received from
the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is approved by the Texas
Department of Insurance as to content, and may not be modified. Current
insurance policies are available in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds for this coverage are included in the FY 2024-25 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Montford Dam reso 
Montford Dam 





 

 

John T. Montford Dam Property 
 

Named Insured: John T. Montford Dam; City of Lubbock   

P.O. Box 2000 

Lubbock, Texas 79457 

Policy Term: April 1, 2025 to April 1, 2026 

Insurance Carrier 

 

 

Coverage: 

U.S. Risk Insurance –  

Property - HDI Global Specialty | 50% Participation | AM Best Rating: A 

Property -Princeton Excess & Surplus Lines Insurance | 50% Participation | AM Best Rating: A+ 

Domestic Terrorism – Underwriters at Lloyds, London /Hiscox | AM Best Rating: A+ 

Property insurance covers your interest against direct physical loss or damage by covered 

perils to named property that you own or are required to insure. See attached schedule for 

covered locations 

 
Limit of Liability 

Limit of Liability $50,000,000 

Earthquake $10,000,000 

Flood $10,000,000 

Named Windstorm $50,000,000 

Income Coverage NCP 

Pollutant Clean-Up and Removal $25,000 

Additional Debris Removal Expenses $5,000 

Inland Marine Equipment  Included 

Total Insured Value: $92,270,600 

 
Deductibles 

All Other Perils (AOP) $2,000,000 

Earthquake $2,000,000 

Flood $2,000,000 

Named Storm $2,000,000 

Coinsurance Other – Waived% 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Premium Overview 

 

Description Expiring Premium Renewal Premium 

Dam Coverage: $263,588.00 $254,354.00 

  Surplus Lines Tax 

  Stamping Fee 

 $12,336.17 

$101.74 

   Total Annual Premium: $263,588.00 $266,791.91 

 

TRIA Included in above noted pricing 

 

 



 AI# 13253 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing
the City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, layered
excess liability insurance coverage from Texas Insurance Company (41%) and
Upland Specialty Insurance Company (59%), for which the total premium amount
shall not exceed $1,056,926.14.

Item Summary
Excess liability insurance provides additional liability limits that are in excess of
the package liability policies for the following: General liability; Auto liability;
Employment practices liability; Employee benefits liability; Law enforcement
liability; and Public Officials errors and omissions liability.
 
The City’s current layered coverage consists of; 35.714% from Texas Insurance
Company for an expiring premium of $422,928.01, and 64.286% from Upland
Specialty Insurance Company for an expiring premium of $761,280.09, for
$7,000,000 of coverage per occurrence and an aggregate limit of $14,000,000. This
program also includes additional abuse and molestation coverage as well as
pollutant coverage.
 
Staff recommends renewal of this layered coverage with Texas Insurance
Company (41%) and Upland Specialty Insurance Company (59%) for $7,000,000
of coverage per occurrence and an aggregate limit of $14,000,000, same as
expiring for a total premium not to exceed $1,056,932.14 which is a decrease of
10.75%.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage April 1, 2025, after notification of City Council
approval. Insurance policies are issued after premiums are received from the City.
The policy for the insurance coverage is approved by the Texas Department of
Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in Risk
Management.



 

Fiscal Impact
Funds for this coverage are included in the FY 2024-25 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Excess Liability reso 
Excess Liability 





 

Excess Liability  
 

 
Named Insured: City of Lubbock 

 P.O. Box 2000 

 Lubbock, Texas 79457 

Policy Term: April 1, 2025 to April 1, 2026 

 

 
Insurance  
Company: 

Layer 1 – Texas Insurance Company | AM Best Rating: A- XII 
Layer 2 – Upland Specialty Insurance Company | AM Best Rating: A- XII 

Coverage: Provides additional liability limits that are in excess of the limits provided on 
specified underlying liability policies. 

 
 

Coverage Description Limit 

Limit Per Occurrence $7,000,000 

General Aggregate $14,000,000 

Self-Insured Retention $0 

 
 

Your coverage follows the policies listed below unless otherwise noted 
 

General Liability 
Policy Number: TBD 

Insurance Carrier: Gemini Insurance Company 
Policy Term: 04/01/2025 to 04/01/2026 

Coverage Description Limit 

Each Occurrence $3,000,000 

General Aggregate $6,000,000 

 
Auto Liability 

Policy Number: TBD 
Insurance Carrier: Gemini Insurance Company 

Policy Term: 04/01/2025 to 04/01/2026 

Coverage Description Limit 

Combined Single Limit $3,000,000 

 
  



 

 
Miscellaneous Liability 

Policy Number: TBD 
Insurance Carrier: Gemini Insurance Company 

Policy Term: 04/01/202 to 04/01/2026 

Coverage Description Limit 

Cov B – Law Enforcement Activities  
$3,000,000 Each Claim 

$6,000,000 Annual Aggregate 

Cov C – Public Officials, Employment Practices and Employee Benefit 
Liability 

Claims Made Retro Date: 09/10/99-Public Officials, Employment Practices 
and Employee Benefit Liability 

$3,000,000 Each Claim 
$6,000,000 Annual Aggregate 

Limited Sexual Abuse Liability  
(Claims Made)-Retro Date 04/01/2022 *Included in Coverage C Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Each Act  
$2,000,000 Aggregate 

Pesticide or Herbicide Pollutant Liability $3,000,000 Each Occurrence 
$3,000,000 Aggregate 

Dam, Reservoir, Levee Coverage 
*(included in Coverage A Aggregate Above) 

$3,000,000 Each Occurrence 
$3,000,000 Aggregate 

  Limits above Excess of $750,000 Self Insured Retention 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Premium Overview 
Description Expiring Premium Renewal Premium 

Layer 1 – Texas Insurance Company  $422,928.01 $433,300.59 

Layer 2 – Upland Specialty  $761,280.09 $623,631.55 

Total Annual Premium: $1,184,208.10 $1,056,932.14 

 
*TRIA Included in Premium Above  



 AI# 13256 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing
the City Manager to purchase for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, excess
workers’ compensation coverage from Midwest Employer’s Casualty Company,
for which the total amount shall not exceed $283,195 annually for a two-year term.

Item Summary
The City is required by theTexas Labor Code to provide workers' compensation
benefits to all municipal employees. The City extends workers' compensation
benefits to elected officials, board members, and volunteers, to limit liability
exposure. Workers' compensation provides medical care and lost wages, on a
no-fault basis. Over the last several years, the workers’ compensation insurance
market has narrowed for municipalities, prompting staff to engage in a
comprehensive review of the program. The results of this 3-year review have
shown that it would be more cost-effective if the City transitions back to a
self-insured program.
 
The City currently has a workers’ compensation plan with Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP). The City’s current year
contribution for workers' compensation insurance totals $1,870,994. The
contribution consists of an annual premium one-time payment in the amount of
$1,770,994 plus a $100,000 annual deductible deposit. At the end of each month,
the City reimburses TMLIRP for any claims that do not meet the deductible of
$25,000.
 
The transition to self-insuring the City’s workers’ compensation program requires
us to utilize a third-party administrator for claims handling and purchase of excess
coverage. The company staff recommends the selection of Midwest Employer’s
Casualty. They will provide us with a 2-year guaranteed annual premium in the
amount of $283,195, for $1,000,000 in employer’s liability coverage, and life of
the claim in excess of the City’s self-insured retention of $750,000 per incident.



The annual projected savings of transitioning to self-insured totals $718,680 based
on current data.
  
Carriers bind coverage on April 1, 2025, after notification of City Council
approval. Insurance policies are issued after premiums are received from the City.
The policy for the insurance coverage is approved by the Texas Department of
Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in Risk
Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds for this coverage are included in the FY 2024-25 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Excess Workers' Comp Resolution 
Excess Workers' Comp Quote 





 

 

Excess Workers Compensation  
 

Named Insured: City of Lubbock and Lubbock  

P.O. Box 2000 

Lubbock, Texas 79457 

Policy Term: April 1, 2025 to April 1, 2026 

Insurance Carrier: 

 

Coverage: 

Midwest Employers Casualty Company 

 

Excess Workers Compensation  

  

 
Coverage Description Limits 

Employers Liability - Each Accident $1,000,000 

Self Insured Retention Per Occurrence/Accident $750,000 

Rating Basis $173,358,923 

Rate per $100 of Payroll 0.1663 

Length of Policy Term 1 Year 

Statutory Limits Apply Yes 

Total Estimated Premium (Annual)  $283,195* 
 

*2 Year Plan – Premium of $283,195 will be billed annually (includes TRIA) 

Premium without TRIA is annual $274,947 at a rate of .1586. 

 

Premium Overview 

 

Description Expiring Premium 
Estimated Renewal Annual 

Premium 

Excess Workers Compensation –   

$1M Limit/$750k SIR 

NEW LINE $283,195.00 

   Total Annual Premium: NEW LINE $283,195.00 

 

 

 



 AI# 13257 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing
the City Manager to execute Contract No. 18578, and related documents, for Third
Party Workers' Compensation Claims Administrator Services, by and between City
of Lubbock and TRISTAR Claims Management Services.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock has historically managed its Workers' Compensation claims
through Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP). Over
the last several years, the workers’ compensation insurance market has narrowed
for municipalities, prompting staff to engage in a comprehensive review of our
program. The results of this review revealed that it would be more cost-effective if
the City transitions to a self-insured program.

 In transitioning from our current premium/deductible plan with TML to
self-insuring our workers’ compensation program, it is imperative to engage a
Third-Party Claims Administrator (TPA). The objectives for this transition include:

Improved Claims Management: Ensuring timely and accurate processing of
claims in compliance with state laws;.
Cost Reduction: Identifying opportunities to reduce indemnity and medical
costs associated with claims;.
Enhanced Communication: Establishing clear and consistent communication
channels with injured employees and relevant parties; and
Expertise and Experience: Leveraging the TPA's knowledge to navigate
complex claims and implement best practices.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued, inviting qualified firms to submit
proposals for TPA services. The selection process encompassed a thorough review
of seven submitted proposals based on criteria such as experience, service
offerings, compliance with legal requirements, and cost-effectiveness. Reference



checks provided an insight into the performance and reliability of TRISTAR
Claims Management Services (TRISTAR).

After careful consideration, TRISTAR offers: 
Proven Expertise: TRISTAR has over thirty-eight years of experience
managing Workers' Compensation claims for municipalities, demonstrating a
deep understanding of our unique needs.
Comprehensive Services: The proposed services encompass key services such
as claims processing, legal support, return-to-work programs, etc., aligning
with our program objectives.
Competitive Pricing: The proposed fee structure offers a 3-year guaranteed
cost, ensuring fiscal responsibility. The annual pricing for TPA services with
TRISTAR includes the guaranteed 3-year base cost of $91,500 plus additional
ancillary costs.

As a strategic move to enhance the efficiency, compliance, and cost-effectiveness
of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program, staff recommends contracting with
TRISTAR Claims Management Services.

Fiscal Impact
Funds for this contract are included in the FY 2024-25 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Workers' Comp TPA Resolution 





 AI# 13227 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0030,
abandoning and closing portions of alley right-of-way, located in Block 102,
Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, between 14th
Street and 15th Street, west of Avenue X in Block 102.

Item Summary
On February 25, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close portions of the
alley running east and west between 14th and 15th Streets, west of Avenue X in
Block 102, Overton Addition on behalf of Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7, LLC.
 
Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7, LLC is closing the alley to accommodate a
proposed student housing building, and they have dedicated a new alley in order to
re-route the utilities from the alley closure.
 
The total area of the alley being closed is 7,002 square feet. The proponent gets
credit for the dedication of a new alley with an area of 3,084 square feet. The net
area subject to the closure fee is 3,918 square feet. Based on adjacent land values,
the Right-of-Way Department valued the closure at $2.50 per square foot, for a
total of $9,795.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
$9,795.00 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance Alley Closure Overton,Blk102 
20203-08-09_Alley Closure Description and Exhibit 
GIS Map Alley Closure Overton,Blk102 







 

Page 1 of 2   Texas Registered Surveying Firm # 10194091 

 

ALLEY CLOSURE IN BLOCK 102, 
OVERTON ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

An alley closure in Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to 
the map, plat, and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 18, Page 610 of the Deed Records of 
Lubbock County, Texas, said alley closure contains 7,002 square feet being further described by metes and 
bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the west 
right-of-way line of Avenue X, dedicated with said plat of Overton Addition, in the east line of said Block 102, 
at the southeast corner of Lot 1 of said Block 102, for the northeast corner of this alley closure, said 
beginning point having coordinates of NORTHING: 7,275,015.68 and EASTING: 942,820.26, Texas 
Coordinate System, North Central Zone 4202, North American Datum of 1983, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod 
with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found at the northeast corner of said Block 102 bears 
North 01 degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds East a distance of 127.35 feet; 
 
(1) THENCE South 01 degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds West, along the west line of said Avenue X, a 
distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the 
east line of said Block 102, at the northeast corner of Lot 24 of said Block 102, for the southeast corner of 
this alley closure, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod found at the southeast corner of said Block 102 bears South 01 
degrees 42 minutes 55 seconds West a distance of 127.35 feet; 
 
(2) THENCE North 88 degrees 19 minutes 35 seconds West, along the south line of said alley dedicated 
with said plat of Overton Addition, a distance of 350.08 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod with a plastic cap marked 
“PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found at the north common corner of Lot 17 and Lot 18 of said Block 102 for the 
southwest corner of this alley closure; 
 
(3) THENCE North 01 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch iron rod 
with a plastic cap marked “PARKHILL RPLS 6453” found in the north line of said alley dedicated with said 
plat of Overton Addition, at the south common corner of Lot 7 and Lot 8 of said Block 102, for the northwest 
corner of this alley closure, whence a 1/2-inch iron rod with an orange plastic cap found at the north 
common corner of said Lot 7 and Lot 8 bears North 01 degrees 43 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 
127.52 feet; 
 
(4) THENCE South 88 degrees 19 minutes 35 seconds East, along the north line of said alley, a distance of 
350.08 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings called in this description are based on the Texas 
Coordinate System, North Zone 4201, North American Datum of 1983. Distances called in this description 
are at surface. Areas reported hereon are based on calculations made from surface distances. This survey 
is subject to any facts which may be disclosed by a full and accurate title search. Record documents other 
than those shown may affect this tract. A plat of this survey accompanies this description on Page 2. 
 
Surveyed on the ground: April 27, 2023 
Signed: August 09, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Samuel Wyatt 
R.P.L.S. 6453 

SAMUEL WYATT

6453

L

A

N

D

 

S

UR

V

E

Y

O

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

O
F

 

T

E

X

A

S

R

E

G

I

S
T

E

R

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L



Parkhill.com

TBPELS FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194091

AN ALLEY CLOSURE IN
BLOCK 102,

OVERTON ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

“ ”

http://www.parkhill.com/


1614

12

17

18

9

1011

14 18
B

11

17

710 8

79

12

1615

8

13

1513

18
A

2315

6

20

12

2414

24

22

21

10

3

1716

11

2414

7

13

12

11 510

19 21

13 22

5 4

1817

19

9

15 23

8

16

7 6

8

19

3

20

18

12

102 82

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Partial Alley Closure in
Block 102,Overton Addition,

Located Within the Southwest Portion of Block 2, Section O

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

OVERTON

LUBBOCK

IN
TERNATIO

NAL AIR
PORT

15TH ST

A
V

E 
X

BROADWAY

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

OVERTON

OVERTON

OVERTON

0 250 500125
Feet

Proposed Portion of Alley to be Closed
~7005.58 sq ft

OVERTON

OVERTON

OVERTON

HANKIN
S

15TH ST

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E
MAIN ST

14TH ST

15TH ST

16TH ST

17TH ST

18TH ST

A
V

E 
X

A
V

E 
W



 AI# 13274 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0040,
abandoning and closing portions of an Underground Utility Easement, located on
the southwest line of Tract TT, West Business Park Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, near the southeast corner of Alcove Avenue
and 66th Street.

Item Summary
On March 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close an
underground utility easement located between Tracts SS & TT in West Business
Park near the southeast corner of Alcove Avenue and 66th Street, on behalf
Centerline Engineering.
 
Centerline is closing the Underground Utility Easement and will combine the two
tracts and re-plat as Tract SS-1. This closure will be recorded prior to the re-plat.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments



Ordinance - West Business Park 
Exhibit A - West. Bus. Pk. m&b 
West. Bus. Pk. GIS map 







181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"


181649
Rectangle Sketch to Scale
743.05 sf





 AI# 13293 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0041,
abandoning and closing portions of an Underground Street Light Cable Easement,
located on the east side of Lot 19, Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
On March 11, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request from Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7,
LLC, to abandon and close an Underground Street Light Cable Easement running
north-south on the east side of Lot 19 in Block 102, Overton. The total area of the
easement being closed is 255 square feet.
 
Lubbock 2413 Properties is closing the easement to accommodate a student
housing project.  
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance Easement Closure Overton,Lot 19, Blk102 



Easement Closure Application-22197 
GIS Map Easement Closure Overton,Blk102, Lot 19 







 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 

APPLICATION FOR ABANDON & CLOSE THE USE OF PUBLIC 

RIGHT-OF-WAY  

 

APPLICANT: (note: Applicant’s name should be the correct name of the person, firm or 

corporation) 

 __________________________________________________________________________            

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ADDRESS: 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUIREMENTS:         1. Letter requesting Closure 

                                            2. Name and Address of Abutting Property Owners 

        3. Approval of Abutting Property Owners by Signature 

            (Written letter from each Property owner) 

             4. Preliminary Plat Filed with Planning Department 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE 
COVERED BY THE ORDINANCE TO ABANDON A CLOSURE: 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

PROPOSED USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY: 

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

This application shall be accompanied by such reproducible drawings or plans and 

specifications as are necessary to accurately show the exact locations, size and details of the 

proposed use of Public Right-of-Way. Also a one-time non-refundable application fee 

$500.00 is required to accompany this application. 

The issuance or granting of the closure shall not be constructed to be waiver of, or an 

approval of, any violation of any of the provisions of any applicable City Ordinances unless 

specifically authorized by the City Council. 

 

 
Date: _________________         ___________________________________________ 
                                                               Applicant/Authorized Representative’s Signature 

 _________ 

 

 

 

Johna Anthony, Parkhill

4222 85th Street, Lubbock, Texas 79423

Easement Closure to allow for construction of student housing facility and parking
garage, and removal of street light and associated power supply.

03/03/2025

The East 2.00 feet of Lot 19, Bock 102, Overton Addition to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas.

181649
Text Box
Exhibit "A"



 

  

March 3, 2025 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Mr. Jernberg 

Right-of-way Agent 

City of Lubbock 

1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, Texas 79401 

 

Re:  

 

Dear Mr. Jernberg: 

 

On behalf of Lubbock 2413 Properties KP7, LLC, please accept this letter as a request to close the Underground 

Street Light Cable Easement located at the East 2.00 feet of Lot 19, Block 102, Overton Addition to the City of 

Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. A student housing facility with parking garage is planned for Lots 1-7 and 17-

24. The existing street light that this easement serves will be removed, negating the necessity for this easement.  

 
Sincerely, 
 
PARKHILL  
 
 
 
By   

Johna Anthony, P.E 
Civil Engineer 

 
 
 





 AI# 13307 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and
closing portions of an Access Easement, located in Tracts 4C-4F, Huntington
Business Park, City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner
of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of an
access easement in Tracts 4C-4F in Huntington Business Park, at the southeast
corner of Indiana Avenue and 122nd Street, on behalf of Centerline Engineering.
 
Centerline is closing portions of the Access Easement to create additional
buildable area.

All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Huntington Business Park, Tr. 4C- 4F - Ordinance 
Huntington Bus. Pk. Tr. 4C-4F, m&b 
Huntington Business Park, Tr. 4C- 4F - GIS map 







181649
Text Box
Exhibit "A"




7A1
6A

10

9

11

TR 4E

TR 4A

TR 4F

TR 4D

TR 4C

TR 4B

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Partial Closure of an Access Easement (2024038882)
Located in Tracts 4C - 4F of Huntington Business Park,

Section 21, Block E2

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

122ND ST

JO
LI

ET
 A

V
E

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

IT
H

A
C

A
 A

V
E

Portion of Access Easement
to be Closed

8,401 sq ft

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

122ND ST

HUNTIN
GTON

BUSIN
ESS

PARK124TH ST G
EN

EV
A

 A
V

E

Portion of Access Easement
to Remain Open

~6,575 sq ft

125TH ST

126TH ST

125TH ST

JO
RD

A
N

 A
V

E

BELLA M
IA

ESTATES
HATTON

PLACE

SECOND COOPER

MID
DLE SCHOOL

CREST AT

COOPER

COOPER

PLAZA

COSTA

HUNTIN
GTON

BUSIN
ESS PARK

THE

RANGE



 AI# 13308 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and
closing portions of Right-of-Way, located in Section 6, Block E, of the GC & SF
R.R. Co. survey, Lubbock County, Texas, at the northeast and northwest corners of
82nd Street and Cedar Avenue.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock obtained excess right-of-way (ROW) on 82nd Street, with the
platting of the Antioch Baptist Church and EWJ subdivisions. With the design of
the 82nd Street improvements, it was determined that this ROW is surplus, and the
City will abandon and close the ROW at the northeast and northwest corners of
82nd Street and Cedar Avenue.
 
The total area of the ROW being closed is 1,045 and 7,117 square feet
respectively. The land will revert to the adjacent landowners.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the
closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Section 6, Block E, Closure 
13308_301_E_82ND_STREET_-_SURPLUS_ROW_EXHIBIT (rs) 



13308_111_E_82ND_STREET_-_SURPLUS_ROW_EXHIBIT (rs) 
GIS map - EWJ 301 E 82ndSt 
GIS Map 82nd St. Antioch Baptist Church 





















UNSUBDIVIDED

1 2 3 4

1 1
20

1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of Right of Way
Located in Section 6, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

A
SH

 A
V

E

A
SH

 A
V

E

D
A

TE
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
B

Proposed Closure of ROW
7,117 sq ft

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

E 82ND ST

ROBBIE

MARIO
N HEIG

HTS79TH ST

C
ED

A
R 

A
V

E

80TH ST

E 82ND ST

A
V

E 
D

WORTMAN

MARTIN
-AMEEN

Antio
ch

Baptist

Church

DIN
GUS

C
ED

A
R 

A
V

E

EL
M

 A
V

E



 AI# 13304 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and
Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 43, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 37), on
the east side of Upland Avenue, south of 27th Street, and north of 28th Street, to be
utilized for the Upland Avenue Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond
Project.

Item Summary
Jim and Karen Duncan are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be
utilized for roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 19th Street to 34th
Street Capital Improvements Bond Project, on the east side of Upland Avenue,
south of 27th Street, and north of 28th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 7,752 square feet tract of land for street
right-of-way purposes, subject to final approval by the City Council and approval
of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $9,772 plus closing costs. This acquisition is
funded in Capital Improvements Project 92816, Upland Avenue: 19th Street to
34th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments



Parcel 37 - Resolution 
Parcel 37 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 37 - GIS Map 
CIP 92816 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92816 - Project Detail 













1199

798807

820
1207

1185

774

1187

796

1186

823

790

779

804

1191

794

801

772780

815 821

1A

799

789
1189

791

819

1197

795

802

1183

1205

805

1200
1190

776

1184

778

1192

822

1204

777

1198

800

817

797

803

1B

792

1202

818

1206

788

816

1201

1208

793

1188

775

1203

781 773

806

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 43 Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
7,752 sq ft

29TH ST

26TH ST

25TH ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

PARKDALE

LYNCH

TU
RN

ER
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

27TH ST

28TH ST

LYNCH

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G

PIN
E HILLS

BUSHLAND SPRIN
GS

UPLAND CROSSIN
G PIN

E

HILLS

28TH ST

30TH ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

24TH ST

N
 G

LO
BE

 A
V

E

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

28TH ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 P

L

30TH ST

31ST ST31ST ST V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

E

28TH ST

SA
RA

TO
G

A
 A

V
E

TI
FF

IN
 A

V
E

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

E

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock Staff Time 4,912

Contract 17636 -with Halff Associates, Inc. for Design Services 1,280,700

Agenda Items, March 25, 2025

Parcel 37 - Land Acquisition 9,772

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,295,384                                  

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Upland Avenue: 19th St to 34th St - 22B Construction 13,404,616                                

Remaining Appropriation 13,404,616                                

Total Appropriation 14,700,000$                              

Upland Avenue from 19th Street to 34th Street - 22B

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

March 25, 2025

92816



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 19th Street to 34th Street is currently a two-lane paved road and is designated in
the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a five-lane Principal Arterial (Modified). Continued
growth in west Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the Upland Avenue corridor from 19th
Street to 34th Street. This thoroughfare will include the ultimate design of a five-lane undivided
thoroughfare with curb and gutter, drainage, streetlights, sidewalk improvements, utility adjustment and
right of way acquisition services.

Project Justification

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety, Community Improvement, and
Growth and Development

FY 2023-24 $3,200,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $11,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0128

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 10/2023
Design Completion: 05/2025
Bid for Constuction:09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2027

Upland Ave - 19th to 34th St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Design $3,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $14,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $14,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $14,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92816CIP 92816 Upland Ave: 19th St to 34th St - Upland Ave: 19th St to 34th St -
22B22B

Bond Election Project – 2022Bond Election Project – 2022

Project Manager: Kerry Koehler - EngineeringProject Manager: Kerry Koehler - Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13309 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and
Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in connection with real property
located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County,
Texas (Parcel 22), at the southwest corner of 82nd Street and Ash Avenue, to be
utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., the
following street dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Paul J.
Hodges, a single person, is dedicating right-of-way at the southwest corner of 82nd
Street and Ash Avenue to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 15,805 square feet of land for street right-of-way
purposes, for $54,999, plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $54,999, plus closing costs, and is funded in
Capital Improvements Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
P22 - Resolution 
P22_Deed_Signed 
P22 - GIS map 



CIP 92825) - Budget Detail 
CIP92825 - Project Detail 

















City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: Street Bond 82nd and MLK - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 18,53
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,87
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,00
Parcel 30 Land Purchase                                   128,54
Parcel 17 Land Purchase                                          50
Parcel 16 Land Purchase                                          50
Parcel 34 Land Purchase                                     59,21
Parcel 10 Land Purchase                                       2,80
Parcel 28 Land Purchase                                     80,41
Parcel 35 Land Purchase                                     35,00
Parcel 33 Land Purchase                                     99,90
Parcel 1 Land Purchase                                     45,77
Amendment 1 to Contract 17088                                               -
Parcel 2 Land Purchase                                          500
Parcel 23 Land Purchase                                     35,335
Parcel 29 Land Purchase                                   295,24
Parcel 3 Land Purchase                                          500
Parcel 4 Land Purchase                                       2,000
Parcel 32 Land Purchase                                   234,377
Parcel 21 Land Purchase                                     18,926
Parcel 26 Land Purchase                                     39,999
Parcel 27 Land Purchase                                     19,999
Parcel 19 Land Purchase                                     49,317
Parcel 20 Land Purchase                                       6,854

Agenda Items, March 25th, 2025
Parcel 22 Land Purchase                                     54,999

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                5,354,10

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                   345,89

Remaining Appropriation                                   345,89

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,00



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justification

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 13311 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and
Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in connection with real property
located in Section 23, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 52), on the south
side of 114th Street, between Elkhart Avenue and Chicago Avenue, to be utilized
for the 114th Street Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 114th Street from Frankford Avenue to Slide Road, the
following street dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Chester
M. Bradford and Deanna D. Bradford, husband and wife, are dedicating
right-of-way on the south side of 114th Street, between Elkhart Avenue and
Chicago Avenue, to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 876 square feet of land for street right-of-way
purposes, for $2,628 plus $6,520 for cost to cure items, for a total of $9,148 plus
closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $9,148, plus closing costs, and is funded in
Capital Improvements Project 92820, Street Bond 114th Street: Frankford Avenue
to Slide Road – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments



Resolution_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305 
Deed_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305 
GIS map_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305 
CIP 92820 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92820 - Project Detail 









TR ETR C

TR I

TR JTR I

TR F

TR H

TR H TR J

TR FTR A

TR G

TR B TR GTR D

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 21 Block E-2

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
876 sq ft

116TH ST

110TH ST

SPRIN
GFIELD

EL
K

H
A

RT
 A

V
E

114TH ST

STONEWOOD

OFFIC
E PARK

114TH & ELKHART

OFFIC
E PARK

CIR
CLE K

FRANKFORD

& 114TH

SPRIN
GFIELD

STONEWOOD

ESTATES

ABBEY GLEN

114TH ST

115TH ST

111TH ST

D
U

RA
N

T 
A

V
E

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

EL
K

H
A

RT
 A

V
E

117TH ST

113TH ST

EV
A

N
ST

O
N

 A
V

E

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

A
TL

A
N

TA
 A

V
E

112TH ST

112TH ST



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92820
Capital Project Name: 114th Street: Frankford Ave to Slide Road - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17632 with KHA for Design Services                   1,242,700
Staff Time                        18,570

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
ROW Acquisition, Parcel 52                          9,148

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   1,270,418

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
114th Street: Frankford to Slide - 22B Construction                 14,729,582

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $             16,000,000



�����

����	
���
��	��	����������	��	���	����	�����
	���
������
�	����	��	������	�	������� 	����
	�
��
���!	"��
�#������	
���

����	��	����	��	���	������
���	��������	��	
���	��	���	��
���	��������	���	���	�
������!

	$����%������

&�	'�#����
	�(	����(	)�����*	#���
�	���
�#��	��������	��	�	+���	�������	��
���	���
�#������	����

���*���	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�#�����	��
������	������	���
�#������!	���	�������	
���	��,��
�(

�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	���
�#������(	���������	���	���	�������	��	����
��*�(	�������	����


����������	���	�
�����	�������-�����(	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	�
������	����������(	���	���

��,��������	��	����	���	
���������
��	��
	���	����	
����	����������!

	.��������� .����
�

/0	���1��2	+�(���(���	
��	���
��
�����	��

&
�!	���1�&����

/0	���2���	+�1(���(���	
��	���
��
�����	��

&
�!	���2�&����

	3���� 	)�������

3�����	���
�	3���4	��5���1

3�����	6���������4	��5���2

7��	��
	6����������4��5���2

8
�
�	6����
������4	��5���2

�
�9���	6���������4	�:5���:

��2��	��	�	/
��*��
�	8#�	��	�����	;�

	8��
��
�������

<==>?=>@AB@?CDB?DEABF GHGIDJDGKDLMNOFB GHGKDJDGPDLMNOFB GHGPDJDGQDLMNOFB GHGQDJDGRDLMNOFB GHGRDJDGSDLMNOFB GHGSDJDTHDLMNOFB

EFU@OC VWXWYYXYYY VY VY VY VY VY VY

Z?CUB>M[B@?C VY V\]X̂YYXYYY VY VY VY VY VY

_̀ _<a bGcGHHcHHH bdTcRHHcHHH bH bH bH bH bH

	/������

eMCN@CODB?DEABF GHGIDJDGKDLMNOFB GHGKDJDGPDLMNOFB GHGPDJDGQDLMNOFB GHGQDJDGRDLMNOFB GHGRDJDGSDLMNOFB GHGSDJDTHDLMNOFB

fFCF>AgD̀hg@OAB@?CDL?CNU VWXWYYXYYY V\]X̂YYXYYY VY VY VY VY VY

_̀ _<a bGcGHHcHHH bdTcRHHcHHH bH bH bH bH bH

7�����	"������

EFU[>@=B@?C GHGIJGK GHGKJGP GHGPJGQ GHGQJGR GHGRJGS GHGSJTH _?BAg

i?Djk=A[BD<CB@[@=ABFN VY VY VY VY VY VY VY

_̀ _<a bH bH bH bH bH bH bH

'�
	;���
��	"��
���
����
�

lmnopoqrosntuvwxyz{|n}~�|vynx{�n�xuzyx�n�w�|wx�nrn��s



 AI# 13312 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Real Property Sales Contract and Deed, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock and M&M Homes, for real property located
within Lots 2-5, Block 1, Park View Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, southwest of 3rd Street and Avenue C.

Item Summary
On May 29, 2024, Lowery Property Advisors, LLC appraised the vacant tract of
land located southwest of 3rd Street and Avenue C, with a value of $8,000. The
property was put out to public bid. M&M Homes of Lubbock, Texas was the sole
bidder, with a bid for this property of $10,000 plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
Revenue of $10,000 to the General Fund in Account 100.7107, Sale of Other Land

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Sales Contract & Deed, M&M Homes 
Sales Contract & Deed, M&M Homes 
GIS Map Parkview, M&M Homes 































20

2

19

3

1

1

3
1

2

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Sale of Three Properties
Located within Section 79, Block A

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Sale of Three Properties
~10,840.47 sq ft

WHEELOCK'S

3RD ST

3RD ST

FLYIN
G J

TRAVEL

PLAZA

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

WATSON SYSCO

0 100 200 300 400 50050
Feet

CESAR CHAVEZ DR
BU

D
D

Y
 H

O
LL

Y
 A

V
E

PARK VIEW

IN
TERSTA

TE 27  US 87

PARKWAY DR

LIFE

SANDERS

MARSHA SHARP FWY  US 82

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 2

7 
 U

S 
87

5TH ST

A
V

E 
G

PARKVIEW

TRADER'S

DEPOT

IN
TERSTA

TE 27  US 87

6TH ST

A
V

E 
F

A
V

E 
C



 AI# 13313 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Street Use License, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Texland Petroleum, LP, for an underground oil flow pipeline on
199.91 square feet of Right-of-Way, crossing East Municipal Drive, east of
Northeast Loop 289.

Item Summary
Frank Kyle, President, on behalf of Texland Petroleum, is requesting the renewal
of a Street Use License, for the purpose of an underground oil flow pipeline on
199.91 square feet of Right-of-Way crossing E. Municipal Drive, east of NE Loop
289.
 
The term of the license is for 20 years payable every 5 years in advance, and each
successive 5-year term not to exceed 20 years, unless either party gives written
notice of termination to the other party. The license fee for each five-year period is
$500 paid in advance, pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$500 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Texland, Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park 
Street Use License - Texland, Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park 
GIS map Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park 



















UNSUBDIVIDED

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Use License
Located in Section 5, Block A

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

NE LOOP 289

Proposed Street Use License
~199.91 sq ft

E MUNICIPAL D
R

ALLAN

IN
DUSTRIA

L

PARK

E MUNICIPAL D
R

ALLAN

IN
DUSTRIA

L

PARK

0 400 800 1,200 1,600 2,000200
Feet



 AI# 13314 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Street and Alley Use License, and related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock and Texland Petroleum, LP, for an underground pipeline for
secondary recovery operations at 13 locations, totaling 75,355 square feet of
right-of-way, generally north of North Loop 289, between University Avenue and
Interstate-27.

Item Summary
Frank Kyle, President, on behalf of Texland Petroleum, is requesting the renewal
of a Street and Alley Use License, for the purpose of an underground pipeline for
secondary recovery operations, at 13 locations totaling 75,355 square feet of
right-of-way, as shown on Exhibit “A” and the accompanying maps which are
attached, generally north of North Loop 289, between University Avenue and I-27.
 
The term of the license is for 20 years, payable every 5 years in advance, and each
successive 5-year term not to exceed 20 years, unless either party gives written
notice of termination to the other party. The license fee for each 5-year period is
$8,139, paid in advance, pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$8,139 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Texland Street and Alley Use License 



Street and Alley Use License - TEXLAND 





































 AI# 13290 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Design Contract 18087, and related documents, with Freese
and Nichols, Inc., for water reclamation electrical replacement and monitoring at
the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant.

Item Summary
The Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP) headworks building wiring and
Motor Control Center (MCC) 100, are over 30 years old. The current electrical
components that run the headworks pumps, screens, grit removal, and odor
control, etc., are outdated and need to be replaced. Replacement parts are no longer
readily available. Monitoring is also needed to monitor electrical power to ensure
that electrical power is steady, and if an anomaly is detected, the problem can be
traced back to the source to prevent catastrophic failure of equipment. This project
is necessary in order to keep the SEWRP in compliance with current electrical
codes and meeting the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ)
wastewater permit requirements.
 
Amendment No. 1 is for the extension of Contract 18087, due to long lead times
for the acquisition of pre-purchased equipment, as well as retaining the current
engineer up to the proposed construction phase.

Staff recommends approval of this time-only amendment, with a contract time of
12 months.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 is for the extension of time only, so there is no fiscal impact
associated with Capital Improvements Project 92843, Water Reclamation Electrical
Replacement and Monitoring.

Staff/Board Recommending



Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Freese and Nichols, Inc. Amendment 1 
Amendment 1 Contract 
Original Contract 
Council Map 
CIP 02843 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92843 - Project Detail 





Page 1 of 2 
 

Amendment 1 

To Agreement Between 

The City of Lubbock, TX 

And 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

 

 

 

THIS IS THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT dated and entered into on the 11th day of 

June, 2024, Contract No. 18087, by and between the City of Lubbock (“City”) and Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

(“Engineer”), collectively (the “Parties”). 

Engineer is providing professional services for water reclamation electrical replacement and monitoring 

(the “Activities”). 

In order to complete the Activities herein, equipment must be purchased which requires a significant 

amount of lead time to acquire.  The Parties now agree to add time for the Engineer to complete Activities 

considering the time to obtain said equipment. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this amendment and agree as follows: 

An additional twelve (12) months shall be added to the term of the Agreement for the Engineer to complete 

the Activities herein agreed. 

All other terms of the agreement remain the same and are not altered herein. 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this ____ day of 

_____________2025. 

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK    Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

 

___________________________  _________________________________ 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR  Jeffrey Hensley, P.E.     

 

   

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Resolution No. 2024- R0285

Item No. 5. 12

June 11, 2024

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fc
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 18087 fc
water reclamation electrical replacement and monitoring by and between the City of Lubbock an
Freese and Nichols, Inc., and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporate

in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Counci

Passed by the City Council on June 11, 2024

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslRES. PSA- No. 18087 FNI water reclamation electrical replacement

5. 21. 24

Vu1 11Ly raG, V y JGL C a y



Resolution No. 2024- R0285

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (" AgreemenY') Contract No. 18087 is entered into this 11 th

day of June , 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock ( the " City"), a Texas home rule

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, Inc., ( the" Engineer"), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for

Water Reclamation Electrical Replacement and Monitoring ,( the " Activities"); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defned below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 270 days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to

an additional six ( 6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved

by the City acting through its governing body. 

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

A", attached hereto ( the " Services") 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $ 234, 461, as set forth in Exhibit " B". 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/ or provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/ or injunctive relie£ The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

Page 2 of 11



C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby. 

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer' s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit " A", attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/ or

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer' s employees and/ or sub- consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIII. [ NSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub- 

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best' s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

General Aggregate Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $ 1, 000,000 Per Occurrence

Employer' s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

Worker' s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 500, 000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub- consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub- consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage. 

Page 4 of 11



The Certificate shall provide 30 days' notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker' s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas

Labor Code. Eurther, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker' s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer' s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period ( possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/ RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties ( any of which are

referred to herein as " Sub- consultanY'), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit [ insert

correct value], attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub- 

consultants. The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this

Agreement and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage

of any approved Sub- consultant. Any agent and/ or Sub- consultant retained and/ or employed by the

Engineer shall be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the

Engineer and naming said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be

carried by the Engineer in this Agreement. 

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/ or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City' s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

Page 5 of 11



ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFIC[ ALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY' S FEES, FOR 1NNRY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INNRY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/ OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/ OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand ( in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); ( 2) facsimile ( in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or ( 3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B. Engineer' s Address. The Engineer' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

Jeffrey Hensley
801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Forth Worth, Texas 76102

Telephone: 817- 735- 7369

Email: Jeff. Hensley@freese. com

C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Page 6 of 11



James Dean

City of Lubbock
P. O. Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Telephone: 806- 775- 3254

Email: jdean@mylubbock.us

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 1 Sth day

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY- PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer' s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer' s Services under

this Agreement ( the " Provided Data"). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer' s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

Page 7 of 11



F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/ or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits "A" through " B" attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party' s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

Page 8 of 11



N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non- appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then- 

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then- current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first ( the " Non- Appropriation Date"). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

thirty ( 30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non- Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252. 152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identifed by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271. 002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: ( 1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. ( b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verifcation from the company that it: ( 1) does

not boycott Israel; and ( 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: ( 1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or ( 2) the verification required by

Section 2274. 002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company

with ] 0 or more full- time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: ( 1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the

contract, boycott energy companies or ( 2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas

Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full- time

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental
Page 9 of 11



entity' s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incunence, or management of debt

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: ( 1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; ( 2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and ( 3) on completion of the contract, either: 

A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

Page 10 of 11



EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

i

TRAY PAY ., M YOR

Michael G. Keenum, Division Director of EngineeringlCity Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

K lli Lei ure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Firm

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

C) `, _ Q 
j i . 

By: 
Jeffrey Hensley

Email: Jeff.Hensley@freese. com

Page 11 of 11



www. trecse. com

April 26, 2024

James Dean, P. E. 

Civil Engineer, Capital Projects and Design

City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79401

Re: MCC- 100 Replacement at SEWRP Headworks

Dear Mr. Dean: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. ( FNI) is pleased to submit the proposal for providing professional engineering
services to the City of Lubbock for the pre- purchase of the 480V MCC- 100, replacement of the 480V
MCC- 100, and also the replacement of miscellaneous instrumentation at the SEWRP Headworks

Building. 

Refer to the attachments for detailed information on the scope of work. 

Professional Services Fee: 

The attached scope of services are to be completed for a fee not to exceed $ 234, 461. 

If additional information or clarification is required, please do not hesitate to contact us. We look

forward to working with you on this project. 

Sincerely, 

P""' ' — 

Jeffrey N. Hensley, P. E. 

Attachments: 

Exhibit A, Parts 1, 2& 3

Exhibit B, Parts 1& 2

Project Schedule

Detailed Hours

801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800 + Fort Worth, Texas 76102 + 817- 735- 7300 + FAX 817-735- 7491



EXHIBIT A, PART 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR: 

MCC- 100 REPLACEMENT AT SEWRP HEADWORKS

ENG[ NEERING DESIGN SERVICES

ARTICLE I

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The City of Lubbock ( Owner) is proceeding with the replacement of the
480V Motor Control Center ( MCC), MCC- 100, and other electrical and instrumentation upgrades at the

Headworks Building at the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant. The design will include the following: 

1. Preparation of pre-purchase package for 480V MCC- 100

2. Replacement of the 480V MCC, MCC- ] 00 and associated cable and conduit

3. Replacement of one 480V 1201240V, dry type transformer

4. Replacement of two low voltage panelboards

5. Replacement of flow meters ( total of 3) 

6. Replacement of level transmitters ( total of 6) 

7. Replacement of lighting in the Electrical Room

8. Replacement of inedium voltage fuses in primary unit substations 1TL3 and 2TL3

A. This Project includes the following services: 

1. Project Management

2. Preparation of Pre- Purchase Package for 480V MCC- 100

3. Final Design

4. Bid Phase Services

B. Project does not include the following services: 

1. Use of collaborative project delivery (CMAR or design-build). 

2. General Representation and Resident Project Representation. 

3. Construction phase services including submittal reviews, site visits, answering Request For
Information ( RFI), and involvement of change orders or contract modifications. 

BASIC SERVICES: FNI shall render the following professional services in connection with the development
of the Project: 

A. TASK 1- PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Upon execution of this Agreement, FNI shall: 

1. Conduct kickoff ineeting to review scope, schedule, and budget; determine any special conditions

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 1  P a g e



that may affect the studies; discuss administrative requirements of Owner; and to discuss and
special items as part of the electrical assessment. 

2. Manage efforts of internal team and sub- consultants on the Project and perform Quality Control
review of all deliverables. 

3. Prepare meeting agendas and minutes and attend the following meetings: 

a. Attend up to ten ( 10) monthly project coordination meetings with Owner virtually. 

b. Attend up to three ( 3) in person workshops for review of design submittals — 60°/ 0, 90% and

100°/ 0. 

4. Prepare a Microsoft Project schedule and provide monthly updates including necessary revisions
to bring the Project back on schedule if needed. The project schedule will not be resource loaded. 

5. Prepare monthly reporting including status report, recent activities, upcoming activities, action
items log, decisions made log, budget updates, schedule updates, and scope changes. Prepare

monthly invoices. 

6. Deliverables include the following: 

a. Agendas and minutes for all meetings

b. Project schedule updated monthly

c. Monthly reporting

d. Monthly invoices

C. TASK 2— PRE- PURHASE PACKAGE FOR 480V MCC- 100

1. 100°/o Review: Furnish OWNER eight ( 8) sets of copies of drawings, specifications, and bid

proposal and one PDF electronic copy. FNI will meet with the OWNER virtually to present the
plans and specifications and receive comments. Upon final approval by OWNER, FNI will provide
OWNER two ( 2) sets of copies of " Issued for Bid" plans and specifications and one PDF electronic
copy. 

2. At OWNER request, FNI will assist OWNER in the opening, tabulating, and analyzing the bids

received. Review the qualification information provided by the apparent low bidder to determine if, 
based on the information available, they appear to be qualified to provide the electrical equipment. 

Recommend award of contracts or other actions as appropriate to be taken by OWNER. 

3. Prepare Notice of Award for the OWNER to issue to the Electrical Equipment Supplier upon award

of the Contract by the OWNER with instructions of execution of the Contract Documents. 

4. Deliverables for the Pre- Purchase Package include: 

a. Front- end documents for the pre= purchase of the 480V MCC- 100

b. OPCC at 100% 

c. 100°/o submittal of Plans and Specifications

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 2  P a g e



d. Final ( issued for bid) Plans and Specifications

e. Recommendation of Award with tabulation of bids

D. TASK 3- FINAL DESIGN PHASE

1. Obtain and review OWNER-furnished front-end documents, general conditions, and special
conditions for the construction contracts. Meet with OWNER to review comments, and revise

OWNER' s standard documents accordingly. 

2. Site Visits: This task will require the following site visits: 
One site visit by two Engineers for a maximum of three days to obtain information on
the existing facilities. 

3. 60% Review: Prepare drawings, specifications, and construction contract documents of

improvements to be constructed. Furnish OWNER eight ( 8) sets of copies of drawings, 

specifications, and bid proposals and also one PDF electronic copy. FNI will meet with the Owner
in- person to present the plans and specifications and receive comments. Review documents will
include a detailed review of both model spaces and conventional 2D construction contract drawings. 

FNI will receive comments from OWNER and address comments in the 60% Review Workshop. 

4. 100°/ o Review: Furnish OWNER eight ( 8) sets of copies of drawings, specifications, and bid

proposal and one PDF electronic copy. FNI will meet with the OWNER in person to present the
plans and specifications and receive comments. During the review meeting, discuss Maintenance of

Plant Operations ( MOPO) and construction sequencing. Upon final approval by OWNER, FNI will

provide OWNER two (2) sets of copies of "Issued for Bid" plans and specifications and one PDF
electronic copy. 

5. Deliverables for the Final Design Phase include: 

a. Front- end documents for construction

b. OPCC at 60% and 100% submittals

c. 60% submittal of Plans and Specifications

d. 100°/o submittal of Plans and Specifications

e. Final ( issued for bid) Plans and Specifications

E. TASK 4— BID PHASE SERVICES

Bid Phase Services assumes the project is constructed with a traditional design-bid-build process
with competitive sealed proposals and is bid only once. Upon completion of the design services and
approval of "Final" drawings and specifications by OWNER, FNI will proceed with the performance
of services in this phase as follows: 

1. Issue a Notice to Bidders for the OWNER to distribute to prospective contractors and vendors, 
and to selected plan rooms, using the OWNER' s standard bid process. Provide a copy of the
notice to bidders for OWNER to use in notifying construction news publications and publishing
appropriate legal notice. The cost for publications shall be paid by OWNER. 

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 3  P a g e



2. Assist OWNER by responding to questions and interpreting bid documents. Prepare and issue
addenda to the bid documents to plan holders, if necessary, following the OWNER' s standard
bid process. 

Assist the OWNER in conducting a pre- bid conference for the construction project and
coordinate responses to questions with OWNER. Responses to the pre- bid conference questions

will be in the form of addenda issued after the conference. Attend the tour of the project site after
the pre- bid conference. 

4. Develop an example " Construction Sequence" presentation, demonstrating to potential
Contractors possible methodologies for seyuencing construction events. FNI will also provide
special procedures and construction constraints, clearly identified in the plans, specs and in the

presentation, to define limitations for the Contractor to take any unit process or plant facility out
of service for construction. Present the sample construction sequence at the pre- bid conference. 

5. At OWNER request, FNI will assist OWNER in the opening, tabulating, and analyzing the bids

received. Review the qualification information provided by the apparent low bidder to determine

if, based on the information available, they appear to be qualified to construct the project. 
Recommend award of contracts or other actions as appropriate to be taken by OWNER. 

6. Prepare Notice of Award for the OWNER to issue to the Contractor upon award of the Contract

by the OWNER with instructions of execution of the Contract Documents. 

7. Assist the OWNER in reviewing executed Contract Documents, bonds, and certificates of
insurances for conformance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

8. Forward Contract Documents to the OWNER with a recommendation of execution and

distribution of documents. Up to eight ( 8) half-size conformed construction plans, four (4) sets of
executed construction specifications, and four ( 4) sets of conformed construction specifications

shall be provided. Conformed plans and specifications shall incorporate any changes from
addendum into the Contract Documents. 

9. Deliverables for the Bid Phase include: 

a. Notice to Bidders

b. Electronic copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and addenda

c. Recommendation of Award with tabulation of bids

d. Notice of award

e. Conformed contract documents for execution and distribution

ARTICLE II

SPECIAL SERVICES: None

ARTICLE III

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 4  P a g e



TIME OF COMPLETION: FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this

Agreement and agrees to complete the services in accordance with the following milestones and per the
following schedule: 

Notice to Proceed ( NTP) Set by OWNER after Council execution of this Agreement

00°/o Pre- Purchase Package: 

Final Plans and Spec for Pre- Purchase Package

60% Design Submittal; 

00% Design Submittal: 

Final Plans and Specifications: 

Bid Phase Services: 

45 days after NTP

15 days after review workshoplOWNER comments

60 days after NTP

90 days after 60% review workshoplOWNER comments

30 days after 100% review meetinglOWNER comments

90 days after OWNER approval of final plans and specs

The above schedule assumes a total Project schedule of 270 calendar days. If FNI' s services are delayed

through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule consistent with the number of days

of delay. These delays may include but are not limited to delays in OWNER or regulatory reviews, delays on
the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc. These delays may result in an
adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in Attachment CO. 

ARTICLE IV

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and Owner designate the following representatives: 

Owner' s Designated Representative — James Dean, 1314 Avenue K, 

Lubbock, Texas 79401; Phone: 806- 775- 3397; email idean(a,mail. ci. lubbock. tx.us

FNI' s Designated Representative — Ai Sexton, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102; Phone 817- 666- 3827; email Ai. Sexton d;freese. com

FNI' s Accounting Representative — Misty Ballard, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102; Phone 817- 735- 7290; email Misty. Ballard lfreese. com

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 5  P a g e



EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERV[ CES

MCC- 100 REPLACEMENT AT SEWRP HEADWORKS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additional Services to be performed by ENI, if authorized by Owner, which
are not included in the above described basic services, are described as follows: 

A. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings
thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 

B. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are 1) not

consistent with approvals or instructions previously given by Owner or 2) due to other causes not
solely within the control of FNI. 

C. Upgrades to existing SCADA PLC ( RTU) cabinets. 

D. Lead and asbestos survey. 

E. Providing consultation concerning the replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause
during the construction and providing services as may be required in connection with the
replacement of such Work. Performing investigations, studies, and analysis of work proposed by
construction contractors to correct defective work. Any services required as a result of default of the
contractor( s) or the failure, for any reason, of the contractor( s) to complete the work within the
contract time. Providing services after the completion of the construction phase not specifically
listed in Article II. Visits to the site in excess of the number of trips included in Article II for

periodic site visits, coordination meetings, or contract completion activities. Providing services
made necessary because of unforeseen, concealed, or differing site conditions or due to the presence
of hazardous substances in any form. Providing services to review or evaluate construction
contractor( s) claim( s), provided said claims are supported by causes not within the control of FNI. 
Providing value engineering studies or reviews of cost savings proposed by construction contractors
after bids have been submitted. Provide follow-up professional services during Contractor' s
warranty period. 

F. Investigations involving consideration of operation, maintenance and overhead expenses, and the
preparation of rate schedules, earnings and expense statements, feasibility studies, appraisals, 
evaluations, assessment schedules, and material audits or inventories required for certification of force

account construction performed by Owner. 

G. Preparing applications and supporting documents for government grants, loans, or planning advances
and providing data for detailed applications. 

H. Providing shop, mill, field or laboratory inspection of materials and equipment. Observe factory tests
of equipment at any site remote to the project or observing tests required as a result of equipment
failing the initial test. 

I. Conducting pilot plant studies or tests. 

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 6  P a g e



Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before regulatory
agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, and
preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 

K. General Project Representation during construction phase. 

L. Furnishing the services of a Resident Project Representative to act as Owner' s on- site representative
during the Construction Phase. The Resident Project Representative will act as directed by FNI in
order to provide more extensive representation at the Project site during the Construction Phase. 
Through more extensive on- site observations of the work in progress and field checks of materials and
equipment by the Resident Project Representative and assistants, FNI shall endeavor to provide further
protection for Owner against defects and deficiencies in the work. Furnishing the services of a
Resident Project Representative is subject to the provisions ofArticle I, F and Exhibit A, Part 4 Project
Representation. 

If Owner provides personnel to support the activities of the Resident Project Representative who is
FNI or FNI' s agent or employee, the duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of such
personnel will be set forth in an Attachment attached to and made a part of this Agreement before the
services of such personnel are begun. It is understood and agreed that such personnel will work under
the direction of and be responsible to the Resident Project Representative. Owner agrees that whenever

FNI informs him in writing that any such personnel provided by the Owner are, in his opinion, 
incompetent, unfaithful or disorderly, such personnel shall be replaced. 

M. Furnishing Special Inspections required under chapter 17 of the International Building Code. These
Special Inspections are often continuous, requiring an inspector dedicated to inspection of the
individual work item, and they are in addition to General Representation and Resident Representation
services noted elsewhere in the contract. These continuous inspection services can be provided by
FNI as an Additional Service. 

N. Furnishing Inspections and Commissioning Reports required by International Energy Efficiency Code
IECC). 

O. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review
boards, or other legal and/ or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims
disputes with Contractor( s). 

P. Performing investigations, studies and analyses of substitutions of equipment and/ or materials or
deviations from the drawings and specifications. 

Q. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to those
services contemplated by this Agreement. Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FN[ on a fee
basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this Agreement. 

R. Design, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal or
other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

S. Providing basic or additional services on an accelerated time schedule. The scope of this service

include cost for overtime wages of employees and consultants, inefficiencies in work sequence and

plotting or reproduction costs directly attributable to an accelerated time schedule directed by the
Owner. 

T. Preparation of Operations and Maintenance Manuals for the proposed facilities. 

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 7  P a g e



U. Presencelabsence surveys for federally listed threatened/ endangered species. 

V. Conducting cultural resources studies or surveys. 

W. Phase IIII Environmental Site Assessments. 

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 8  P a g e



EXHIBIT A, PART 3, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OWNER

MCC- 100 REPLACEMENT AT SEWRP HEADWORKS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF Owner: Owner shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay
the services of FNI: 

A. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner' s representative with respect to the services to be
rendered under this AGREEMENT. Such person shall have contract authority to transmit
instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner' s policies and decisions with respect to
FNI' s services for the Project. 

B. De- energize equipment for FNI to open up electrical equipment to conduct field investigations. 

C. Provide all criteria and full information as to Owner' s requirements for the Project, including design
objectives and constraints, space, capacity and perfonnance requirements, flexibility and
expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction
standards which Owner will require to be included in the drawings and specifications. 

D. Assist FNI by placing at FNI' s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including
previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project as provided in
this AGREEMENT. 

E. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as
required for FNI to perform services under this AGREEMENT. 

F. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents
presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as Owner
deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a
reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 

G. Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project
and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the Project, 
except as otherwise the responsibility of FNI as provided in this AGREEEMENT. 

H. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
development that affects the scope or timing of FNI' s services. 

I. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Exhibit " A," Part 2, if deemed

necessary by Owner. 

Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit " A", Part 3. 

EXHIBIT A( DATE: 0412612024) 9  P a g e



EXHIBIT B, PART 1— BUDGET

MCC- 100 REPLACEMENT AT SEWRP HEADWORKS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not- to- exceed budget of $234, 461 to complete all services under

this AGREEMENT. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract amendment. CITY will pay the
ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule presented as
EXHIBIT B, Part 2. Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling
fee. The Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in this
Exhibit B. CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Tasks as appropriate to allow

flexibility in providing the needed services within the not-to- exceed budget. 

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above. Should there be a Change in Scope of

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract which shall be negotiated

at that time. 

The budget assumes that all work will be completed within 270 calendar days from the Notice to

Proceed. 

FNI 

EXHIBIT B( DATE: 0412612024) - 1  P a g e OWNER



G
U

A
V

A
 A

V

E 37TH ST

E
L

D
E

R
A

V

F
IG

 A
V

E 36TH ST

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 A
V

E
35

TH
ST

D
A

V
ID

 A
V

G
UAV

A
AV

SEWRP Headworks Building

SEWRP Headwork Influent Liftstation
SEWRP Headworks Diversion Box

SEWRP Headworks Influent Liftstation MCC

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of  the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have be prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries.

Water Reclamation
Electrical Improvements and Monitoring

Ü

0 200 400 600 800
Feet

Headworks Buildings



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time 4,088$                    

Contract 18087 ‐ Design 234,461                  
Contract 18390 ‐ for MCC‐100 Prepurchase 329,640                  
Advertising 254                         

Agenda Items, March 25, 2025
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 18087  -                          

Encumbered/Expended To Date 568,443                  

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
MCC & Monitoring Purchase & Installation (443)                        

Remaining Appropriation (443)                        

Total Appropriation 568,000$                

Water Reclamation Electrical Replacement and Monitoring

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

92843



Project Scope

This project includes the design, purchase, installation, replacement, and/or rehabilitation of the
existing Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP) headworks Motor Control Center (MCC) 100
components and wiring of the existing headworks building. Purchase and installation of electrical
monitoring for the SEWRP MCCs buildings.

Project Justification

The SEWRP headworks building wiring and MCC 100 is over 30 years old. The current electrical
components that run the headworks pumps, screens, grit removal, and odor control, etc. are outdated
and need to be replaced. Replacement parts are no longer readily available. Monitoring is also needed
to monitor electrical power to ensure that electrical power is steady and if an anomaly is detected the
problem can be traced back to the source to prevent catastrophic failure of equipment. This project is
necessary in order to keep the SEWRP in compliance with current electrical codes and meeting the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) wastewater permit requirements.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement

FY 2023-24 $500,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $68,000 was appropriated by BCR#
2025-4

Project Dates Project Location

Start Design Replacement of MCC 100- 06/2023
End Design Replacement of MCC 100 - 12/2023
Bid Replacement of MCC 100 - 01/2025
Award Bid of MCC 100 - 03/2025
Construction of MCC -05/2025
Design of Monitoring System - 12/2025

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Design $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $518,000 $850,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $568,000 $850,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $568,000 $850,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $568,000 $850,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

CIP 92843CIP 92843 Water Reclamation Electrical Water Reclamation Electrical
Replacement and MonitoringReplacement and Monitoring

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Greg Baier - WastewaterProject Manager: Greg Baier - Wastewater



Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13310 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 3 to the Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17130,
and related documents, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for engineering
services for the reconstruction of 34th Street from Upland Avenue to Milwaukee
Avenue, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project

Item Summary
On February 14, 2023, the City Council awarded Professional Services
Agreement, Contract 17130, to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for providing
engineering services for the 34th Street Reconstruction Project from Upland
Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue.

Amendment No. 1 was authorized on June 11, 2024, for additional engineering
services for final design and relocation of the drainage channel, from the south side
of 34th Street to the north side, from Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue.

Amendment No. 2 to this contract was authorized on October 27, 2024.  It
amended the scope of work to include additional engineering services for traffic
signal design at the intersection of 34th Street and Upland Avenue.

Amendment No. 3 will amend the scope of work to include additional engineering
services for utility relocation coordination, as well as additional drainage and
roadway design.

Staff recommends the award of Amendment No. 3, in the amount of $63,100 to
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for additional engineering services, with no
time extension to the contract.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 3 to Contract 17130, for $63,100, with Kimley-Horn and



Amendment No. 3 to Contract 17130, for $63,100, with Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc., is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92813, 34th Street -
Upland to Milwaukee 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment No. 3 
Amendment No. 2 
Amendment No. 1 
Contract 17130 
Location Exhibit 
CIP 92813 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92813 - Project Detail 









































































































City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92813
Capital Project Name: 34h Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17130 with KHA for Design Services                   1,161,600
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17130                      158,000
Amendment No. 2 to Contract 17130                        39,500
Staff Time                        41,662
Surveying                          4,500
3402 Upland - Land Acquisition                      500,243
Parcel 2 - Land Acquisition                      266,513
Parcel 11 - Land Acquisition                        70,235
Parcel 12 - Land Acquisition                        20,519
Parcel 14 - Land Acquisition                      482,105
Parcel 15 - Land Acquisition                      485,384
Removal of Improvements                        25,760
Advertisement cost                             254

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
Amendment No. 3 to Contract 17130                        63,100

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   3,319,375

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
34th Street: Upland to Milwaukee - 22B Construction                 13,180,625

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $             16,500,000



Project Scope

34th Street from Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane Principal Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in west Lubbock has
increased traffic demands along the  34th street corridor from Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue.  The services will
include the  ult imate  design of a five - lane undiv ided thoroughfare  with curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk
improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justification

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $2,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169
FY 2023-24 $13,800,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 11/2024
Bid for Constuction:11/2024
Award Construction: 01/2025
Project Completion: 06/2026

34th St - Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $16,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $16,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $16,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $16,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92813 34th Street from Upland Avenue
to Milwaukee Avenue - 22B

New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 284



 AI# 13315 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17625, and
related documents, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for design services for Upland
Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond
Project.

Item Summary
On October 8, 2023, the City Council awarded Professional Services Agreement,
Contract 17625, to Freese and Nichols, Inc., to provide design services for the
reconstruction of Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street.

Amendment No. 1 to this contract will amend the scope of work to include
additional engineering services, for final design and pedestrian improvements.

Staff recommends the award of Amendment No. 1, in the amount of $63,000, to
Freese and Nichols, Inc. with a 6-month extension to the contract, for additional
engineering services.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17625, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for $63,000, is
funded in Capital Improvement Project 92824, Upland Avenue: 50th Street to
66th Street – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments



Resolution 
Amendment 1 
Contract 17625 
Location Exhibit 
CIP 92824 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92824 - Project Detail 



















Resolution No. 2023- R0519

Item No. 5. 13

October 24, 2023

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17625
engineering design services for Upland Avenue from 50" Street to 66' Street, by and between
City of Lubbock and Freese and Nichols, Inc., and related documents. Said Contract is attac: 

hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in
minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on October 24, 2023

TRAY PAYN , AYOR  

AT"TEST: 

Courtney Paz, City ary

APPROVED AS TO CONTLNT: 

i 

Erik Rej' o, Assistant Ci anager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslRES. PSA- No. 17625 — PNI Upland Design 55'' to 66' n
10. 04. 23



Resolution No. 2023- R0519

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (" AgreemenY') Contract No. 17625 is entered into this 24th

day of October , 2023, is by and between the City of Lubbock ( the " City"), a Texas home rule

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, Inc., ( the" Engineer"), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide engineering design

services for Upland Avenue from 50'' Street to 66'" Street, ( the " Activities"); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 12 months. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to

an additional six ( 6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved

by the City acting through its governing body. 

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

A", attached hereto ( the " Services") 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $ 1, 208, 443, as set forth in Exhibit " B". 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer u to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/ or provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, eyuity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages andlor injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

Page 2 of 11



of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby. 

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer wanants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer' s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTiCLE Vi. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit " A", attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreetnent andlor

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer' s employees and/ or sub- consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub- 

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non- owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best' s Rating of A- VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occunence basis, subject to the following minimuin limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

General Aggregate Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $ 2, 000, 000

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $ 1, 000, 000 Per Occurrence

Employer' s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 1, 000, 000

Worker' s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $ 500, 000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub- consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub- consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage. 

The Certificate shall provide 30 days' notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker' s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406. 002 of the Texas

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

Page 4 of 11



shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker' s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer' s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period ( possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/ RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties ( any of which are

referred to herein as " Sub- consultant"), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit " A", 

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub- consultants. 

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any

approved Sub- consultant. Any agent and/ or Sub- consultant retained and/ or employed by the Engineer shall

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer

in this Agreement. 

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/ or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City' s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY K1ND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

Page 5 of 11



ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY' S FEES, FOR INJURY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INNRY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

ANDIOR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ANDIOR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand ( in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); ( 2) facsimile ( in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or ( 3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B. Engineer' s Address. The Engineer' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

Kevin Morris, P. E. 

1500 Broadway Street, Suite 206
Lubbock, TX 79401

Telephone: 806- 686- 2700

Email: kevin. morris cr, freese. com

C. City' s Address. The City' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Sarah Davis

City of Lubbock
P. O. Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Telephone: 806- 775- 3157

Email: sdavis@mylubbock. us

Page 6 of 11



D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY- PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non- confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer' s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer' s Services under

this Agreement ( the " Provided Data"). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreetnent. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer' s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

Page 7 of 11



AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons andlor circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits " A" through " B" attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. ln the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party' s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

N. Non- Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. in the event of non- appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will tenninate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then- 

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then- current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first ( the " Non- Appropriation Date"). lf at any time funds are
Page 8 of 11



not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

thirty ( 30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non- Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252. 152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271. 002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: ( 1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full- time employees; and ( 2) has a value of $100, 000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. ( b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: ( 1) does

not boycott Israel; and ( 2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: ( 1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or ( 2) the verification required by

Section 2274. 002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company

with 10 or more full- time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a fireann entity or fireann trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a iirearni entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: ( 1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the

contract, boycott energy companies or ( 2) the verification required by Section 2274. 002 of the Texas

Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full- time

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $ 100, 000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental

entity' s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or manage nent of debt

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be tenninated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

Page 9 of 11



To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Governinent Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: ( 1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; ( 2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and ( 3) on completion of the contract, either: 

A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or ( B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

A EST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Michael G. Keenum, P. E., CFM, Division Director of Engineering 1 City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Page 10 of 11



Firm

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

By: 
Jo F. Dewer, P. E. 

V' e PresidentlPrincipal

Page 11 of 11



EXHIBIT A

Scope for Enaineerinq Desiqn Related Services for

Upland Avenue ( from 50th Street to 66th Street) 

The scope set forth herein defines the work to be performed by the ENGINEER in
completing the project. Both the CITY and ENGINEER have attempted to clearly define the
work to be pertormed and address the needs of the Project. 

OBJECTIVE

Engineering Design: The objective of the Upland Avenue ( 50` h St to 66' h St) Improvements
project is to improve vehicular and pedestrian mobility and safety from 50' h Street to 66cn
Street ( 1. 0 miles) The existing conditions within the project area are generally a two- lane
undivided roadway with bar ditch drainage conveyance within variable right of way. Project
limits are generally 50' h Street to 66' h Street; however, the intersection of 50th Street and
Upland Avenue has been previously designed by the ENGINEER while the intersection of
66'h Street and Upland Avenue has been designed by others. The project will include the
design and construction of a five- lane undivided thoroughfare with curb and gutter, drainage, 
street lights, and sidewalks within a 110- foot right- of-way. The project will include up to
three ( 3) drainage easements to accommodate cross- drainage. 

The project will require active coordination with four projects adjacent to this project: 

Upland Avenue 34' h Street to 50' h Street

Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82" d Street

66' h Street Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue

50' h Street/ CR 6900 from FM 179 to Upland Avenue

WORK TO BE PERFORMED

Engineering Design: 

Task 1. Design Management and Quality Control/Quality Assurance

Task 2. Conceptual Design (Schematic) 

Task 3. Preliminary Design ( 60%) 

Task 4. Final Design ( 90% and 100%) 

Task 5. Bid Phase Services

Task 6. ROW/ Easement Services

Task 7. Survey and Subsurface Utility Engineering Services

Task 8. Geotechnical Investigation / Pavement Design

Task 9. Permitting

Cily of Lubbock Upland Avenue

AQachmenl A From 50'^ Street to 66'" Slreel

Page 1 of 18



ENGINEERING DESIGN: 

TASK 1. DESIGN MANAGEMENT

ENGINEER will manage the work outlined in this scope to efficiently and effectively use
ENGINEER' s and CITY' s time and resources. ENGINEER will manage change, 

communicate effectively, coordinate internally and externally as needed, and proactively
address issues with the CITY's Project Manager and others as necessary to make progress
on the work. 

ENGINEER will develop a Quality Control/ Quality Assurance Plan ( QC/QA Plan) outlining
the ENGINEER's method of ensuring the highest levels of design and accuracy are
incorporated into the calculations, plans, specifications, and estimates. 

ENGINEER is responsible for and shall coordinate all subconsultant activity to include
quality and consistency of plans. 

At any time during the project the CITY may request from the ENGINEER documentation
relative to QC/ QA for project submittals. 

1. 1. Managing the Team: 

Lead, manage and direct design team activities

Perform Quality Control / Quality Assurance ( QC/ QA) reviews in conjunction with
performance of the work. 

Communicate internally among team members

Task and allocate team resources

1. 2. Communications and Reporting: 

Attend a pre- design project kickoff meeting with CITY staff to confirm and clarify
scope, understand CITY objectives, and develop economical and functional
designs that meet CITY requirements

Conduct and document monthly project update meetings with CITY Project
Manager

Conduct and document biweeklv internal design team meetings

Conduct up to three ( 3) site visits

Conduct one ( 1) review meeting with the CITY after each of the 30%, 60%, and

90% design submittals

Conduct QC/ QA reviews and document those activities. 

Prepare invoices, and submit monthly in the format requested by the CITY. 
Prepare and submit monthly One Page Reports. 

Prepare and submit baseline Project Schedule initially, and monthly Project
Schedule updates with a schedule narrative as updates occur. 

Coordinate with adjacent projects including: 

Upland Avenue 34' h Street to 50' h Street

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibd A From 50'" Street to 66'" Street

Page 2 0/ 18



Upland Avenue 66' h Street to 82" d Street

66"' Street Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue

50"' Street/CR 6900 from FM 179 to Upland Avenue

1. 3. QC/ QA of Subconsultants

The ENGINEER' s subconsultants shall perform Quality Control/ Quality
Assurance on all procedures, field surveys, data, and products prior to delivery to
the CITY. ENGINEER' s subconsultants shall certify in writing via a letter that the
information provided has undergone a Quality Control/ Quality Assurance
process. 

1. 4. QC/ QA of Design Documentation

ENGINEER shall perform a QC/ QA review of all documents being submitted for
review at all stages of the design. QA should be performed by an individual
within the firm who is not on the design team. 

A Comment Resolution Log will be used to document conflicting comments
between reviewers and to highlight comments made by the CITY that the
ENGINEER is not incorporating into the design documents along with the
associated explanation. 

The documentation of a QC/ QA review includes electronic copies of the color- 

coded, original marked- up document (or "check prinY') developed during the QC
checking process and/or review forms which sequentially list documents and
associated comments. 

ASSUMPTIONS

One ( 1) pre- design project kickoff meeting with CITY

Twelve ( 12) monthly project update meetings during design phase with the CITY

Three ( 3) plan review meetings with the CITY

Twenty (20) bi- weekly design team meetings

Project design phase is anticipated to take twelve ( 12) months. 

Twelve ( 12) monthly updates of One Page Reports, Project Schedule, Action
Items/ Decisions Made Log. 

All submittals to the CITY will be quality checked prior to submission. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Meeting summaries with action items

B. Baseline design schedule and monthly updates with schedule narrative
describing any current or anticipated schedule changes

C. Monthly One Page Reports

D. Monthly invoices

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50w Street to 66'" Street

Page 3 of 18



E. QC/ QA documentation

TASK 2. CONCEPTUAL DESIGN ( SCHEMATIC) 

The Conceptual Design shall be submitted to CITY per the approved Project Schedule. 

The purpose of the Conceptual Design is for the ENGINEER to identify, develop, 
communicate through the defined deliverables, and recommend the design concept that

successfully addresses the design problem, and to obtain the CITY' s endorsement of this
concept. 

ENGINEER will develop the Conceptual Design of the improvements as follows: 

2. 1. Data Collection

Review Available CAD and GIS files from CITY

Gather Aerial, GIS, LiDAR Data

Review available CITY records development including plats and drainage studies

Review available Franchise Utility Data

Setup CAD files based on Available Data

Conduct up to two ( 2) site visits

2. 2. Conceptual Design Schematic

ENGINEER will provide design services to the CITY with the following design
components. All information listed will be provided on the design schematic: 

GENERAL DESIGN

TYPICAL SECTIONS — Including existing and proposed typical sections showing
pavement ( roadway, sidewalk, curb), ROW, lane widths ( with direction arrows). 

ALIGNMENT DATA

RIGHT- OF- WAY AND EASEMENT MAP — Including parcels numbers

ROADWAY DESIGN

ROADWAY PLAN AND PROFILE — Including plan and profile views ( Upland
Avenue) showing existing and proposed horizontal and vertical roadway
alignments, existing and proposed right-of-way/easements, sidewalks, 
driveways, and existing utilities. 

CROSS SECTION DESIGN

CROSS SECTIONS — Including Upland Avenue centerline station at a 50' 
interval, existing top of ground line, proposed roadway section, and easement
and right-of-way limits. 

2. 3. Conceptual Drainage Design Analysis

ENGINEER will provide design services to the CITY with the following design
analysis. All information listed will be provided in the drainage design analysis: 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50"' Street to 66' Street

Page 4 of 18



Hydrologic and hydraulic data sources for existing conditions. 

Project drainage area map

Conveyance paths, slopes, time of concentration, and runoff coefficients as
required to calculate design-year flows. 

Subdivided drainage areas into sub-areas and calculations of the discharge at

each discharge location. 

ICPR H8H models of existing and proposed conditions

Evaluation of adequacy of the ROW needed to accommodate the proposed
roadway and drainage system. 

Identification and preliminary sizing of necessary offsite drainage easements. 

Identification and preliminary sizing of cross culvert. 

Identification and preliminary sizing of playa lake cut/fill needs. 

2. 4. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

ENGINEER will develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) based
on design plans. Sources of data used in the preparation of the OPCC include
construction data aggregation services, similar past project performed by
ENGINEER, and professional experience and engineering judgement. 

2. 5. Utility Conflict Coordination

ENGINEER will develop the design of CITY facilities to avoid or minimize
conflicts with existing utilities, and where known and possible consider potential
future utilities in designs. Where conflicts cannot be avoided, coordination of

Utility Conflicts will begin at the Conceptual Design phase. 

In the case of a public utility conflict, the ENGINEER will design CITY facilities to
avoid or minimize conflicts with existing utilities, and where known and possible
consider potential future utilities in designs. 

In the case of a private Utility Conflict, the ENGINEER will provide a PDF set of
plans with the utility conflicts highlighted and a Utility Conflicts Table of those
conflicts to be included in a Utility Clearance Letter for coordination. The
ENGINEER may need to coordinate directly with the private utility provider if that
provider needs to undertake design to adjust their utility' s location. 

The ENGINEER shall deliver a PDF file of the approved preliminary schematic to
the City for forwarding to all utility companies which have facilities within the
limits of the project. The PDF file should be created directly from the CAD files. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Digital copy of Schematic ( PDF). 

Digital copy of Drainage Analysis Report. 

Digital copy of opinion of probable construction cost. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'" Street to 66'" Street

Page 5 of 18



DELIVERABLES

A. Conceptual Schematic

B. Conceptual Drainage Analysis Report

C. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

D. Utility Conflict Coordination Package

TASK 3. PRELIMINARY DESIGN ( 60%) 

ENGINEER shall not proceed with Preliminary Design activities without written approval by
the CITY of the Conceptual Design Package. Preliminary Design shall be submitted to CITY
per the approved Project Schedule. 

ENGINEER will develop the Preliminary Design of the improvements as follows: 

3. 1. Preliminary Design Plans: 

ENGINEER will progress, update, or revise the design components listed in the
Conceptual Design submittal and the additional design plans: 

GENERAL DESIGN

COVER SHEET — Including project limits and location map

INDEX OF SHEETS

GENERAL NOTES — Including applicable City standard general notes

DESIGN LEGEND

QUANTITY SUMMARY — Including tables of quantities per sheet

SURVEY CONTROL AND PROJECT LAYOUT — Including control points with X, 
Y, Z coordinates, identified coordinate system, vertical datum, and bearing base. 

RIGHT- OF- WAY AND EASEMENT MAP — Including parcels numbers

EXISTING UTILITY MAP — Including collected Level A-D SUE data (Task 8). 

CONSTRUCTION PHASING NARRATIVE AND TYPICAL SECTION — Including
description of the suggested construction phasing and typical sections. The
construction phasing narrative includes expectation and restrictions of the
construction during the multi- phase project. 

CONSTRUCTION DETOUR PLAN — Including layout of allowable/ approved detour
plan to be utilized but the project

TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAILS — Including applicable CITY and TxDOT traffic
control details. Assumes that the Contractor will prepare and implement a traffic
control plan in accordance with the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices. 

Ciry of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50' Street to 66'" Street

Page 6 of 18



ROADWAY DESIGN

REMOVAL PLAN — Including removal of above and below ground features
necessary for the construction of the project improvements. 

ROADWAY PLAN AND PROFILE — Including plan and profile sheets ( Upland
Avenue) showing existing and proposed horizontal and vertical roadway
alignments, right-of-way/easements, sidewalks, driveways, lane dimensions, 
drainage structures, and City and franchise-owned utilities. 

ROADWAY KEY MAP

SIDESTREET PLAN AND PROFILE — Including plan and profile sheets showing
existing and proposed horizontal and vertical roadway alignments, right- of- 
way/ easements, sidewalks, driveways, lane dimensions, drainage structures, and
City and franchise-owned utilities. 

INTERSECTION LAYOUTS — Including spot grades and dimensions for grades at
radii, fillets, and valley gutters at cross-street intersections. 

DRIVEWAY DETAILS - Including key elevations, dimensions, proposed driveway
section, and easement and right- of-way limits. 

ROADWAY DETAILS — Including necessary non- standard details. 

STANDARD ROADWAY DETAILS

DRAINAGE DESIGN

OVERALL DRAINAGE AREA MAP — Delineate the watershed based on contour

data and field verification and document existing street, right-of-way and drainage
easement capacities for the subject site. A drainage area map will be drawn at
maximum 1" = 200' scale from available 1- foot contour data with the contours

labeled. Data source and year will be provided by the ENGINEER. 

STORMWATER ROUTING PLAN— Including proposed flow lines, HGL contours, 
lengths and slopes of outfalls. 

CHANNEL PLAN AND PROFILE - Including plan and profile sheets showing
existing and proposed horizontal and vertical drainage alignments, existing and
proposed flow lines, HGL, lengths, slopes, and cross-section of proposed channel
improvements. 

CULVERT DESIGN — Including culvert layout sheets showing location and size of
all culverts, including existing and proposed flow lines, flows, lengths and slopes of
pipe, top of ground profile over pipe and connections to existing or proposed
culverts. 

CUT/ FILL PLAN — Including plan sheets showing limits of cut, fill, peak water
surface elevation, volume calculations, and reclamation totals. 

DRAINAGE DETAILS - Including necessary non- standard details. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'" Street to 66'^ Street

Page 7 of 18



UTILITY DESIGN

MINOR UTILITY ADJUSTMENT PLAN — Including plan sheets for the minor
adjustment (for example, adjustment of valve or manhole to proposed finished
grade) of existing water and sanitary sewer utilities within the project area. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK - SANITARY SEWER DETAILS

CITY OF LUBBOCK - WATER DETAILS

ILLUMINATION DESIGN

ILLUMINATION PLAN — Including plan sheets showing proposed illumination pole, 
conduit, and electrical service. The development of a photometric diagram will be
considered an additional service. The electrical design for the project will include
the electrical distribution system for the lighting system described. There will be a
minimum of two (2) electrical utility service locations and a maximum of three (3) 
electrical service locations. 

ILLUMINATION DETAILS

TRAFFIC SIGNAL DESIGN

SIGNAL PLAN AND SUMMARIES — CITY Traffic Engineering department will
develop the signal designs required for the project in coordination with the
ENGINEER. Sheets, quantities and specifications will be developed by the CITY
and incorporated into deliverable packages by ENGINEER. 

SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING DESIGN

SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN — Including pavement markings, 
traffic buttons, and traffic signage ( CITY and TMUTCD compliant) for the roadway
improvements. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING DETAILS

LANDSCAPE DESIGN

LANDSCAPE PLAN — Including proposed locations of topsoil, sod, and
hydromulch in relation to the proposed improvements. 

EROSION CONTROL

EROSION CONTROL PLAN — Including proposed locations of sediment and
erosion control BMPs in relation to the proposed improvements. 

3. 2. Preliminary Design Project Manual ( Contract and Specifications) 

ENGINEER will submit all deliverables needed to prepare the Project Manual
Contract and Specifications) using the CITY' s front end and technical specifications. 

The ENGINEER shall supplement the technical specifications, as needed. 

3. 3. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

ENGINEER will develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) based on
design plans. Sources of data used in the preparation of the OPCC include

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50' Street to 66'" Street

Page 8 of 18



construction data aggregation services, similar past project performed by
ENGINEER, and professional experience and engineering judgement. 

3. 4. Constructability Review Meeting

Prior to the Preliminary Design Review Meeting with the CITY, the ENGINEER shall
schedule and attend a project site visit with the CITY Project Manager. The
ENGINEER shall summarize the CITY' s comments from the field visit and submit this

information to the CITY in writing. 

3. 5. Utility Conflict Coordination

ENGINEER will provide a digital set of plans in PDF format with the utility
conflicts highlighted and a Utility Conflicts Table of those conflicts. The PDF file
should be created directly from the CAD files. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Two ( 2) copies of half size ( 11" x17") plans. 

One ( 1) set of the Specifications. 

Two ( 2) copies of opinion of probable construction cost. 

Electronic copy ( PDF) of the plans, specifications, and OPCC. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Preliminary Design Plans

B. Preliminary Specifications

C. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

D. Utility Conflict Coordination Package

TASK 4. FINAL DESIGN ( 90% AND 100%). 

ENGINEER shall not proceed with Final Design activities without written approval by the
CITY of the Preliminary Design Package. Final Design shall be submitted to CITY per the
approved Project Schedule. 

ENGINEER will develop the Final Design of the improvements as follows: 

4. 1. Final Design ( 90%) Plans: 

ENGINEER will progress, update, or revise the design plans listed in the
Conceptual Design submittal and the additional design plans: 

4. 2. Final Design ( 90%) Specifications

ENGINEER will prepare the Specifications using the CITY's front end and
technical specifications. The ENGINEER shall supplement the technical

specifications, as needed. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue
Exhibit A From 50'" Street to 66'" Street

Page 9 of 18



4. 3. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

ENGINEER will develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) based
on design plans. Sources of data used in the preparation of the OPCC include
construction data aggregation services, similar past project perFormed by
ENGINEER, and professional experience and engineering judgement. 

4. 4. Utility Conflict Coordination Package

ENGINEER will provide a digital set of plans in PDF format with the utility
conflicts highlighted and a Utility Conflicts Table of those conflicts. The PDF file
should be created directly from the CAD files. 

4. 5. Final Design ( 100%) Plans: 

ENGINEER will progress, update, or revise the design plans listed in the
Conceptual Design submittal and the additional design plans: 

4. 6. Final Design ( 100%) Specifications

ENGINEER will prepare the Specificationsg using the CITY's front end and
technical specifications. The ENGINEER shall supplement the technical

specifications, as needed. 

4. 7. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

ENGINEER will develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) based
on design plans. Sources of data used in the preparation of the OPCC include
construction data aggregation services, similar past project performed by
ENGINEER, and professional experience and engineering judgement. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Two ( 2) copies of half size ( 11" x17") plans for 90% and 100% Design. 

One ( 1) set of the Specifications for 90% and 100% Design. 

Two ( 2) copies of opinion of probable construction cost for 90% and 100% 

Design. 

Electronic copy ( PDF) of the plans, project manual, and OPCC for 90% and

100% Design. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Final Design Plans ( 90% and 100%) 

B. Final Design Specifications ( 90% and 100%) 

C. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost ( 90% and 100%) 

D. Utility Conflict Coordination Package ( 90% and 100%) 

TASK 5. BID PHASE SERVICES. 

ENGINEER will support the bid phase of the project as follows. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'^ Street to 66'" Slreet

Page 10 of 18



5. 1. Bid Support

The ENGINEER will provide technical interpretation of the contract bid
documents and will prepare proposed responses to all bidder's questions and
requests in the form of addenda. Attend the pre- bid conference in support of the
CITY. 

When substitution prior to award of contracts is allowed in the contract
documents, the ENGINEER will advise the CITY as to the acceptability of
alternate materials and equipment proposed by bidders. 

Attend the bid opening in support of the CITY. 

Tabulate and review all bids received for the construction project, assist the CITY
in evaluating bids/ proposals, and recommend award of the contract. A copy of
the Bid Tabulation will be provided to the CITY. 

Assist the CITY in determining the qualifications and acceptability of prospective
contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers. 

The ENGINEER will provide the CITY with a recommendation of award letter
after the review of the provided bids. 

Incorporate all addenda into the contract documents and issue conformed sets. 

After the bid opening, ENGINEER will provide up to five ( 5) full size ( 22"x34") 
sets and up to seven ( 7) half size ( 11 " x17") sets of the Conformed Plans and up
to two ( 2) bound copies of the conformed Project Manual set incorporating all
approved addenda. 

ASSUMPTIONS

The project will be bid only once and awarded to one contractor. 

Construction documents will only be made available on the City's document
management system for plan holders and/ or given to plan viewing rooms. 

Construction documents will not be printed by the CITY and made available for
purchase by plan holders and/ or given to plan viewing rooms. 

The project will be bid via the design, bid, and build process. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Up to three ( 3) Addenda

B. Bid Tabulations

C. Recommendation of Award Letter

D. Conformed Plans and Project Manual

TASK 6. ROW/ EASEMENT SERVICES. 

ENGINEER will support and perform activities related to ROW and land as outlined below, 
per scoping direction and guidance from the CITY' s Project Manager. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50' Street to 66'" Street

Page 11 of 18



6. 1. Right- of-Way/ Easement Preparation and Submittal. 

The ENGINEER shall determine rights- of-way and easement needs for
construction of the project. Required temporary and permanent easements will
be identified based on available information and recommendations will be made

for approval by the CITY. 

The ENGINEER shall prepare documents to be used to obtain right-of-way and
permanent and/ or temporary easements required to construct the improvements. 

The ENGINEER shall prepare a ROW and Easement parcel reference map
showing and designating all land interest for project. The map shall be revised as
necessary throughout the land acquisition process. 

ENGINEER shall perform appraisal services including a Market Study Report
and individual appraisals for up to six (6) parcels. 

ENGINEER shall provide abstracting services for up to twelve ( 12) parcels with
unknown ownership or potential prescriptive ROW parcels. 

Engineer shall provide title and negotiation services for twenty three (23) parcels
including delivery of Initial Offer, negotiation with landowner, submitting signed
conveyance documents/ counteroffers to CITY, curing title issues and obtaining
partial release of liens, delivery of Final Offer, recording original conveyance
documents in the real property records and submitting final file to CITY. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Appraisals will be submitted to CITY for review to request approval to make

offers. 

Condemnation services are considered an additional service. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Up to twenty- three ( 23) proposed right- of-way documents

B. Up to three (3) proposed easement documents

C. ROW and Easement parcel reference map

D. Market Study Report

E. Conveyance documents

TASK 7. SURVEY AND SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING SERVICES. 

ENGINEER witl provide survey support as follows. 

7. 1. Design Survey and Right-of-Way/Easement Research

ENGINEER will perform field surveys to collect horizontal and vertical elevations
and other information needed by ENGINEER in design and preparation of plans
for the project. Information gathered during the survey shall include topographic
data, elevations of all sanitary and storm sewers, rim/ invert elevations, location of
buried utilities, water valves, water meters, curb and gutter, asphalt, concrete, 
structures, sidewalks, medians, fences, driveways, tops and toes of slope, utility

Ciry of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 501h Street to 66'" Street

Page 12 oi 18



poles, mailboxes, signs, telephone risers, trees ( measure caliper, identify overall
canopy, and have qualified arborist identify species of trees which are 6" in
diameter or larger), and other visible features relevant to the final plan sheets. 
Existing drainage at intersections will be verified by field surveys. Spot elevations
will be shown on intersection layouts with cross slope to fit intersecting grade
lines. 

The minimum survey information to be provided on the plans shall include the
following: 

A Project Control Sheet, showing ALL Control Points, used or set while
gathering data. Generally on a scale of not less than 1: 400: 

The following information about each Control Point; 

a. Identified ( Existing. CITY Monument # 8901, PK Nail, 5/ 8" Iron Rod) 

b. X, Y and Z Coordinates, in an identified coordinate system, and a

referred bearing base. 

c. Descriptive Location ( Ex. Set in the centerline of the inlet in the South

curb line of North Side Drive at the East end of radius at the Southeast

corner of North Side Drive and North Main Street). 

Coordinates on all P. C.' s, P. T.' s, P. I.' s, Manholes, Valves, etc., in the

same coordinate system, as the Control. 

No less than two horizontal bench marks, per line or location. 

Bearings given on all proposed centerlines, or baselines. 

Station equations relating utilities to paving, when appropriate. 

Right- of-Way research includes review of property/ right- of-way records based on
current internet- based Lubbock Central Appraisal District ( LCAD) information

available at the start of the project and available on- ground property information
i. e. iron rods, fences, stakes, etc.). It does not include effort for chain of title

research, parent track research, additional research for easements not included
in the LCAD records, right- of-way takings, easement vacations and
abandonments, right- of-way vacations, and street closures. 

7. 2. Temporary Right of Entry Preparation and Submittal

Prior to the access of private property for the collection of existing conditions
survey data, the ENGINEER shall prepare, mail, and monitor up to thirteen ( 13) 
temporary right of entry letters. 

7. 3. Subsurface Utility Engineering

ENGINEER will perform the Level A-D Subsurface Utility Engineering ( SUE) 
work required for this project in general accordance with the recommended

practices and procedures described in ASCE Publication Cl/ ASCE 38- 02

Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface
Utility Data). As described in the mentioned ASCE publication, four levels have

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'^ Slreet to 66'^ Street

Page 13 oi 18



been established to describe the quality of utility location and attribute

information used on plans. The four quality levels are as follows: 
Quality Level D( QL" D") — Information derived from existing utility records; 
Quality Level C( QL" C") - QL" D" information supplemented with information

obtained by surveying visible above- ground utility features such as valves, 
hydrants, meters, manhole covers. 

Quality Level B( QL" B") — Two-dimensional ( x,y) information obtained through the
application and interpretation of non- destructive surface geophysical methods. 
Also known as "designating" this quality level provides the horizontal position of
subsurface utilities within approximately one foot. 

Quality Level A( QL"A") — Three dimensional ( x,y,z) utility information obtained
utilizing non- destructive vacuum excavation equipment to expose utilities at
critical points which are then tied down by surveying. Also known as " locating", 
this quality level provides precise horizontal and vertical positioning of utilities
within approximately 0. 05 feet. 

Utilities to be designated include gas, telecommunications, electric, drainage, 
water and sanitary sewer. 

ENGINEER will designate the known subsurface utilities within the project limits

utilizing geophysical equipment (electromagnetic induction, magnetic) to
designate metallic/ conductive utilities ( e. g. steel pipe, electrical cable, telephone
cable). 

ENGINEER will provide appropriate traffic control measures ( barricades and
signs). 

ENGINEER will utilize non- destructive vacuum excavation equipment to

excavate test holes at the required locations. Due to the risk of damage, 

ENGINEER will not attempt to probe or excavate test holes on any AC water
lines unless approval is obtained from the CITY in advance. ENGINEER will

record the utility type, size, material, depth to top, and general direction. Each

test hole will be assigned a unique ID number and will be marked with a nail/ disk. 

The test- hole ID number and other pertinent utility information will be painted at
each test- hole location. 

ENGINEER shall provide up to six ( 6) test holes ( estimated to be between 8 and

12 feet in depth and within existing pavement) Subsurface Utility Engineering
SUE) to Quality Level A, as described below: 

o Expose and locate utilities at specific locations. 

o Tie horizontal and vertical location of utility to survey control. 
o Provide utility size and configuration. 
o Provide paving thickness and type, where applicable. 
o Provide general soil type and site conditions and such other pertinent

information as is reasonably ascertainable from each test hole site. 
o Backfill cored holes within existing concrete pavement with temporary

concrete pavement to a minimum of 9" in depth. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibd A From 50'" Street to 66'" Street

Page 14 of 18



DELIVERABLES

A. Drawing of the project layout with Level A- D SUE ( including legend and table of
Level A SUE data). 

TASK 8. GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION / PAVEMENT DESIGN. 

ENGINEER will provide geotechnical investigation services to the CITY as follows: 

8. 1 Field Exploration

Select and mark up to eleven ( 11) boring locations and notify Texas 811, 
appropriate CITY Department(s) to request location and marking of existing
underground utilities prior to the field exploration. 

8. 2 Laboratory Testing

Perform testing on samples obtained from the borings to determine soil
classification and pertinent engineering properties of the subsurface materials. 
ENGINEER will select samples for laboratory testing, assign tests, and review
the test results. Testing will be performed by a geotechnical testing
subcontractor. 

Laboratory tests will be assigned based on the specific subsurface materials
encountered during exploration. Test type and quantity may vary, but are
expected to include: 

o Classification tests ( liquid and plastic limits and percent passing the No. 200
sieve or gradation) 

o Moisture content

o Dry unit weight

o Unconfined compressive strength

o pH lime series

o Soluble sulfate content

8. 3 Engineering Analysis and Reporting

Prepare a technical memorandum of the geotechnical investigation to include: 

o Boring locations, boring logs, laboratory test results, and a key to the symbols
used. 

a Discussion of subsurface conditions and soil properties indicated by the field
and laboratory work, and the implications for design. 

o Recommendations for pavement subgrade treatment

o Pavement thickness calculations for both rigid and flexible pavement

o Earthwork related recommendations for use during development of the plans
and specifications

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'" Streel to 66'^ Street

Page 15 of 18



ASSUMPTIONS

For core drilling, traffic control will be required, including closing a lane of traffic
and providing flagmen. 

It is assumed that a truck- mounted drilling rig can access the drill locations. If
drilling with a track-mounted rig is necessary, it will be considered an additional
service to this contract. 

ENGINEER will coordinate with CITY to obtain the necessary permits for core
drilling within the roadway. 

Soil boring locations are planned to be within the existing pavement and in
locations where traffic control plans for roadway or lane closures will be
necessary. 

Locations of the six ( 6) core borings will be adjusted for location based upon the

existing utilities and ingress/egress onto Upland Avenue from the adjoining side
streets. 

DELIVERABLES

A. One ( 1) hard copy and one ( 1) electronic copy of geotechnical technical
memorandum ( including exhibits, soil boring results, summary of observations and
pavement ( surface and subgrade) recommendations). 

TASK 9. PERMITTING. 

ENGINEER will provide permitting support for the CITY to obtain any and all agreements
and/ or permits normally required for a project of this size and type, as follows: 

9. 1 Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation ( TDLR) 

ENGINEER will provide permitting support for the CITY and will prepare plan
layouts for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and TDLR compliant sidewalks, 

curb ramps, pedestrian push buttons, and crosswalks. 

ENGINEER will retain the services of a TDLR Registered Accessibility Specialist
RAS) Inspector approved by the CITY. 

ENGINEER will be responsible for completing and submitting the inspection
forms, paperwork, and RAS plan review during the design phase as required by
the TDLR. 

During the construction phase, the CITY will coordinate one ( 1) RAS inspection
with the ENGINEER and RAS Inspector no later than thirty ( 30) calendar days
after construction substantial completion. 

ENGINEER will be compensated for the RAS Inspector costs by the CITY as a
reimbursable expense. 

9. 2 Environmental Permit Evaluation

ENGINEER will evaluate the project area for regulatory permitting requirements primarily
related to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act ( Section 404) and other know permits. This

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'" Street to 66'^ Street

Page 16 of 18



information will be utilized to evaluate the project improvements to minimize regulatory
requirements for the project. 

Desktop Evaluation

Prior to the site visit, ENGINEER' s environmental scientists will assemble and

review data such as aerial photographs, topographic maps, National Wetlands
Inventory ( NWI) maps, and soils data. 

Pedestrian Survev

ENGINEER' s environmental scientist will conduct a pedestrian survey within the
project limits ( including approximately 200 feet upstream and downstream of the
existing culvert crossings) to document existing environmental conditions and
assess potential environmental impacts. The presence and locations of
waterbodies, including wetlands, potential federally- listed threatened and
endangered species habitat, and vegetation cover types will be identified within

the project area. 

THC Coordination

ENGINEER' s environmental scientist will prepare and submit a consultation letter
to the Texas Historical Commission ( THC) to determine the potential for the
project to impact protected cultural resources and provide results to the CITY. If
follow up studies are requested by the THC, those studies can be provided as an
additional service with written authorization from the CITY. 

Conceptual Environmental PermittinQ Memorandum

Information gathered during the pedestrian survey ( and coordination with the
project team and CITY) will be used to prepare a technical memorandum
identifying potential environmental permitting requirements for the proposed
improvements identified in the conceptual design phase. 

ASSUMPTIONS

Section 404 of the Clean Water Act ( Section 404) regulates the discharge of

materials within waters of the U. S. ( such as streams, ponds, and wetlands), and

the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers must issue a Section 404 permit prior to a
regulated action. This scope assumes the intent of the future proposed project is
to construct roadway improvements in accordance with the terms and conditions
of Nationwide Permit ( NWP) 14, Linear Transportation Projects. 

DELIVERABLES

A. Conceptual Environmental Permitting Memorandum

Ciry of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50'" Street to 66"' Streel

Page 17 of 18



EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Upland Avenue ( from 50' h Street to 66"' Street) 

Additional Services not included in the existing Scope of Services — CITY and

ENGINEER agree that the following services are beyond the Scope of Services described in
the tasks above. However, ENGINEER can provide these services, if needed, upon the
CITY' s written request. Any additional amounts paid to the ENGINEER as a result of any
material change to the Scope of the Project shall be agreed upon in writing by both parties
before the services are performed. These additional services include the following: 

Water and wastewater utility design. 

Traffic signal design. 

Condemnation services. 

Construction phase services of any kind, including pre- construction meetings, review
of submittals, field visits, progress meetings, etc. 

Services related to development of the CITY' s project financing and/ or budget. 

Services related to disputes over pre- qualification, bid protests, bid rejection and re- 
bidding of the contract for construction. 

Construction management and inspection services

Performance of materials testing or specialty testing services. 

Services necessary due to the default of the Contractor. 

Services related to warranty claims, enforcement and inspection after final completion. 

Services to support, prepare, document, bring, defend, or assist in litigation
undertaken or defended by the CITY. 

Performance of miscellaneous and supplemental services related to the project as
requested by the CITY. 

Effort exceeding those outlined in the "Assumptions" section of each task description. 

Survey documents exceeding the number shown in the contract. 

Property appraisals exceeding the number shown in the contract. 

Level A SUE test holes exceeding the number shown in the contract. 

City of Lubbock Upland Avenue

Exhibit A From 50"' Streel l0 66' Streel

Page 18 of 18



EXHIBIT B

Budqet for Enqineerinq DesiQn Related Services for

Upland Avenue ( from 50' h Street to 66' h Street) 

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not- to-exceed budget of 1 208 443 to complete all engineering

design services as directed under this AGREEMENT. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract

amendment. CITY will pay the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS

Fee Schedule presented as EXHIBIT C. Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10

percent handling fee. The Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are

provided in this Exhibit B. CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Tasks as

appropriate to allow flexibility in providing the needed services within the not- to-exceed budget. 

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above. Should there be a Change in Scope of

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract which shall be

negotiated at that time. 

The budget assumes that all work will be completed in accordance with the proposed project schedule of

12 months. The schedule may be extended by six months if the CITY and ENGINEER mutually agree. 



EXHIBIT C

Hourlv Rate Schedule Compensation for Enqineerinq Desiqn Related Services for

Upland Avenue ( from 50' Street to 66' h Street) 

LUBBOCK RATE SCHEDUIE

E u

Principal / Group Manager

Tcchnical Profcssional • 6

Techntcal prolculonal S

Technical Prafess3onal - 4

Technical Prafessional - 3

Techmc l Pru( ess+onal • 2

technical Profess3onal - 1

CAD Technician/ Designer - 3

CAOTechn cian/ Designer • 2

CAO Yethmtbn/ p signcr 1

Seniqr CAd Technit an/ Oes gne 

Construction Manager 4

Construction Ma agcr 3

Construtuon M nager • 2

Constr tlion Manager 1

Corporate Project Support - 3

COrpOrOtt PrO dtt Suppoti - 2

Corparate Projen Support - 1

Intern/ [ oap

Rates lor In• Flouse Sorvlces

7echnelo v [ hane

S8 50 per hour

Tra rtsl

Standard 1ilS Rates

Small Format ( prr copy) 

Wrge ormat iper sq. ft ) 

Bond

Gbssy / Mylar

Vlnyl / Adhesive

Mounting (per sq. ft  

Bindi ng per bdndir g! 

Rate

342

335

2 T0

232

194

170

140

186

ia 

112

a i

zao

151

143

112

157

141

1p8

73

8& W Color

So ia so. zs

50. 25 50. 75

j0.75 s1. 25

SI 5d 52 00

52. 00

50. 25

OTNER OIREGT EXPENS£ S. 

Othcr dircct eKprnscs arc reimbursed at actual cost t mcs a multipl+ cr o( 1 10 Thcy intludc outsidc p in ing nd reproduction

erpense, commumcat on e pense, travel, transpartation and suhstttente away Irom the FNI office and other miuellaneous penses

diredty related tn Ihe work, Includ ng costs ot laboratory anafysis, test, and other work required 10 he done by independeot persons

other than staH m¢ mbers for Resident itepresentative services performed by rwn- FNI employees and CAD services pe lormed In- 

house by non FNI employres wfirre FNi prowdes worksp ce and equ pment lo perform such srrvlces, thesr services wifl be brlled at

cost times n mtiltiplfer of 2. 0. Thls mnrtup npprorimates the cost to FNI d an FNI employee was performing the same or simllar

scrvites. 



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES
FORnn 1295

1 of 1

Complete Nos. l- a and s if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. l, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING

1 Name of business entiry filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity' s place Certificate Number: 

of business. 2023- 1079264

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

Fort Worth, TX United States Date Filed: 

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 10/ 04/2023

being filed. 

City of Lubbock Date Acknowledged: 

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract. 

17625

Engineering Design Services for Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street

Nature ofinterest
4

Name of Interested Party City, State, Country ( place of business) ( check applicable) 

Controlling Intermediary

Pence, Bob Fort Worth, TX United States X

Coltharp, Brian Fort Worth, TX United States X

Archer, Charles Raleigh, NC United States X

Greer, Alan Fort Worth, TX United States X

Hatley, Tricia Oklahoma City, OK United States X

Johnson, Kevin Dallas, TX United States X

Payne, Jeff Fort Worth, TX United States X

Reedy, Mike Houston, TX United States X

Wolfhope, John Austin, TX United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.  

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is
Pam Fofdtfan , and my date of birth is

My address is $
00 N. Shoreline, Suite 1600N Corpus Christi TX 78401 USA

street) ( city) ( state) ( zip code) ( country) 

I declare under penalry of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed in
Nueces

Counry, State of
Texas , 

on the
4th

day of
October 20 23

month) ( year) 

P - e, 

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entiry
Declarant) 

Forms provided by Texas Ethfcs Commfssion www. ethics. state. tx. us Versfon V3. 5. i.e4ef7e73



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES
FORnn 1295

1 of 1

Complete Nos. 1- 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. i, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING

1 Name of business entiry filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity' s place Certificate Number: 

of business. 2023- 1079264

Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

Fort Worth, TX United States Date Filed: 

2 Name of governmental entiry or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 10/ 04/ 2023

being filed. 

City of LubboCk Date Acknowledged: 

10/ 05/ 2023

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract. 

17625

Engineering Design Services for Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street

Nature ofinterest
4

Name of Interested Party City, State, Country ( place of business) ( check applicable) 

Controlling Intermediary

Pence, Bob Fort Worth, TX United States X

Coltharp, Brian Fort Worth, TX United States X

Archer, Charles Raleigh, NC United States X

Greer, Alan Fort Worth, TX United States X

Hatley, Tricia Oklahoma City, OK United States X

Johnson, Kevin Dallas, TX United States X

Payne, Jeff Fort Worth, TX United States X

Reedy, Mike Houston, TX United States X

Wolfhope, John Austin, TX United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.  

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is
street) ( city) ( state) ( zip code) ( country) 

I declare under penalry of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20

month) ( year) 

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
Declarant) 

Forms provided bv Texas Ethics Commission www. ethics.state.tx. us Version V3. 5. 1. e4ef7e73



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

34TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

58TH ST

50TH ST

50TH ST

A
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

UPLAND

CROSSIN
G

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

W
ESTMONT

ESCONDID
O

RANCH

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

US 6
2/8

2

W
 LO

O
P 289

SPUR 327

66TH ST

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

IN
LE

R 
A

V
E 

   
 F

M
 1

79

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

RE
SE

A
RC

H
 B

LV
D

73RD ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

CITY LIMITS

MILWAUKEE

RID
GE

A
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

59TH ST

Escondido Crossin
g

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

43RD ST

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

50TH ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
EA
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

66TH ST

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
IN

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S 
O

U
T

CITY LIMITS IN

CITY LIMITS OUT

Winghaven Esta
tes

Escondido Crossin
g

Escondido Ranch

Pine Grove Esta
tes

Westm
ont

63RD ST

Santa Fe
 DR

61ST ST

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

E

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 A

V
E

URBANA PL

X
EN

IA
 A

V
E

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V
E

59TH ST

58TH ST

59TH ST

60TH ST

61ST ST

62ND ST

63RD ST

X
EN

IA
 A

V
E

55TH ST

54TH ST

56TH ST

57TH ST ZA
D

A
R 

A
V

E

53RD ST

PO
N

TI
A

C
 A

V
E

55TH ST

56TH ST

57TH ST

51ST ST

Q
U

IN
C

Y
 A

V
E

ESCONDID
O

CROSSIN
G

PIN
E G

ROVE ESTATES

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

US 6
2/8

2



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92824
Capital Project Name: Upland Avenue: 50th St to 66th St - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17625 with Freese and Nichols for Design Services                   1,208,443

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
Amendment 1 - Contract 17625                        63,000
Staff Time                          4,841

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   1,271,443

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Upland Avenue: 50th St to 66th St - 22B Construction                   1,928,557

Remaining Appropriation                                  -

Total Appropriation  $               3,200,000



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 50th Street to 66th Street is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane Principal Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in west Lubbock has
increased traffic demands along the  Upland Avenue corridor from 50th Street to 66th Street.  This thoroughfare  will include
the ult imate  design of a five - lane undiv ided thoroughfare  with curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk
improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justification

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2023-24 $3,200,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 10/2023
Design Completion: 09/2025
Bid for Constuction:09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 05/2027

Upland Ave - 50th to 66th St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $3,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $0 $0 $13,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $13,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $0 $13,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $0 $13,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92824 Upland Ave from 50th Street to
66th Street - 22B

New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 299



 AI# 13245 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0042, for a
request for annexation, from Thomas L. Cooke and Deidra DeAnn Williams
Martin, to annex an area of approximately 407.28 acres, adjacent to the eastern city
limits of the City of Lubbock, north of East Bluefield Street and east of North
Guava Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

Item Summary
On February 11, 2025, the City Council approved a resolution adopting the
Municipal Service Plan for the request, which was agreed upon by the City of
Lubbock and the property owners.

The next step in the voluntary annexation process is to hold a public hearing.
Following the public hearing, the City Council may consider an ordinance
annexing approximately 407.28 acres, adjacent to the eastern city limits of the City
of Lubbock, north of East Bluefield Street and east of North Guava Avenue, into
Lubbock's corporate limits, along with the adjacent right-of-way.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Ordinance - East Bluefield & North Guava 
Municipal Services Plan - East Bluefield & North Guava 
Annexation Map - East Bluefield & North Guava 



Petition - East Bluefield & North Guava 



























































































 AI# 13299 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Purchase Order 23105965, with Essential Equipment, Texas,
LLC, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract No. 120721-RVL, for the purchase
of sewer line camera inspection equipment to verify sewer tap locations and pipe
condition.

Item Summary
This camera equipment will be used to televise sewer lines in order to verify sewer
tap locations and to verify the condition of sewer lines, per Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality requirements.  This informatoin will be used to prioritize
maintenance and capital projects related to the City of Lubbock sewer system.  

This purchase from Essential Equipment TX, LLC, is made through the
cooperative purchasing organization, Sourcewell, Contract No. 120721-RVL in the
amount of $187,737.50.

Fiscal Impact
$186,737.50 for the purchase of camera and equipment is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92701 Major Sewer Line Condition Assessment and Repair. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E. Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 



CIP 92701 - Project Detail 





 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 3/4/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 23105965 OP000
Branch/Plant         6413

ESSENTIAL EQUIPMENT TX, LLC WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 7057 402 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403CONROE TX 77387

Ordered                              .Freight3/4/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 120721-RVLDelivery PER L ALEMAN   REQ. 62913

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
VZP000111 1.000 12,753.0000 EA 12,753.00        6/30/2025

MEPD 6.3KW 120VAC for ford

VZM000100 3.000 648.0000 EA 1,944.00        6/30/2025

Monitor, 17" 4:3

VZM000104 1.000 325.0000 EA 325.00        6/30/2025

Monitor Mount - Double

VZ0000312 1.000 3,051.2500 EA 3,051.25        6/30/2025

KW Reel Cabinet (Standard)

V000021 1.000 900.0000 EA 900.00        6/30/2025

Fiberglass Guide Poles

VZ3POLEBRACKET 1.000 300.0000 EA 300.00        6/30/2025

POLEBRACKET

901601040 1.000 508.0000 EA 508.00        6/30/2025

Pressure Test Set

V9044001 1.000 22,870.0000 EA 22,870.00        6/30/2025

T76 TRACTOR

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lupe Aleman at 806-775-2628 or via email at LAlema@mylubbock.us.



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 3/4/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 23105965 OP000
Branch/Plant         6413

ESSENTIAL EQUIPMENT TX, LLC WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 7057 402 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403CONROE TX 77387

Ordered                              .Freight3/4/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 120721-RVLDelivery PER L ALEMAN   REQ. 62913

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
V9040012 1.000 5,105.0000 EA 5,105.00        6/30/2025

Camera Base CB 3.2S Module

904116031 1.000 7,499.0000 EA 7,499.00        6/30/2025

Remote Elevator T76/86

900410391 1.000 1,227.0000 EA 1,227.00        6/30/2025

T76 Treaded Wheelset for 8"

904401491 1.000 1,345.0000 EA 1,345.00        6/30/2025

Tungsten Carbide Wheel 6"+

900406691 1.000 1,479.0000 EA 1,479.00        6/30/2025

Tungsten Carbide Wheels 8"+

900406690 1.000 1,381.0000 EA 1,381.00        6/30/2025

Pneumatic Tires for KRA75

904100890 1.000 2,036.0000 EA 2,036.00        6/30/2025

X-Lrg Pneum Tires

V1974018 1.000 21,123.2500 EA 21,123.25        6/30/2025

Vehicle Mounted Control

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lupe Aleman at 806-775-2628 or via email at LAlema@mylubbock.us.



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

3Page    -
Date    - 3/4/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 23105965 OP000
Branch/Plant         6413

ESSENTIAL EQUIPMENT TX, LLC WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 7057 402 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403CONROE TX 77387

Ordered                              .Freight3/4/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 120721-RVLDelivery PER L ALEMAN   REQ. 62913

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
RAM-2461U 1.000 38.2500 EA 38.25        6/30/2025

VESA 75 Mounting Plate

RAM-201U-B 1.000 44.9000 EA 44.90        6/30/2025

Double SocketArm

RAM-TRACK-EXA-9BU 1.000 35.2500 EA 35.25        6/30/2025
RAP-354U-TRA1 1.000 33.1000 EA 33.10        6/30/2025

Track Ball

10TS7M 1.000 615.2500 EA 615.25        6/30/2025

 10" Touch Sctreen

GV-N710D3-2GL 1.000 85.0000 EA 85.00        6/30/2025

Graphics Card with HDMI

802975001 1.000 484.0000 EA 484.00        6/30/2025

Cable Cleaning Brush

V8026004 1.000 31,724.0000 EA 31,724.00        6/30/2025

Synchronized Power Cable Reel

80017040 1.000 5,626.0000 EA 5,626.00        6/30/2025

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lupe Aleman at 806-775-2628 or via email at LAlema@mylubbock.us.



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

4Page    -
Date    - 3/4/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 23105965 OP000
Branch/Plant         6413

ESSENTIAL EQUIPMENT TX, LLC WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 7057 402 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403CONROE TX 77387

Ordered                              .Freight3/4/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 120721-RVLDelivery PER L ALEMAN   REQ. 62913

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Camera Cable Type 524/11

904350020 1.000 725.0000 EA 725.00        6/30/2025

Cable Deflection Pully KUV 2.7

802617031 1.000 1,105.0000 EA 1,105.00        6/30/2025

Cable Deflection Pulley KW305/

900300130 1.000 1,347.0000 EA 1,347.00        6/30/2025

Cable Deflection KUV3

800500841 1.000 1,037.0000 EA 1,037.00        6/30/2025

KW Reel foot-operated w switch

V0001017 1.000 7,447.5000 EA 7,447.50        6/30/2025

19" Industrial PC

V0001018 1.000 593.7500 EA 593.75        6/30/2025

Sensoray Non HD Video

CCTV Operator Training 1.000 EA         6/30/2025
MISC 1.000 EA         6/30/2025

 Contract#120721-RVL

MISC 1.000 26,920.0000 EA 26,920.00         6/30/2025

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lupe Aleman at 806-775-2628 or via email at LAlema@mylubbock.us.



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

5Page    -
Date    - 3/4/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 23105965 OP000
Branch/Plant         6413

ESSENTIAL EQUIPMENT TX, LLC WASTEWATER COLLECTION DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 7057 402 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

LUBBOCK TX 79403CONROE TX 77387

Ordered                              .Freight3/4/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 120721-RVLDelivery PER L ALEMAN   REQ. 62913

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Build out Inside if Ford Trans

V4019001 1.000 20,030.0000 EA 20,030.00        6/30/2025

ORION Zoom PAN & TILT

Shipping EA 5,000.00        6/30/2025

NET 30Terms                                                                                                                                     Total Order             186,737.50

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $186,737.50 awarded to Essential Equipment TX, LLC. of Conroe, TX, on 

    . The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated February 6, 2025, from Essential Equipment TX, LLC of Conroe, TX, and Sourcewell Contract #120721-RVL. 

 

Resolution #____________________ 

 

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK:     ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________________  _______________________________________     

Mark McBrayer, Mayor                       Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lupe Aleman at 806-775-2628 or via email at LAlema@mylubbock.us.



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us












City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92701
Capital Project Name: Major Sewer Line Condition Assessment and Repair

92701
Encumbered/Expended

Staff time  $                  39,084
Professional Services                 1,631,342
Amendment 2 to Contract 15282                    949,704
Amendment 3 to Contract 15282                    552,011
Construction Contract to Contract 17076                 4,436,040
Amendment 4 to Contract 15282                    614,999

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
Purchase Order 23105965                    186,738

   Encumbered/Expended to Date                 8,409,918

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Sanitary Sewer System Improvements                 2,889,632

Remaining Appropriation                 2,889,632
Total Appropriation To Date  $           11,299,550



Project Scope

As a companion project to 92657,  this project will provide inspection,  cleaning,  and point  repairs as needed for the  exist ing
Downtown Sanitary  Sewer Interceptor.  A port ion of the  exist ing flow in the  Downtown interceptor will be  routed into a new
interceptor (92657),  while  the  remaining flow will continue in the  exist ing interceptor.  Once the  new interceptor has been
completed and flow in the  exist ing interceptors is reduced,  the  exist ing lines will be  cleaned,  inspected,  and any  point
repairs necessary  will be  made.  This project will he lp ensure  the  downtown area has adaquate  sewer capacity  for exist ing
users and potential new develoment.  

Project Justification

This project was recommended by the Wastewater Collection System Master Plan. The downtown area
continues to redevelop and grow, which ultimately leads to a greater sewer flow within the sewer shed
area. This project increases the reliability and capacity of the sewer shed, and will ensure the
downtown area can be served with sanitary sewer for many years to come. 

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Redevelopment, Community Improvement, Growth
and Development, Fiscal Discipline

FY 2020-21 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0123
FY 2021-22 $3,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2021-O0126
FY 2022-23 $1,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2022-23 $162,116 was appropriated by
BCR# 2023-14
FY 2022-23 $637,434 was appropriated by
BCR# 2023-17
FY 2023-24 $5,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Award Date for Bid - Design: 05/2020
Project Start Date Design: 05/2020
Project End Date Design: 01/2023
Bid Date Construction: 01/2023
Award Date for Construction: 03/2023
Project Start Date for Construction:05/2023
Project End Date for Construction: 06/2025

City-wide

CIP 92701CIP 92701 Major Sewer Line Condition Major Sewer Line Condition
Assessment and RepairAssessment and Repair

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - EngineeringProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering



Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $10,299,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,299,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $6,299,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ARPA Funding $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,299,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0



 AI# 13301 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Consider a resolution authorizing the
mayor to execute Purchase Order 23105947, with James, Cook, Hobson, to
purchase two submersible pumps for use at Lift Station 48 at the Southeast Water
Reclamation Plant.

Item Summary
All wastewater entering the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant first passes
through a lift station to begin the treatment process. Within the lift station, there are
four large submersible pumps that pump water to the headworks area to begin
screening the wastewater. Operation of these four pumps is critical for the
continuous delivery of wastewater to the Plant for initial treatment.

The design of the lift station requires pumps that are manufactured by Flygt, which
have proven their reliability in the wastewater system. As a proactive approach to
prevent wastewater spilling into the adjacent creek, it is important that the
City purchase these pumps to restore full pumping capacity and provide one spare
pump upon failure of an in-service pump.

As shown on the supporting price quote from the sole source vendor, James, Cook,
Hobson (JCH), the approximate lead time to purchase this pump is 12-16 weeks
after receipt of the order. In the event of an in-service failure, it is imperative to
have a replacement pump on standby for immediate exchange, which is easily
accomplished by City staff.

These pumps are an exact replacement that fits the existing piping precisely, and
are available from only one source, JCH. Staff recommends approval of this
Purchase Order for the total cost of $147,370 for these pumps.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 23105947 for $147,370, is funded in Capital Improvements Project



Purchase Order 23105947 for $147,370, is funded in Capital Improvements Project
92803, Water Reclamation Plant Replacement.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
CIP 92803 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92803 - Project Detail 
Sole Source Memo 
Sole Source Letter 











City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92803
Capital Project Name: Water Reclamation Plant Replacement FY 2022-23

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Sewer System Improvements  $               2,553,443
Contract 18013 - Reroof                        48,258
Contract 17422 - Pump Replacement                        43,847
Contract 17034 - Pit Cleaning Services                          5,427

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
PO - JCH - 2 Submersible Pumps                      446,686

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   3,097,661

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction                          2,339

Remaining Appropriation                          2,339

Total Appropriation  $               3,100,000



Project Scope

This project is for the purchase and installation of new equipment, modifying and/or rehabilitating
existing equipment and piping systems. The project also includes other major maintenance activities at
the Southeast (SEWRP) and Northwest Water Reclamation Plants (NWWRP). FY 2024-25 Continue to
replace aging submersible pumps at intermediate lift station, headworks, and lift station 48, new
multistage blower and electrical equipment, and new cameras at the SEWRP. FY 2023-24 Replace aging
submersible pumps at intermediate lift station, headworks, and lift station 48. Replace single stage
blower and new multistage blower for Plant #4, Replace chopper pumps at digester 8 and 9, Replace
Pump Station #2 MCC roof, Replace equalization valve for equalization basin at NWWRP. FY 2022-23 –
Southeast Water Reclamation Plant - Replace one blower on Plant #3. Replace check valves at Lift
Station 48. Primary worm gear replacement. 

Project Justification

Replacing aging infrastructure reduces emergency maintenance expenditures and system failures.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement

FY 2022-23 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2022-23 $100,000 reduced appropriation by
BCR# 2023-7
FY 2023-24 $1,300,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $900,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0128

Project Dates Project Location

Ongoing Maintenance Southeast and Northwest Water Reclamation
Plants

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $3,100,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0

TOTAL $3,100,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $1,800,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0

ARPA Funding $1,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,100,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0

CIP 92803CIP 92803 Water Reclamation Plant Water Reclamation Plant
Replacement FY 2022-23Replacement FY 2022-23

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Greg Baier - Wastewater TreatmentProject Manager: Greg Baier - Wastewater Treatment



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


DATE January 30, 2025

TO Marta Alvarez,
Director of Purchasing and Contract Management

FROM Curtis McDole, Water Operations Maintenance Superintendent

SUBJECT Sole Source Justification

INFORMATION:

This Sole Source request is for the purchase of Flygt submersible pumps manufactured by Xylem
Water Solutions for Flygt. These pumps are manufactured using proprietary methods that are not
available from other sources. James, Cooke, and Hobson, (JCH) is the exclusive authorized
distributor for Flygt pumps used by the City of Lubbock Water Utilities for pump wastewater
from sewer lift stations and into City sewer pipes.



Water Utilities 
Grant Stayberg 
Western Regional Territory Manager 
4109 NE 107th St., Vancouver WA, 98686 
Tel +1.503.706.0601 

September 27, 2024 

Re: Flygt, a Xylem Water Solutions company 

Steven Baldwin 
City of Lubbock WWTP 
3603 Guava Ave 
Lubbock TX   

Dear Mr. Baldwin, 

Xylem Water Solutions, Flygt brand (Flygt) is the manufacturer of Flygt pumps and parts for your 
wastewater process. All equipment, components and parts associated with your Flygt 
equipment should originate from Flygt’s Factories. 

Flygt, A Xylem brand solely uses James, Cooke and Hobson as its only authorized 
representation/direct distributor in New Mexico, Arizona and parts of Nevada (Clark County) 
and Texas territories including Lubbock and Lubbock County. All inquiries regarding Flygt 
equipment and parts as well as service should be routed through James, Cooke and Hobson. 
Below is their contact information. 

This letter is in effect through an indefinite period as per their contract. If there are any changes 
to James, Cooke and Hobson’s contract; Flygt a Xylem brand will provide written notice. 

James, Cooke & Hobson Inc 
102 Nena 
Amarillo, TX 79119 
806/641‐8750 

If there are any questions concerning the above statement please feel free to contact me 

Sincerely, 

Grant Stayberg 

Grant Stayberg 
Western Regional Territory Manager ‐ Water Utilities 



 AI# 13317 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Department of State Health Services Contract
No. HHS001331300015, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the State of Texas Department of State Health Services, under the
Immunization Local Grant Program, to prevent and control the transmission of
vaccine-preventable diseases in children and adults.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant. The purpose of this contract is to prevent and control the
transmission of vaccine-preventable diseases in children and adults, with emphasis
on accelerating strategic interventions to improve their vaccine coverage levels.
Amendment No. 2 increases the contract by $232,115, for the state fiscal year
(SFY) 2026, increasing the contract to $696,345.

The state fiscal year 2026 begins on September 1, 2025, and ends on August 31,
2026. 

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 2 for $232,115 for SFY 2026, increases the amount of this
contract to $696,345. No local match is required for this contract.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 

































 AI# 13295 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute a Professional Services Agreement, and all related documents, by and
between the City of Lubbock Health and Texas Tech University Health Sciences
Center, to provide certain infectious disease healthcare services to the City of
Lubbock Health Department Intermediary Care Clinic.

Item Summary
This agreement allows for Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center
(TTUHSC), through its physicians, to provide infectious disease services for the
City of Lubbock Health Department Intermediary Care Clinic (COLHD).  Services
will include direct patient care for patients with an infectious disease, orpatients
who are in need of an infectious disease consultation.  The agreement further
provides physicians to work at the COLHD Intermediary Care Clinic on scheduled
days. 

COLHD agrees to pay TTUHSC $180 per hour for clinical services. A log of time
spent with a description of the services provided will be kept and maintained for
each time period. 

This agreement is effective from February 15, 2025, through February 14, 2026,
and may be renewed on an annual basis by mutual agreement by both parties from
year to year, for a maximum of 4 additional one-year terms. 

Fiscal Impact
$180 per hour will be funded by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Grant
Funds which are allocated to the Intermediary Care Clinic Project. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Services Agreement 

















 AI# 13306 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement
18708, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock,
Community Development and Lubbock Children’s Health Clinic.

Item Summary
Grantee: Lubbock Children’s Health Clinic
 
Program: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Facility
Improvement
 
Funding Source: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
                            U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
Grant funding
 
Use of Funds: This funding is administered by HUD, and will be used for the
renovation of the North Clinic located at 302 North University, to increase
capacity for patient care, improve service efficiency, and expand the onsite
laboratory, exam rooms, and support services.
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB), at their regular board
meeting on April 10, 2024, made a recommendation to the City Council to approve
the 2024 – 2025 Annual Action Plan. The City Council approved the CDSB
recommendation on April 23, 2024.
 
CDSB, at their regular board meeting on November 20, 2024, approved allocation
to the Lubbock Children’s Health Clinic, for the above-mentioned use of funds.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund.  The funds used originate from



There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund.  The funds used originate from
HUD, and the maximum allocation to LCHC is $400,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 

















































 AI# 13271 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute a Community Development Funding Contract 18723, and all
related documents, with Lutheran Social Services of the South, Inc., to provide
utility assistance to qualified low-income persons and families through the
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program, administered by Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs.

Item Summary
Grantee:Lutheran Social Services of the South, Inc. (LSSS), aka Neighborhood
House
 
Funding source: 2025 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) from
the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA)
 
Use of funds: 1) Provide an application process and approve qualified individuals
and households for energy assistance. 2) Report the funding amount that is eligible
for payment to Community Development, to give approval for payment of energy
bills only, as well as repair or replacement of existing heating and cooling units for
citizens of Lubbock County.
 
Allocation: $180,000
 
Terms: January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025, with the option to extend time up to
6 months, as determined by TDHCA.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund for this contract. The funds used
originate from TDHCA. The grant funding amount allocated to LSSS for the
CEAP program is $180,000.



Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 





























 AI# 13303 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 28. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute a Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement
18709, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock,
Community Development and Children’s Advocacy Center, for funding to replace
the parking garage roof at 720 Texas Avenue.

Item Summary
Grantee: Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC)
 
Program: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Facility
Improvement
 
Funding Source: (CDBG), which is administered by the U.S. Department of
Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
 
Use of Funds: Funding to replace the roof on the Child Advocacy Center (CAC)
primary parking garage, which provides a private and handicapped entrance or exit
from the building and back entrance for staff, clients, and professional services 
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB), at their regular board
meeting on April 10, 2024, made a recommendation to the City Council to approve
the 2024 – 2025 Annual Action Plan. The City Council approved the CDSB
recommendation on April 23, 2024.
 
The CDSB, at their regular board meeting on November 20, 2024, approved
allocation to the CAC for the above-mentioned Use of Funds.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The funds used originate from HUD,



There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The funds used originate from HUD,
and the maximum allocation to CAC is $70,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 

















































 AI# 13305 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 29. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18761, with RS&H, Inc., and Contract 18543, with Parkhill, for
Architectural/Engineering Services at Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport.

Item Summary
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport issued a Request for Qualifications
(RFQ) seeking professional architectural/engineering (A/E) services from
multi-discipline A/E firms for the design and preparation of plans, and
specifications, and support services for various airport improvement projects.

These projects include, but are not limited to, preliminary design, engineering
phase activities, final design, bidding, and construction administration services, for
airport capital projects expected or anticipated during the next 5 years. The RFQ
includes projects identified in the 5-year Airport Capital Improvement Plan.
 
The majority of the airport construction and development projects are subject to
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) funding and approval. The selected firm(s)
will assist in the grant application process, prepare project budgets and estimates of
probable costs, provide contractor pay estimates, hold progress meetings, and other
requested services.
 
Four contractors responded to RFQ 25-18543-TF. An evaluation committee
reviewed the qualifications based on the following criteria:
  

• Project Team Organization and Qualifications - 30%;
• Experience on Similar Projects - 30%;
• Project Approach - 30%; and,
• Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ - 10%.



Qualifications were ranked as follows.
  

Contractor Points
RS&H, Inc., Dallas, Texas 90.33
Parkhill, Lubbock, Texas 88.33
Garver, Little Rock, Arkansas 83.33
Amtech Solutions, Inc., Plano, Texas 25.67

The evaluation committee recommends contract awards to the two highest ranked
firms, RS&H, Inc. of Dallas, Texas, and Parkhill of Lubbock, Texas. Projects will
be assigned as follows:
 
Parkhill and RS&H, Inc. Team: 

Extend Taxiway L and Cargo Apron Expansion. (Construction phase services
only. Design services completed under previous contract)
Rehabilitate Taxiway M
Reconstruct, rehabilitate, realign, and /or strengthen other taxiway(s)

RS&H, Inc.: 
Replace/Rehabilitate West Side General Aviation (GA) Ramp. Analyze and
recommend alternatives for rehabilitating West Side GA Ramp
Replace Terminal Building Boilers
Parking Facility Improvements, (to include parking garage maintenance,
parking booth repair/replacement, joint seal repair/replacement, and potential
design of new facility)

 Parkhill: 
Replace Passenger Boarding Bridges (construction phase services only)
Rehabilitate/Reconstruct Perimeter Road (construction phase services only)
Taxiway N Pump Station. Analyze and recommend alternatives for water
retention mitigation
East Side General Aviation Ramp Improvements

While the City anticipates the projects will be undertaken within the next 5 years,
the City reserves the right to withdraw any or all projects from the list at any time,
at its sole discretion, or substitute other projects not previously anticipated. The
contract term will be for 5 years. Project scope and fees will be negotiated and
presented as each project is programmed, and as funding becomes available.



Fiscal Impact
These contracts have no current fiscal impact. Individual project scope and fee
proposals will be considered as each project is initiated.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - RS&H, Inc. Contract 18761 
Contract 18761 - RS&H, Inc. 
Resolution Parkhill Contract 18543 
Contract 18543 - Parkhill 































































































































































































 AI# 13316 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 30. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18651, with FMG Construction Group, LLC, for Second Floor
Renovations at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Due to funding restrictions, the second floor of the Airport was not included in the
recent terminal building remodel. This project focuses on technological
improvements to the meeting rooms, as well as aesthetic improvements to the
entire second floor. An Invitation to Bid (ITB) was issued for the renovations.

The base bid scope of work for the project is as follows:  
Selective Demolition;
Interior Paint;
Tile Carpeting;
Acoustical Tile Ceilings;
Resilient Base and Accessories;
IT, Network and Video Conferencing Upgrades; and
Replacement of Select Light Fixtures. 

In response to ITB 25-18651-AE, bids were received from the following
companies.
  

Contractor Amount
FMG Construction Group, LLC, Houston, Texas $754,300
WR Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $827,000
Henthorn Commercial Construction, Lubbock, Texas $849,000
Tommy Klein Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $857,919
Tegrity Contractors, Inc., Allen, Texas $1,115,777



Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend the contract award to the
lowest responsible bidder, FMG Construction Group, LLC of Houston, Texas, for
$754,300.
 
The Second Floor Renovations will take 150 calendar days to complete. The
amount of liquidated damages for each additional calendar day is $1,500.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18651, with FMG Construction Group, LLC, for $754,300, is
funded in Capital Improvement Project 92859 - Terminal Building Second Floor
Renovations.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - FMG Construction Group, LLC 
Contract FMG Construction Group, LLC 
CIP 92859 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92859 - Project Detail 
Project Summary - ITB 25-18651-AE 











City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
March 25, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92859
Capital Project Name: Terminal Building - 2nd Floor

Renovations

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Agenda Item March 25, 2025
FMG Construction Group,LLC Contract 18651            754,300

RS&H, Inc. Amendment 17  - Contract 15200            148,566
  Encumbered/Expended To Date            902,866

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation            194,602
  Remaining Appropriation            194,602

Total Appropriation  $     1,097,468



Project Scope

The project encompasses technology upgrades to enable remote work and meetings for airport
personnel (Administration, Police, and Operations), as well as tenants, patrons, and the airport advisory
board. Additionally, the project includes aesthetic enhancements such as paint, ceiling upgrades, and
carpeting to improve the overall ambiance and functionality of the second-floor space.

Project Justification

By focusing on technology improvements, the project aims to modernize the workspace and enhance
productivity by facilitating remote work and meetings, aligning with evolving work practices.
Furthermore, investing in aesthetic enhancements such as painting, ceiling upgrades, and carpeting will
not only improve the visual appeal of the space but also contribute to creating a more conducive and
comfortable environment for occupants, ultimately enhancing overall efficiency and satisfaction.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Growth & Development

FY 2023-24 $1,097,468 was appropriated by
2024-O0060

Project Dates Project Location

Second Floor (upper level) improvements - to
include upgrades to meeting room IT capabilities
as well as overall aesthetic improvements (paint,
flooring, restroom, fixtures, etc.)
RS&H Selected through 5-year master architecture
and engineering contract.
Design Negotiation: April-May 2024
Design Contract Award: June 2024
Bid: December 2024
Award Date - Construction: March 2025
Project Start Date - Construction: April 2025
Project End Date - Construction: September 2026

5401 N. Martin Luther King Boulevard, Lubbock,
TX 79403

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $1,097,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,097,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $1,097,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,097,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92859CIP 92859 Terminal Building - 2nd Floor Terminal Building - 2nd Floor
RenovationsRenovations

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance
Project Manager: Kelly CampbellProject Manager: Kelly Campbell  - Aviation Maintenance- Aviation Maintenance



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/




 AI# 13318 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 31. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution confirming that the
City of Lubbock has no objection to the proposed 4% Non-Competitive Housing
Tax Credit application to be submitted to the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs, for the Hillcrest Manor Apartments, located at 1102 North
Memphis Avenue in Lubbock, Texas. 

Item Summary
The Non-Competitive Housing Tax Credit (HTC) Program is funded by the U.S.
Treasury Department and is overseen by the Internal Revenue Service. Federal
regulations guiding the program can be found in Internal Revenue Code Section
42. The Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA)
administers the program for the State of Texas.

The HTC Program was designed to provide a source of equity financing for the
development and preservation of affordable multifamily housing. The goal is to
maximize the number of affordable units in the state's housing supply and ensure
the supply is well maintained and operated. With the 4% HTC funding, the
applicant plans to invest $45,000 per unit to rehabilitate the 220 units within the
property. 

Tenants earning up to 60% of the Area Median Family Income (AMFI) for the area
for their household size, and who meet the screening and eligibility restrictions of
the property, may qualify for a reduced rent unit. HTC units offer income-qualified
tenants a unit at a reduced rate that is restricted by annually publishing rent
guidelines, which may increase or decrease annually, based on published units. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director

Attachments
Resolution 







 AI# 13298 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 32. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Human Resources: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute the Plan Document for the existing Health Reimbursement Arrangement,
for the purpose of allowing retirees to obtain reimbursement of eligible medical
expenses incurred by the retiree and their family members.

Item Summary
Compared to the 2018 Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan Document, the
2025 Plan Document has been updated to remove reference to a specific third-party
administrator. It defines "Provider," which had not been defined in the 2018 Plan
Document.

The Plan is intended to qualify as a Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA), as
that term is defined under IRS Notice 2002-45, and a medical reimbursement plan
under Sections 105 and 106 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
The Plan will be interpreted at all times in a manner consistent with such
intent. The Plan will reimburse Participants for, or pay on a Participant's behalf,
Health Care Expenses, up to the balance in the Participant's HRA Account.

Participants are City of Lubbock retirees who have reached age 65 and are no
longer eligible to participate in the City's retiree medical benefits program. The
City allocates a monthly stipend of $150.00 to each Participant's Health
Reimbursement Arrangement account. A Participant will be entitled to
reimbursement/payment under this Plan, only for Health Care Expenses incurred
after he or she becomes a Participant in the Plan and before his or her Participation
has ceased. In no event will any benefits under this Plan be provided in the form of
cash or any other taxable or nontaxable benefit, other than reimbursement/payment
for Health Care Expenses.

Fiscal Impact
None



None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Elizabeth Lara, Director of Human Resources

Attachments
Resolution - Plan Document for Health Reimbursement Arrangement 
Plan Document for Health Reimbursement Arrangement 





































 AI# 13217 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 33. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Professional Services Agreement, Contract 18678, with Parkhill, to
provide Engineering and Design Services for a new pump station and irrigation
system at the Lubbock Cemetery.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Department recommends entering into
a professional services agreement with Parkhill for the design and engineering of a
new pump station and irrigation system at the Lubbock Cemetery. This agreement
will span 24 months and include project and construction administration services. 

The need for this project stems from the poor condition of the current irrigation.
Aging infrastructure can, and has, led to inefficiencies, increased maintenance
costs, and potential failures that could compromise the cemetery's appearance and
functionality. 

Staff recommends execution of this professional service agreement based upon fair
and reasonable fees agreed to, for a total not to exceed amount of $285,000, and a
contract time of 24 months.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18678 in the amount of $285,000, is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92889, Cemetery Irrigation System.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Colby VanGundy, Director of Parks and Recreation

Attachments



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 









































































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

-$               

Agenda Item March 25, 2025

Parkhill, Contract 18678 285,000         

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 285,000         

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Engineering and Design 1,715,000      

  Remaining Appropriation 1,715,000      

Total Appropriation 2,000,000$    

Cemetery Irrigation System

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

March 25, 2025

92889



Project Scope

Design, procurement, and install of a new irrigation system, including a high-efficiency pump and a
weather-resistant pump house, to supply water from Dunbar Lake to the City of Lubbock Cemetery. This
project includes trenching, laying underground piping, obtaining necessary permits, and conducting
performance testing, along with training Cemetery staff on operation and maintenance.

Project Justification

The irrigation system at the City of Lubbock Cemetery was installed in the 1970s and has been
repeatedly repaired and retrofitted over the years. It is now beyond repair and no longer functions
reliably. Installing a new irrigation system, including an updated pump and pump house to draw water
from Dunbar Lake, is essential. This will ensure a dependable water supply and that the cemetery
grounds are maintained efficiently.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement - This project will
upgrade the Cemetery's infrastructure and allow
for the Cemetery grounds to receive adequate
water throughout the year.

FY 2024-25 $2,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0128

Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date for Design: TBD
Construction Completion: TBD

City of Lubbock Cemetery

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

General Fund Tax Notes $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92889CIP 92889 Cemetery Irrigation System  Cemetery Irrigation System 
Upgrades/Major MaintenanceUpgrades/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Ben Perry - Parks and RecreationProject Manager: Ben Perry - Parks and Recreation

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13321 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 34. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Contract 18669, with SRH Landscapes LLC, for landscape maintenance
services for the City of Lubbock facilities.

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for landscape maintenance services for
City Facilities, which include mowing, edging, trimming, fertilization, pesticide
application, and tree maintenance.

In response to RFP 25-18669 -YB, proposals were received from eight
contractors. The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: Price - 20
points, Staffing Plan - 15 points, Equipment Inventory - 30 points, and
Maintenance Guideline Plan - 35 points. The maximum point value is 100 points.

After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Points
SRH Landscapes LLC, Lubbock, Texas   89.00
Green World Care, Inc., Dallas, Texas 74.86
Fando Landscaping and Lawncare LLC, Flower Mound, Texas 74.06
Green Plains Design, Wolfforth, Texas 73.89
Reeder Landscape, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 73.66
Eco-Blade LLC, Houston Texas 69.01
M3 Landscape Maintenance & Irrigation LLC, Midland, Texas 53.91
Powerhouse Lawn and Landscape, Wolfforth, Texas 40.66



Staff recommends awarding the contract to the highest ranked proposal, SRH
Landscapes LLC of Lubbock, Texas, for an annual contract amount of
$362,185.20. The contract is for a term of one year, with the option of 4, one-year
extensions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18669 for up to $362,185.20, with SRH Landscapes LLC, is funded in the
Parks and Recreation Department Operating Budget, as approved by the City
Council.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Colby VanGundy, Director of Parks and Recreation

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary Sheet 





 

                                                                                                                                      Contract 18669 
City of Lubbock, TX 

Mowing Services for  

City of Lubbock Properties 

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the      day of                          2025 

(“Effective Date”) by and between  SRH Landscapes LLC  (the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the 

“City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 25-18669-YB, Mowing Services for City 

of Lubbock Properties and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal which best 

meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide Mowing Services 

for City of Lubbock Properties, upon terms and conditions maintained in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 

Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of 

inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement 

2. Exhibit A – General Requirements        

3. Exhibit B – Price Proposal Sheet 

4. Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall execute services 

as the named provider. The Contractor shall comply with all the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit 

B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1  

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 

extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 

automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 

terminate the Contract. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be determined 

by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and 

resulting contract. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the 

term of this contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to 

ensure that valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management 

Department as required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 

 

1.2 Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The 

rate may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index 



 

(CPI) or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. Further, if the Contractor can provide 

documentation for actual charges for material, labor, etc. that demonstrates that the change 

in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide such documentation to the City, 

and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be further adjusted. If agreement 

regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate at the end of the current 

contract period.  If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must 

provide the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly 

documentation to justify the ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely 

received, the rate will automatically revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

1.3 The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any 

interest in the Agreement, whatsoever, without prior consent of the City.  

1.4 All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds 

by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the 

Agreement, the City will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other 

liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this Agreement is spent, whichever 

event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 

Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the contractor on 30 days prior written notice, 

but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under 

this Agreement beyond the date of termination. 

1.5 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration 

date, (2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day 

written notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the 

next lowest and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 

accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 

Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 

Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 

parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or modification of the terms of 

this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by 

both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of 

any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not 

constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 



 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 

respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the 

City to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated 

between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the 

claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the 

aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies 

available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 

reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to 

the City under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or 

overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such 

overpayments within 30 days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the 

right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 

of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process 

prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein 

are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any 

conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this do.  

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent 

be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 

from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements document, this 

provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 

fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 

descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 

Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 

agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 

agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 

fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 

descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 

Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 

agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 

agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.14 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 



 

prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 

Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 

Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.15 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 

terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 

requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 

applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information 

related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 

governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 

body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 

of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 

either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 

information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 

applicable to the governmental body. 

2.16   No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be 

paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 

may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 

contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) 

will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 

the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 

10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or 

more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does 

not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 

Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity 

determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s 

constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 
 

2.18 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) 

it does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  

or  directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) 

the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply 

to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this 

Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to 

Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 

directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 

discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

 



 

2.19 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the 

City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 

third parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

2.20 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Lubbock and its 

elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, 

claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 

injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person 

or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent 

acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the 

performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 

city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 

or termination of this agreement. 

 

 

 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-----





City of Lubbock, TX 

RFP 25-18669-YB 

Mowing Services for  

City of Lubbock Properties 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

INTENT 

The Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in the specifications. The Contractor shall 

comply with all the applicable requirements set forth herein.  

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS

1.1. Agent – An employee of the City of Lubbock, who is appointed by the City to monitor the 

work and actions of the Contractor. 

1.2. City – The City of Lubbock, Texas, municipal corporation in Lubbock County, Texas. 

1.3. City Council – City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

1.4. Contract – The contract consists of the following:  Notice to bidders; General Provisions; 

Specifications; Plans; Addenda; Bid; Agreement; Insurance; Encumbrance; Notice to 

Proceed; and Change Orders.  These form the agreement whereby the Contractor shall 

furnish all labor, equipment, tools, materials, and perform all work necessary to 

satisfactorily accomplish the proposed plan, sponsored by the City. 

1.5. Contract Time – The number of allowable days to complete the contract. 

1.6. Contractor – The individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, or corporation contracting 

with the City to perform work. 

1.7. Cycle – The period in which each service is completed. 

1.8. Director of Parks and Recreation – The individual who shall act on the City’s behalf and 

appoint an Agent to ensure compliance with the contract requirements, such as but not 

limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery. 

1.9. Excluded Damage – Damage caused by vandalism, pedestrians, vehicles, animals (except 

insects and/or rodents), or other unusual factors.  It does not include damage caused by the 

Contractor’s actions, lack of reasonable care, pest damage (such as insects), diseases or 

plant loss due to lack of water caused by an irrigation system programming error, irrigation 

system breakage or irrigation malfunction.   

     Exhibit A



1.10. Extra Work – Work over and above that is called for in the contract. 

 

1.11. Mayor – The duly appointed official of the City of Lubbock, Texas, who is empowered by 

the City Charter to enter into a contract on behalf of the City. 

 

1.12. Notice to Proceed – Written notice to the Contractor issued and signed by the authorized 

Agent stating the date on which the Contractor should proceed with work as stated in the 

contract. 

 

1.13. Review Committee – A committee chosen by the City of Lubbock, to analyze and 

recommend to City Council the best Contractor(s) to perform the tasks governed by the 

contract. 

 

1.14. Specifications – The directions, provisions, and requirements pertaining to the method and 

manner of performing the work or to the quality of the materials and equipment to be 

furnished under the contract. 

 

1.15. Subcontractor – Any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation licensed or otherwise 

authorized by law to do business in Texas, to whom the Contractor, with written consent 

of the City, sublets a part of the work. 

 

1.16. Surety – The corporation, partnership or individual, duly authorized and admitted to do 

business in Texas and licensed by the State of Texas to issue surety bonds, who is bound 

with and for the Contractor to assume legal liability for the faithful performance of the 

contract. 

 

1.17. Unit Price – Payment to the Contractor based on a unit or portion of the work performed. 

 

1.18. Work – All work, including the furnishing of staff, equipment, materials, and other 

incidentals necessary for the performance of the contract.  All work will be in the public 

right-of-way per attached. 

 

1.19. Properties – May be added or deleted as needed. 

 

2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

2.1. Work:  It is the intent for the Contractor to provide for completion in every detail the work 

described herein.  The Contractor shall provide all labor, tools, transportation, materials, 

and equipment necessary to complete the work in accordance with specifications provided 

and terms of the contract.  The attached “City Facilities” indicates the completed 

landscaped areas.  Bidders are to provide unit pricing that will be applied to 

landscaped areas completed and accepted for maintenance. Unit pricing should be 

separated out by description.    

 

2.2.  Specification Change: During the term of the Contract, the City may change maintenance 

frequencies, thereby increasing or decreasing maintenance frequencies.  Unit pricing will 

be used to determine cost adjustments.  All changes shall be in writing. 

 



 2.3   Changed Condition:  If the Contractor finds latent conditions which differ from those 

outlined in the contract or specifications which differ from customary work, and which 

the Contractor could not have discovered during the investigation of the site prior to the 

bid, and in which such condition increased the expense to the Contractor, immediate 

written notice shall be promptly mailed to the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 
Agent.  The Contractor shall afford the City the opportunity to inspect the same.  After 

inspection by the City, the Contractor shall not delay work pending a decision to be made 

by the City regarding the claim.  Failure of the Contractor to give prompt written notice 

and afford the City the opportunity to inspect the condition, before it is disturbed, shall be 

deemed a waiver by the Contractor of all claims and extra compensation arising out of the 

alleged condition. 

 

If the Director of Parks and Recreation or the Agent determine that the Contractor is 

entitled to extra compensation by reason of increased expense to the Contractor and caused 

by the condition, and find that the condition requires work not covered in the contract, a 

change order may be executed for additional compensation which shall be agreed upon by 

all parties involved and approved by the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent.  

Additional time may be granted if the City deems additional time is necessary to 

accomplish the job.  No change order or combination of change orders shall exceed 

twenty-five percent (25%) of the total contract. 

 

2.4. Clean-up:  As specified in the specifications, all work shall be cleaned up and waste 

materials removed from the site.  No equipment shall be left at maintenance sites and all 

material removed from the job shall be at the Contractor’s expense.  If materials or waste 

are not removed from the site, written notification from the Agent shall be delivered to the 

Contractor.  The Contractor shall have forty-eight (48) hours to remove the material in 

question.  If the material in question is not removed in the forty-eight (48) hour period, 

the City shall remove the material, and the Contractor shall be charged for the expense.  

Payment to the City for said expenses shall be deducted for the Contractor’s payment.  If 

such conditions continue, the contract may be terminated due to breach of contract. 

 

2.5. Preservation and Restoration of Property:  The Contractor is responsible for the 

preservation of all City owned and adjacent property owner lands of which the Contractor 

may come into contact with.  The Contractor shall use every precaution necessary to 

prevent damage to trees, shrubs, above and below ground structures, utilities and any other 

form of property.  Should damage occur, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to report the 

damage to the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent as soon as possible but not 

exceeding twenty-four (24) hours from the time damage occurred.  If damage occurs as a 

result of Contractor’s actions, the Contractor shall be held responsible to repair or replace 

the damaged property at their own expense.  Time required to repair damaged property 

shall be expedient and to the approval of the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 

Agent.  If the damage is not repaired in the agreed upon time period, the City may after 

forty-eight (48) hour notice from the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent, 

proceed to repair the damage.  The Contractor shall be held financially responsible for the 

repair work and the cost shall be deducted from the Contractor’s payment. 

 

2.6. Equipment: The Contractor shall provide everything necessary to fulfill the 

requirements of this contract.  All equipment shall meet all applicable federal, state and 

local laws and regulations.  Contractors’ equipment is subject to inspection and approval 



of the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent. All manufacturers’ safety features 

must be operational, in good repair and in proper positions during operation.  All 

equipment shall be professional grounds maintenance quality and in good condition 

throughout the course of the contract.  If the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 

Agent deems the equipment faulty or if the equipment is damaging the turf or other 

surfacing materials in any way, the Contractor shall remove the equipment from the 

premises.  Contractor shall not impede other grounds maintenance operations during the 

course of those maintenance operations.  

 

2.7. Service Boundaries:  The service area may be bounded by hard surfacing materials, 

sidewalks, or non-curbed turf areas.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all areas 

defined by turf or hard surfacing.  However, the Contractor is not responsible for edging 

of un-curbed turf.  Although the mowing Contractors are required to operate mowing 

equipment in a manner that directs the clippings away from plant beds, the nature of 

mowing equipment will at times allow some clipping debris to drop into planting areas.   

 

2.8.  Termination of Contract:  This contract shall remain in effect until the expiration date   

for performance of services ordered.  Termination of either party requires a thirty (30) 

day written notice prior to any cancellation.  Such written notice must state the reason for 

cancellation.  The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to 

the next best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the City. 

 

3. CONTROL OF WORK 

 

3.1. Authority of the Director of Parks and Recreation:  It is understood by all parties that 

the work is to be done to the satisfaction of the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 

authorized Agent(s).  The Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent shall interpret 

all specifications and shall determine the acceptability of all work. The Director of Parks 

and Recreation or their Agent shall decide the classification, quality, amount of all work 

done under the contract, shall be the sole administrator of payments, and his or her 

decision shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties. 

 

3.2. Authority of the Agent:  The Director of Parks and Recreation may appoint an Agent or 

Agents to serve as an inspector.  The Agent(s) shall be allowed to inspect all work at any 

time.  The Agent shall not be allowed to alter, revise, add, or delete anything from the 

contract or specifications.  An Agent’s duties shall include keeping the Director of Parks 

and Recreation notified as to the progress of the job and the procedures involved in 

completing the job.  The Agent shall call to the attention of the Director of Parks and 

Recreation and the Contractor any deviation of contract or specifications, but failure of 

the Agent or of the Director of Parks and Recreation to call to the attention of the 

Contractor any deviation of the contract or specifications shall not constitute acceptance 

of said work.  The Agent shall have the authority to suspend any work pending a decision 

by the Director of Parks and Recreation. 

 

3.3. Extra Work:  Extra work being done by the Contractor without authorization through 

change orders, or work which is not shown on the contract or specifications, shall be 

considered as unauthorized work; and if performed shall be at the risk of the Contractor.  

The Director of Parks and Recreation reserves all rights to refuse payment for such work. 

 



3.4. Unauthorized Work:  All work and/or materials which do not conform to the contract 

and specifications, and work done contrary to written instructions of the Agent or 

Director of Parks and Recreation shall be done at the expense of the Contractor.  The 

Contractor may be ordered to remove or remedy such work at its own expense.  If 

Contractor damages adjacent property, the Contractor shall remedy such property at its 

own expense.  

 

3.5     Final Inspection:  Final inspection of the site shall take place by the Director of Parks 

and Recreation or their appointed Agent as soon as possible after the completion of the 

project.  If the project is completed in cycles, the project shall be inspected after each 

cycle by the Agent.  The Contractor shall be allowed to be present at the examination.  

If the inspection reveals any defective work, the Director of Parks and Recreation or 

their Agent may require the work to be remedied before final acceptance is granted.  All 

said remedies shall be at the expense of the Contractor. 

 

3.6.  Laws and Regulations:  The Contractor and any Subcontractor(s) shall at all times 

comply with all local, county, state and federal laws.  The Contractor and any 

Subcontractor shall abide by all Labor Laws observed by the State of Texas.  The 

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local Environmental Protection Laws, 

and regulations.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws and regulations regarding pollution of rivers, lakes, streams and other waters.  The 

Contractor shall store, handle, use and dispose of chemicals, fuels, oils, greases and other 

materials in a manner that prevents them from entering surface or ground waters.  Upon 

receipt of notice of noncompliance of environmental protection provisions, the 

Contractor shall take immediate corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  If the 

Contractor fails or refuses to immediately take corrective action, the City may issue an 

order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. 

 

A. Prior to any application of chemicals, the Contractor shall request, in writing, 

approval from the Director of Parks and Recreation or his Agent.  The request shall 

include the target pest and the type of chemical(s) to be used.  If permission is granted, 

all applications shall be performed through a Licensed Applicator, licensed by the Texas 

Structural Pest Control Board and/or the Texas Department of Agriculture.  Upon 

completion of the operation, the Contractor shall provide to the Director of Parks and 

Recreation or their Agent, a copy of the Pesticide Application Documentation that the 

Contractor records pursuant to the requirements of the Structural Pest Control Board. 

 

3.7. Advertising:  Contractor shall not advertise or publish, without City’s prior consent, the 

fact that the City has entered into this contract, except to the extent necessary to comply 

with proper request for information from an authorized representative or the federal, 

state or local government. 

 

3.8. Citizen Contact:  The Contractor is granted the privilege of doing work on Park 

property but does not have exclusive use of the property and must respect the activities 

of patrons while doing work on Park property.  The Contractor shall take all precautions 

necessary to insure that adjacent property owners are not disturbed.  

 

3.9. Identification and Character:  Contractor’s vehicles shall be marked with the 

Contractor’s company name, on both sides and in lettering that is a minimum of two 



inches tall and of an easily read typeface.  In lieu of lettering, Contractors may submit 

easily recognizable Company Logos for approval by the Director of Parks and 

Recreation.  All employees of the Contractor shall have a name badge for identification, 

either clip on or incorporated with a uniform.  This identification shall be worn at all 

times that the employee is at the job site.  The Contractor shall provide uniforms of a 

different color than City employee uniforms.  Uniforms may not be torn or ragged and 

shall present a professional appearance.  Additionally, the Contractor will at all times 

require employees to remain fully dressed and will not allow employees to wear 

unbuttoned clothing while on City property. 

 

A. The Contractor shall prohibit the use of intoxicating substances by its drivers and 

crewmembers while on duty or in the course of performing their duties under this 

Contract. 

 

B. Employees driving the Contractor’s vehicles shall at all times possess and carry a 

valid State of Texas Driver’s License appropriate for the weight and type of vehicle 

being driven.  Contractors are specifically required to ensure that a Texas 

Commercial Driver’s License is obtained where applicable for the type(s) of 

vehicles in use. 

 

C. The Contractor’s employees, officers, Agents and Subcontractors shall, at no time, 

be allowed to identify themselves or in any way represent themselves as being 

employees of the City of Lubbock. 

 

3.10. Safety:  The Contractor is responsible for maintaining a safety program that insures 

compliance with all current requirements of the Federal Occupational Safety and Health 

Act of 1970.  The Contractor is responsible for safety on the project site and the City 

shall take no action to interfere with the Contractor’s safety program.  Failure to maintain 

compliant with this act shall be grounds for termination of the contract. 

 

4. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS OF WORK 
 

A. Notice to Proceed:  Notice to proceed shall be mailed to the Contractor by certified letter.  The 

Contractor shall have ten (10) working days from the day he receives the letter to actively proceed 

with the work. 

 

B. Contract Time:  All work is schedule driven, therefore, the Contractor’s work force and 

equipment needs shall vary throughout the contract’s time period.  The normal work schedule shall 

fall within the time frame of Monday through Friday 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

 

C. Weekends, Holidays and Nights:  Work on weekends, holidays, and nights shall be at the 

discretion of the Contractor.   

 

D. Weather:  Weather will affect the progress of grounds maintenance at times and Contractor shall 

recognize this and have a plan of action and/or resources available to proceed in an expedient 

manner.  Should weather conditions alter schedules, the Contractor shall notify the Agent at the 

beginning of the next workday.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to provide quality 

workmanship.  If weather conditions prevent such quality, the Contractor shall suspend work and 

resume work as soon as weather allows.  If the Agent or Director of Parks and Recreation finds 



that weather conditions are inappropriate for maintaining high quality work, they may notify the 

Contractor and suspend work.  The suspension of work by the Agent or Director of Parks and 

Recreation shall not in any way allow the Contractor to find grounds for adjustments in contract 

time or provide for extra compensation. 

 

E. Character of Work:  All workers, supervisors, managers, and Subcontractor(s) employed by the 

Contractor shall be competent and careful workers skilled in their respective trades.  The Director 

of Parks and Recreation or their Agent may remove from the work site any person employed by 

the Contractor who does not represent the City in a professional manner or does not follow the 

instructions given to him.  If any person misconducts themselves, is incompetent, or negligent in 

the performance of their duties, they may be removed from the work site and shall not return until 

the Contractor receives written consent from the City’s Representative.  Should the Contractor 

continue to employ such individual to continue work under this contract, the City reserves the 

right to withhold payment and/or nullify the contract. 

 

F. Assigning or Subletting the Contract:  The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or 

any portion of the contract, without written consent from the Director of Parks and Recreation or 

his Agent.  The City’s permission to sublet any contract shall not be construed as making the City 

a party of such subcontract.  No Subcontractor shall release the Contractor of its surety or its 

liability and obligation to fulfill all transactions made under the contract.  Should consent be given, 

the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all Insurance requirements contained in paragraphs, 1.0-1.7, 

Indemnity Insurance. 

 

G. Payment:  The Contractor shall receive compensation for services provided for in the contract on 

a monthly basis.  Upon the end of each month, during the contract period, the Contractor shall 

submit an invoice to the Parks and Recreation Director for services provided during the month.  

Any Extra Work shall be shown on the same monthly invoice and identified as “Extra Work.”  

Extra Work billing should designate turf maintenance, planting maintenance, woody plant bed 

maintenance cost and a description of the work performed.   Payment shall be determined by the 

form included in this package on Bid Table and approved by the Parks and Recreation Director. 

 

5. SCOPE OF WORK 

The RFP is to provide ground maintenance services as defined below.  Please note that not all properties 

will require all the services listed.  For detailed information, please refer to Attachment A as attached.  

The City reserves the right to add or delete properties.  Any addition or deletion of properties that results 

in an increase or decrease in the scope of work will cause an adjustment to the unit price, which will be 

used to modify the contract accordingly.  The contractor must use the pay request from to request 

payment.  

 

5.1. Turf Maintenance:  

A. Mowing of all turf areas, bagging of any grass clippings; edging of all turf areas 

along walkways and parking areas, removal of all edging debris from hardscape 

areas. All collected materials to be properly disposed to approved landfills. This 

activity is to be completed once in a seven (7) day cycle, 32 cycles March through 

October. 



5.2. Overseeding: 

A. Fall Rye Seeding: Overseed in September with perennial rye grass seed at 

10lbs/1,000sqft for all designated turf areas. This is to be followed by an increase 

in watering schedule until germination. 

B. Mowing should occur once on a fourteen (14) day cycle while waiting for grass to 

germinate.  

5.3.  Trash/Litter Removal:  

A. Trash/litter collection and removal from all turf areas, flower and shrub beds, tree 

wells and canopies, trash receptacles, walkways and parking areas. All trash/litter 

to be removed from the property before any mowing/trimming activities take place. 

This activity is to be completed once in a seven (7) day cycle, 52 cycles total. All 

collected materials to be properly disposed of. 

5.4. Planting Bed Maintenance: 

A.  Maintenance schedule for November through February – Remove litter/tree leaves; 

remove failed plants; schedule necessary replantings; monitor plants for disease 

control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a fifteen (15) day 

cycle, 10 cycles total. 

B. Maintenance schedule for March through October – Remove litter/debris; remove 

failed plants; schedule necessary replantings; remove grasses/weeds/noxious 

plants/woody plants; ensure proper watering schedule; monitor plants for disease 

control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a seven (7) day cycle, 

32 cycles total. 

5.5. Woody Plant Maintenance: 

A.  Maintenance schedule for November through February – Remove damaged 

limbs/branches; inspect/replace failed tree wrapping; inspect/reset plant staking; 

remove dead trees; schedule necessary replantings; ensure proper watering 

schedule; monitor plants for disease control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be 

completed once in a thirty (30) day cycle, 4 cycles total. 

B. Maintenance schedule for March through October – Remove damaged 

limbs/branches; ensure proper watering schedule; monitor plants for disease 

control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a thirty (30) day 

cycle, 8 cycles total. 

5.6. Irrigation Maintenance: 

A. Maintenance schedule for November through February – Conduct system 

audit/evaluation, replace damaged heads, repair/replace failed heads/valves; reset 

program for winter watering schedule; this activity is to be completed once in a 

thirty (30) day cycle, 4 cycles total. 

B. Maintenance schedule for March through October – Adjust watering schedule for 

growing season; inspect irrigation system for proper operation, schedule 



necessary repairs; this activity is to be completed once in a thirty (30) day cycle, 

8 cycles total. 

5.7. Hardscape Maintenance:  

A. Removal of all debris/trash/litter from walks and hardscapes; clean/scrub any tire 

marks; remove/patch any equipment scrapes or damage; this activity is to be 

completed once in a thirty (30) day cycle, 12 cycles total. 

5.8 Chemical Controls: 

A.  Herbicide: Chemical application schedule will consist of three (3)   

applications per year, as follows: 

January 15 / February 15 – Prodiamine 4L, 0.64oz per gal; 24D 1oz/gal; 

Roundup 2oz/gal 

May 15 / June 15 – 24D 1oz/gal; MSM Turf .25oz/acre 

September 1 / September 30 – Prodiamine 4L, 0.64oz per gal; 24D 1oz/gal 

 All chemicals must be applied by a TDA licensed pesticide applicator.  

8.9. Fertilizer:  

A. Fertilizer application schedule will consist of three (3) applications per year, 

as follows: 

   March 15 / April 15 – 15-5-10 at 15lbs/1,000 sqft 

   June 15 / July 15 – 15-5-10 at 15lbs/1,000 sqft 

   November 1 / November 30 – 15-5-10 at 15lbs/1,000 sqft 

                  All fertilizers must be applied by a TDA licensed pesticide applicator.  

8.10. Fountain Maintenance: 

A. Maintenance schedule for 7 day cycle- Remove trash/litter from fountain surfaces 
and intakes; remove any graffiti; clean out filter baskets, check chlorinator, pumps 
and controls for proper operation; this activity will be completed on a seven (7) day 
cycle basis, 52 cycles. 

B. Maintenance schedule for 10 day cycle- Backwash filtration system, replenish 
chlorine tablets, clean light fixture surfaces; this activity will be completed on a ten 
(10) day cycle basis, 20 cycles. 

C. Maintenance schedule for 30 day cycle- Remove filter grates, remove all debris 
from grates, vacuum under grate areas, vacuum all troughs, skim water grates; this 
activity will be completed on a thirty (30) day cycle basis, 8 cycles. 

D. Maintenance schedule for 90-day cycle- Power wash entire fountain at sufficient 
pressure to clean surfaces, ensure surfaces are not damaged from excessive 
pressure; this activity will be completed on a ninety (90) day cycle basis, 3 cycles. 

 

 



8.11. Lighting Maintenance: 

A. Monitor all bed lighting, fountain lighting, display lighting and area lighting for
failed lamps, damaged fixtures, and repair needs; this activity will be completed
on a thirty (30) day cycle basis.

8.12. Preventative Maintenance: 

A. Ensure all personnel are trained/oriented to reduce unnecessary

vehicle/equipment operation on all hardscapes to reduce tire/equipment marks

on all hardscapes.



City of Lubbock

RFP 25-18669-YB 

Mowing Services for 

City of Lubbock Properties

Price Proposal Sheet

Location

Total Cost

Quantity 

Required

(+/-) UOM

Unit 

Price

Total 

Cost

1

#1-1

Mowing/Edging/Trimming and debris removal per 

section 5.1.A. 32 Cycle 3,650.70 116,822.40

2

#2-1

Fall Rye Seeding at 10lbs/1,000sqft for All Turf 

Areas per section 5.2.A. 1 Yearly 2,668.80 2,668.80

3

#3-1

Trash/Litter Collection and Removal as specified 

per section 5.3.A. 52 Cycle 957.00 49,764.00

4

#4-1

Litter/Tree Debris Removal; Replantings; 

Control/Fertilize as Specified for November - 

February per section 5.4.A. 10 Cycle 1,400.00 14,000.00

#4-2

Control/Fertilize needs as specified for March - 

October per 5.4.B. 32 Cycle 1,400.00 44,800.00

5

#5-1

Damaged Limbs/Branch Removal; Replantings; 

Watering; Control/Fertilize as specified for 

November - February per section 5.5.A. 4 Cycle 3,720.00 14,880.00

#5-2

Damaged Limbs/Branch Removal; Replantings; 

Watering; Control/Fertilize as specified for March - 

October per section 5.5.B. 4 Cycle 3,720.00 14,880.00

6

#6-1

System Audit, Replace Damaged Heads, Make 

Repairs, Reset Programming as specified for 

November - February per section 5.6.A.. 4 Cycle 4,625.00 18,500.00

#6-2

Inspect System Routinely as specified for March - 

October per section 5.6.B. 8 Cycle 4,625.00 37,000.00

7

#7-1

Remove Debris/Trash Litter, Clean/Scrub Tire 

Marks, Patch Scrapes or Damage as specified per 

section 5.7.A. 12 Cycle 1,750.00 21,000.00

SRH Landscapes LLC

$362,185.20

      Exhibit B

Lubbock, TX



City of Lubbock

RFP 25-18669-YB 

Mowing Services for 

City of Lubbock Properties

Price Proposal Sheet

8

#8-1

January 15th/February 15th - Prodiamine 4L, 

0.64oz per Gal; 24D 1oz/Gal; Roundup 2oz/Gal. 

per section 5.8.A 1 Yearly 2,400.00 2,400.00

#8-2

May 15th/June 15th - 24D 1oz/Gal; MSM Turf 

.25oz/Acre per section 5.8.A. 1 Yearly 2,400.00 2,400.00

#8-3

September 1st/September 30th - Prodiamine 4L, 

0.64oz per Gal; 24D 1oz/Gal. per section 5.8.A. 1 Yearly 2,400.00 2,400.00

9

#9-1

March 15th/April 15th - 15-5-10 at 15lbs/1,000sqft 

per section 8.9.A. 1 Yearly 2,550.00 2,550.00

#9-2

June 15th/July 15th - 15-5-10 at 15lbs/1,000sqft per 

section 8.9.A. 1 Yearly 2,550.00 2,550.00

#9-3

November 1st/November 30th - 15-5-10 at 

15lbs/1,000sqft per section 8.9.A. 1 Yearly 2,550.00 2,550.00

10

#10-1

1 occurrence per 7 day cycle; remove trash/litter 

from fountain surfaces and intakes; remove any 

graffiti; clean out filter baskets, check chlorinator, 

pumps and controls for proper operation per section 

8.10.A. 52 Cycle 105.00 5,460.00

#10-2

Maintenance schedule for 10 day cycle- Backwash 

filtration system, replenish chlorine tablets, clean 

light fixture surfaces; this activity will be 

completed on a ten (10) day cycle basis per section 

8.10.B. 20 Cycle 105.00 2,100.00

#10-3

1 occurrence per 30 day cycle; remove filter grates, 

remove all debris from grates, vacuum under grate 

areas, vacuum all troughs, skim water grates per 

section 8.10.C. 8 Cycle 210.00 1,680.00

#10-4

Maintenance schedule for 90-day cycle- Power 

wash entire fountain at sufficient pressure to clean 

surfaces, ensure surfaces are not damaged from 

excessive pressure; this activity will be completed 

on a ninety (90) day cycle basis per section 8.10.D. 3 Cycle 420.00 1,260.00

11

#11-1

Monitor All Lighting as Specified and Repair as 

Needed per section 8.11.A. 12 Cycle 210.00 2,520.00



VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

In compliance with this procurement, the undersigned offeror having examined the request for 
proposal, instructions to offerors, documents associated with the request for proposals, and being 
familiar with the conditions to be met, has reviewed the information regarding: 

 Insurance Requirements

 Suspension and Debarment Certification

 Texas Government Code Section 2252.152

 Texas Government Code Section 2271.002

 Texas Government Code 2274

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 

portion may result in proposal rejection. 

   

Authorized Signature Title 

  

Print/Type Name Date 

       

Company Name Address 

   

City, State Zip Code 

Contact for questions, clarifications, etc. 

Name and Title:  

Mailing Address:  

City, State, Zip:  

Telephone No:  

Fax No: 

E-Mail:  

Lubbock Branch Manger

Robert Roberts

SRH Landscapes, LLC. 6313 Homestead Ave. Suite B4

Lubbock, Texas 79416

Robert Roberts, Lubbock Branch Manger

6313 Homestead Ave. Suite B4

Lubbock, Texas 79416

806-809-3453

rroberts@srhtrees.com

2/25/2025



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 

Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to 

bind the named underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions 

shown thereon, and which shall furnish and contain all required information referenced 

or indicated thereon.  THE CITY SHALL HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM 

UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN 

DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 

the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and 

their limits when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in 

statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as the 

Contractor. 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 

are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect 

for the duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, 

insurance coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable 

to the City, in the following type(s) and amount(s): 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence/ $2M aggregate (can 

be combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 

contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual 

relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual 

activities and for completed operations. Commercial General Liability to include 

Products -Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire 

Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person).  

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the 

vendor is an independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing 

Workers' Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL 

Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. Employer Liability ($1M) is 

required with Workers Compensation.  

Pollution Liability Requirements: $500K occurrence/ $1M aggregate. 

• The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall

be afforded additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis

on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp.

• Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC.

• To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement.

   Exhibit C



• Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written 

notice for non-payment. 

 

• Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 

• Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 

IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all 

endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification 

of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions 

are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of 

any of such policies).  Upon such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable 

efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs 

will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts 

and certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, 

the following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives 

as additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all 

applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material 

change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property 

damage, or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of 

insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard 

of care together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by 

contractual liability coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable 

policies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such 

notices not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

    City of Lubbock 

1314Avenue K, 9th Floor 

    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the 

Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and 

accidents as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial 

of liability by the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 25-18669-YB 

Mowing Services for City of Lubbock Properties 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on February 9 & February 16, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from February 7 to March 05, 2025. 

8 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

45 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

18 vendors were notified separately.  

8 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 13268 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 35. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute Contract 18399, with Reeder Landscape, for landscape maintenance
services for the City of Lubbock Streetscapes, Medians, Turnarounds, and
Rights-of-Way.

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for landscape maintenance services for
the City of Lubbock streetscapes, medians, turnarounds, and rights-of-way, which
include mowing, edging, trimming, fertilization, pesticide application, and tree
maintenance.

In response to RFP 24-18399-YB, five proposals were received. The proposals
were evaluated using the following criteria: Price (20 points), Staffing Plan
(15 points), Equipment Inventory (30 points) and Maintenance Guideline/Plan (35
points). The maximum point value is 100 points. After the proposals were
evaluated, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Vendor Points
Reeder Landscape, Amarillo, Texas 93.00
SRH Landscapes LLC, Lubbock, Texas 84.09
PowerHouse Lawn and Landscape, Wolfforth, Texas 57.47
Triming Time, Houston, Texas 52.37
Turf Raider Lawn & Landscape, Lubbock, Texas 41.63

Staff recommends awarding the contract to the highest ranked proposal, Reeder
Landscape of Amarillo, Texas, for an annual contract amount of $123,290.

The contract is for a term of one year, with the option of 4, one-year extensions.



Fiscal Impact
Contract 18399 for up to $123,290, with Reeder Landscape, is funded through the
Parks and Recreation Department Operating Budget, as approved by the City
Council.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Colby VanGundy, Director of Parks and Recreation

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary Sheet 





 

                                                                                                                                      Contract 18399 
City of Lubbock, TX 

Mowing & Maintenance of Streetscapes, Medians, 

and Right of Ways 

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the      day of                          2025 

(“Effective Date”) by and between  Reeder Industries, Inc.  (the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the 

“City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 25-18399-LV, Mowing & Maintenance of 

Streetscapes, Medians, and Right of Ways and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal which best 

meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide Mowing & 

Maintenance of Streetscapes, Medians, and Right of Ways, upon terms and conditions maintained in this 

Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 

Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of 

inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement 

2. Attachment A – General Provisions    

3. Attachment B – Price Proposal Sheet 

4. Attachment C – Insurance Requirements 

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall execute services 

as the named provider. The Contractor shall comply with all the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit 

B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1  

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 

extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 

automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 

terminate the Contract. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be determined 

by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and 

resulting contract. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the 

term of this contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to 

ensure that valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management 

Department as required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 

 



 

1.2 Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The 

rate may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index 

(CPI) or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. Further, if the Contractor can provide 

documentation for actual charges for material, labor, etc. that demonstrates that the change 

in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide such documentation to the City, 

and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be further adjusted. If agreement 

regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate at the end of the current 

contract period.  If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must 

provide the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly 

documentation to justify the ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely 

received, the rate will automatically revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

1.3 The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any 

interest in the Agreement, whatsoever, without prior consent of the City.  

1.4 All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds 

by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the 

Agreement, the City will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other 

liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this Agreement is spent, whichever 

event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 

Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the contractor on 30 days prior written notice, 

but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under 

this Agreement beyond the date of termination. 

1.5 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration 

date, (2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day 

written notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the 

next lowest and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 

accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 

Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 

Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 

parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or modification of the terms of 

this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by 

both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of 

any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not 

constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 



 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 

respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the 

City to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated 

between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the 

claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the 

aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies 

available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 

reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to 

the City under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or 

overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such 

overpayments within 30 days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the 

right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 

of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process 

prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein 

are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any 

conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this do.  

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent 

be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 

from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements document, this 

provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 

fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 

descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 

Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 

agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 

agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 

fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 

descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 

Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 

agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 

agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.14 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 



 

prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 

Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 

Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.15 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 

terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 

requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 

applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information 

related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 

governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 

body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 

of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 

either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 

information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 

applicable to the governmental body. 

2.16   No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be 

paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 

may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 

contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) 

will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 

the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 

10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or 

more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does 

not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 

Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity 

determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s 

constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 
 

2.18 Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) 

it does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  

or  directive  that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) 

the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply 

to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this 

Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to 

Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 

directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not 

discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

 



 

2.19 Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the 

City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 

third parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

2.20 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Lubbock and its 

elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, 

claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 

injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person 

or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent 

acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the 

performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 

city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 

or termination of this agreement. 

 

 

 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-----





CITY OF LUBBOCK SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE 
CITY PARKS AND SPACES 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

4. DEFINITIONS

4.1. Agent – An employee of the City of Lubbock, who is appointed by the City to monitor 
the work and actions of the Contractor. 

4.2. City – The City of Lubbock, Texas, municipal corporation in Lubbock County, Texas. 

4.3. City Council – City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

4.4. Contract – The contract consists of the following:  Notice to bidders; General 
Provisions; Specifications; Plans; Addenda; Bid; Agreement; Insurance; Encumbrance; 
Notice to Proceed; and Change Orders.  These form the agreement whereby the 
Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment, tools, materials, and perform all work 
necessary to satisfactorily accomplish the proposed plan, sponsored by the City. 

4.5. Contract Time – The number of allowable days to complete the contract. 

4.6. Contractor – The individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, or corporation 
contracting with the City to perform work. 

4.7. Cycle – The period in which each service is completed. 

4.8. Director of Parks and Recreation – The individual who shall act on the City’s 
behalf and appoint an Agent to ensure compliance with the contract 
requirements, such as but not limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery. 

4.9. Excluded Damage – Damage caused by vandalism, pedestrians, vehicles, 
animals (except insects and/or rodents), or other unusual factors.  It does not 
include damage caused by the Contractor’s actions, lack of reasonable care, pest 
damage (such as insects), diseases or plant loss due to lack of water caused by 
an irrigation system programming error, irrigation system breakage or irrigation 
malfunction.   

4.10. Extra Work – Work over and above that is called for in the contract. 

Attachment A



4.11. Mayor – The duly appointed official of the City of Lubbock, Texas, who is 
empowered by the City Charter to enter into a contract on behalf of the City. 

 
4.12. Notice to Proceed – Written notice to the Contractor issued and signed by the 

authorized Agent stating the date on which the Contractor should proceed with 
work as stated in the contract. 

 

4.13. Review Committee – A committee chosen by the City of Lubbock, to analyze 
and recommend to City Council the best Contractor(s) to perform the tasks 
governed by the contract. 

 
4.14. Specifications – The directions, provisions, and requirements pertaining to the 

method and manner of performing the work or to the quality of the materials 
and equipment to be furnished under the contract. 

 

4.15. Subcontractor – Any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation licensed or 
otherwise authorized by law to do business in Texas, to whom the Contractor, 
with written consent of the City, sublets a part of the work. 

 

4.16. Surety – The corporation, partnership or individual, duly authorized and 
admitted to do business in Texas and licensed by the State of Texas to issue 
surety bonds, who is bound with and for the Contractor to assume legal liability 
for the faithful performance of the contract. 

 

4.17. Unit Price – Payment to the Contractor based on a unit or portion of the work 
performed. 

 

4.18. Work – All work, including the furnishing of staff, equipment, materials, and 
other incidentals necessary for the performance of the contract.  All work will 
be in the public right-of-way per attached exhibit. 

 
 

5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

5.1.Work:  It is the intent for the Contractor to provide for completion in every detail the 
work described herein.  The Contractor shall provide all labor, tools, transportation, 
materials, and equipment necessary to complete the work in accordance with 
specifications provided and terms of the contract.  The attached “Medians, 
Turnarounds, ROW’s” indicates the completed landscaped areas.  Bidders are to 
provide unit pricing that will be applied to landscaped areas completed and 
accepted for maintenance. Unit pricing should be separated out by description in 
Exhibit B.    

 



5.2.Specification Change: During the term of the Contract, the City may change 
maintenance frequencies, thereby increasing or decreasing maintenance frequencies.  
Unit pricing will be used to determine cost adjustments.  All changes shall be in writing. 

 

5.3.Changed Condition:  If the Contractor finds latent conditions which differ from those 
outlined in the contract or specifications which differ from customary work, and which 
the Contractor could not have discovered during the investigation of the site prior to the 
bid, and in which such condition increased the expense to the Contractor, immediate 
written notice shall be promptly mailed to the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 
Agent.  The Contractor shall afford the City the opportunity to inspect the same.  After 
inspection by the City, the Contractor shall not delay work pending a decision to be made 
by the City regarding the claim.  Failure of the Contractor to give prompt written notice 
and afford the City the opportunity to inspect the condition, before it is disturbed, shall be 
deemed a waiver by the Contractor of all claims and extra compensation arising out of 
the alleged condition. 
 
If the Director of Parks and Recreation or the Agent determine that the Contractor is 
entitled to extra compensation by reason of increased expense to the Contractor and 
caused by the condition, and find that the condition requires work not covered in the 
contract, a change order may be executed for additional compensation which shall be 
agreed upon by all parties involved and approved by the Director of Parks and Recreation 
or their Agent.  Additional time may be granted if the City deems additional time is 
necessary to accomplish the job.  No change order or combination of change orders shall 
exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total contract. 

 

5.4.Clean-up:  As specified in Exhibit A, all work shall be cleaned up and waste materials 
removed from the site.  No equipment shall be left at maintenance sites and all material 
removed from the job shall be at the Contractor’s expense.  If materials or waste are not 
removed from the site, written notification from the Agent shall be delivered to the 
Contractor.  The Contractor shall have forty-eight (48) hours to remove the material in 
question.  If the material in question is not removed in the forty-eight (48) hour period, 
the City shall remove the material, and the Contractor shall be charged for the expense.  
Payment to the City for said expenses shall be deducted for the Contractor’s payment.  If 
such conditions continue, the contract may be terminated due to breach of contract. 

 

5.5.Preservation and Restoration of Property:  The Contractor is responsible for the 
preservation of all City owned and adjacent property owner lands of which the Contractor 
may come into contact with.  The Contractor shall use every precaution necessary to 
prevent damage to trees, shrubs, above and below ground structures, utilities and any 
other form of property.  Should damage occur, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to 
report the damage to the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent as soon as 
possible but not exceeding twenty-four (24) hours from the time damage occurred.  If 
damage occurs as a result of Contractor’s actions, the Contractor shall be held responsible 
to repair or replace the damaged property at their own expense.  Time required to repair 
damaged property shall be expedient and to the approval of the Director of Parks and 
Recreation or their Agent.  If the damage is not repaired in the agreed upon time period, 
the City may after forty-eight (48) hours notice from the Director of Parks and Recreation 
or their Agent, proceed to repair the damage.  The Contractor shall be held financially 
responsible for the repair work and the cost shall be deducted from the Contractor’s 
payment. 



 

5.6.Equipment:  The Contractor shall provide everything necessary to fulfill the 
requirements of this contract.  All equipment shall meet all applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations.  Contractors’ equipment is subject to inspection and approval 
of the Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent. All manufacturers’ safety features 
must be operational, in good repair and in proper positions during operation.  All 
equipment shall be professional grounds maintenance quality and in good condition 
throughout the course of the contract.  If the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 
Agent deems the equipment faulty or if the equipment is damaging the turf or other 
surfacing materials in any way, the Contractor shall remove the equipment from the 
premises.  Contractor shall not impede other grounds maintenance operations during the 
course of those maintenance operations.  

 

5.7.Service Boundaries:  The service area may be bounded by hard surfacing materials, 
sidewalks, or non-curbed turf areas.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all areas 
defined by turf or hard surfacing.  However, the Contractor is not responsible for edging 
of un-curbed turf.  Although the mowing Contractors are required to operate mowing 
equipment in a manner that directs the clippings away from plant beds, the nature of 
mowing equipment will at times allow some clipping debris to drop into planting areas.   

 

5.8.Termination of Contract:  This contract shall remain in effect until the expiration date 
for performance of services ordered.  Termination of either party requires a thirty (30) 
day written notice prior to any cancellation.  Such written notice must state the reason for 
cancellation.  The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to 
the next best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the City. 

 

6. CONTROL OF WORK 
 

6.1.Authority of the Director of Parks and Recreation:  It is understood by all parties that 
the work is to be done to the satisfaction of the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 
authorized Agent(s).  The Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent shall interpret 
all specifications and shall determine the acceptability of all work. The Director of Parks 
and Recreation or their Agent shall decide the classification, quality, amount of all work 
done under the contract, shall be the sole administrator of payments, and his or her 
decision shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties. 

 

6.2.Authority of the Agent:  The Director of Parks and Recreation may appoint an Agent or 
Agents to serve as an inspector.  The Agent(s) shall be allowed to inspect all work at any 
time.  The Agent shall not be allowed to alter, revise, add, or delete anything from the 
contract or specifications.  An Agent’s duties shall include keeping the Director of Parks 
and Recreation notified as to the progress of the job and the procedures involved in 
completing the job.  The Agent shall call to the attention of the Director of Parks and 
Recreation and the Contractor any deviation of contract or specifications, but failure of 
the Agent or of the Director of Parks and Recreation to call to the attention of the 
Contractor any deviation of the contract or specifications shall not constitute acceptance 
of said work.  The Agent shall have the authority to suspend any work pending a decision 
by the Director of Parks and Recreation. 

 



6.3.Extra Work:  Extra work being done by the Contractor without authorization through 
change orders, or work which is not shown on the contract or specifications, shall be 
considered as unauthorized work; and if performed shall be at the risk of the Contractor.  
The Director of Parks and Recreation reserves all rights to refuse payment for such work. 

 

6.4.Unauthorized Work:  All work and/or materials which do not conform to the contract 
and specifications, and work done contrary to written instructions of the Agent or 
Director of Parks and Recreation shall be done at the expense of the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may be ordered to remove or remedy such work at its own expense.  If 
Contractor damages adjacent property, the Contractor shall remedy such property at its 
own expense. 

 

6.5.Final Inspection:  Final inspection of the site shall take place by the Director of Parks 
and Recreation or their appointed Agent as soon as possible after the completion of the 
project.  If the project is completed in cycles, the project shall be inspected after each 
cycle by the Agent.  The Contractor shall be allowed to be present at the examination.  If 
the inspection reveals any defective work, the Director of Parks and Recreation or their 
Agent may require the work to be remedied before final acceptance is granted.  All said 
remedies shall be at the expense of the Contractor. 

 

6.6.Laws and Regulations:  The Contractor and any Subcontractor(s) shall at all times 
comply with all local, county, state and federal laws.  The Contractor and any 
Subcontractor shall abide by all Labor Laws observed by the State of Texas.  The 
Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local Environmental Protection Laws, 
and regulations.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations regarding pollution of rivers, lakes, streams and other waters.  The 
Contractor shall store, handle, use and dispose of chemicals, fuels, oils, greases and other 
materials in a manner that prevents them from entering surface or ground waters.  Upon 
receipt of notice of noncompliance of environmental protection provisions, the 
Contractor shall take immediate corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  If the 
Contractor fails or refuses to immediately take corrective action, the City may issue an 
order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. 

 

6.6.1. Prior to any application of chemicals, the Contractor shall request, in 
writing, approval from the Director of Parks and Recreation or his Agent.  
The request shall include the target pest and the type of chemical(s) to be 
used.  If permission is granted, all applications shall be performed through 
a Licensed Applicator, licensed by the Texas Structural Pest Control Board 
and/or the Texas Department of Agriculture.  Upon completion of the 
operation, the Contractor shall provide to the Director of Parks and 
Recreation or their Agent, a copy of the Pesticide Application 
Documentation that the Contractor records pursuant to the requirements of 
the Structural Pest Control Board. 

 

6.7.Advertising:  Contractor shall not advertise or publish, without City’s prior consent, the 
fact that the City has entered into this contract, except to the extent necessary to comply 
with proper request for information from an authorized representative or the federal, state 
or local government. 

 



 

6.8.Citizen Contact:  The Contractor is granted the privilege of doing work on Park property 
but does not have exclusive use of the property and must respect the activities of patrons 
while doing work on Park property.  The Contractor shall take all precautions necessary 
to insure that adjacent property owners are not disturbed.  

 

 

6.9.Identification and Character:  Contractor’s vehicles shall be marked with the 
Contractor’s company name, on both sides and in lettering that is a minimum of two 
inches tall and of an easily read typeface.  In lieu of lettering, Contractors may submit 
easily recognizable Company Logos for approval by the Director of Parks and 
Recreation.  All employees of the Contractor shall have a name badge for identification, 
either clip on or incorporated with a uniform.  This identification shall be worn at all 
times that the employee is at the job site.  The Contractor shall provide uniforms of a 
different color than City employee uniforms.  Uniforms may not be torn or ragged and 
shall present a professional appearance.  Additionally, the Contractor will at all times 
require employees to remain fully dressed and will not allow employees to wear 
unbuttoned clothing while on City property. 

 

6.9.1. The Contractor shall prohibit the use of intoxicating substances by its 
drivers and crewmembers while on duty or in the course of performing 
their duties under this Contract. 

 

6.9.2. Employees driving the Contractor’s vehicles shall at all times possess and 
carry a valid State of Texas Driver’s License appropriate for the weight and 
type of vehicle being driven.  Contractors are specifically required to 
ensure that a Texas Commercial Driver’s License is obtained where 
applicable for the type(s) of vehicles in use. 

 

6.9.3. The Contractor’s employees, officers, Agents and Subcontractors shall, at 
no time, be allowed to identify themselves or in any way represent 
themselves as being employees of the City of Lubbock. 

 

 

6.10. Safety:  The Contractor is responsible for maintaining a safety program that insures 
compliance with all current requirements of the Federal Occupational Safety and 
Health Act of 1970.  The Contractor is responsible for safety on the project site and the 
City shall take no action to interfere with the Contractor’s safety program.  Failure to 
maintain compliant with this act shall be grounds for termination of the contract. 

 

 

 

 



7. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS OF WORK 
 

7.1.Notice to Proceed:  Notice to proceed shall be mailed to the Contractor by certified 
letter.  The Contractor shall have ten (10) working days from the day he receives the 
letter to actively proceed with the work. 

 

7.2.Contract Time:  All work is schedule driven, therefore, the Contractor’s work force and 
equipment needs shall vary throughout the contract’s time period.  The normal work 
schedule shall fall within the time frame of Monday through Friday 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 
p.m. 

 

7.3.Weekends, Holidays and Nights:  Work on weekends, holidays, and nights shall be at 
the discretion of the Contractor.   

 

7.4.Weather:  Weather will affect the progress of grounds maintenance at times and 
Contractor shall recognize this and have a plan of action and/or resources available to 
proceed in an expedient manner.  Should weather conditions alter schedules, the 
Contractor shall notify the Agent at the beginning of the next workday.  It is the 
Contractor’s responsibility to provide quality workmanship.  If weather conditions 
prevent such quality, the Contractor shall suspend work and resume work as soon as 
weather allows.  If the Agent or Director of Parks and Recreation finds that weather 
conditions are inappropriate for maintaining high quality work, they may notify the 
Contractor and suspend work.  The suspension of work by the Agent or Director of Parks 
and Recreation shall not in any way allow the Contractor to find grounds for adjustments 
in contract time or provide for extra compensation. 

 

7.5.Character of Work:  All workers, supervisors, managers, and Subcontractor(s) 
employed by the Contractor shall be competent and careful workers skilled in their 
respective trades.  The Director of Parks and Recreation or their Agent may remove from 
the work site any person employed by the Contractor who does not represent the City in a 
professional manner or does not follow the instructions given to him.  If any person 
misconducts themselves, is incompetent, or negligent in the performance of their duties, 
they may be removed from the work site and shall not return until the Contractor receives 
written consent from the City’s Representative.  Should the Contractor continue to 
employ such individual to continue work under this contract, the City reserves the right to 
withhold payment and/or nullify the contract. 

 

7.6.Assigning or Subletting the Contract:  The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the 
contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from the Director of 
Parks and Recreation or his Agent.  The City’s permission to sublet any contract shall not 
be construed as making the City a party of such subcontract.  No Subcontractor shall 
release the Contractor of its surety or its liability and obligation to fulfill all transactions 
made under the contract.  Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the 
Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance from the Subcontractor that complies 
with all Insurance requirements contained in paragraphs, 4.0-4.7, Indemnity Insurance. 

 



7.7. Payment:  The Contractor shall receive compensation for services provided for in 
the contract on a monthly basis.  Upon the end of each month, during the contract 
period, the Contractor shall submit an invoice to the Parks and Recreation 
Director for services provided during the month.  Any Extra Work shall be shown 
on the same monthly invoice and identified as “Extra Work.”  Extra Work billing 
should designate turf maintenance, planting maintenance, woody plant bed 
maintenance cost and a description of the work performed.   Payment shall be 
determined by the form included in this package as Exhibit B and approved by the 
Parks and Recreation Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Work for City Medians, Turnarounds, ROW’s 

Specifications of Work 

Intent: To provide grounds maintenance, litter control, plant/tree maintenance, structural and site 
cleanliness at City of Lubbock Medians, Turnarounds, ROW’s and similar spaces 

 

General: Successful Contractor shall actively proceed with the work as agreed and stated 
on the notice to proceed.  Work shall not start until the notice to proceed is issued by the 
Purchasing and Contract Management department. The decision to end or suspend 
temporarily the maintenance season shall be made by the Owner’s Representative Agent. 

 

i. The areas to be serviced for each site include all right of ways adjoining the site 
and to the centerline of all alleys adjoining the site, and extending street-ward 
including the curb and ending six (6) inches beyond lip of gutter.  Contractor is 
responsible for safe and careful operation of mowing equipment around plant 
material and structures to prevent damage and to prevent clippings from 
contaminating shrub or color beds, hard surfaces, streets, playgrounds and 
handicap ramps. If conditions are not conducive to blowing, sweeping and 
picking up of maintenance debris shall be required for these areas.  Blowing of 
grass clippings or debris out to the street is prohibited 

 

ii. Contractor shall provide a maintenance schedule to the Parks Department within 
two days from Notice to Proceed and will notify the Owner’s Representative or 
Agent(s) of any changes in the schedule prior to the schedule change. 

 

1) Turf Maintenance:  
a. Mowing: Mowing commencement and conclusion shall be at the discretion of the 

Owner’s Representative or Agent(s).  Mowing frequency and height shall be 2 ½” to 3” 
and occur up to once every Seven (7) calendar days evenly spaced between Cycles for 
all Whisperwood, Broadway Streetscapes, 98th St Medians, Quincy.  Mowing frequency 
and height shall be 2 ½” to 3” and occur up to once every twenty (20) calendar days 
evenly spaced between Cycles for all Loop Turnarounds, Quadrants, ROWS (Right of 
Way’s). Clippings shall not be bagged and all hard surfaces, play areas, sidewalks and 
streets shall be cleared of all clippings after each service. The mowers shall leave no 
clumps or windrows of grass. All clippings windrows or clumps will be removed. 
 

b. Equipment: Mowing equipment shall be determined by site conditions and equipped 
with all turf tires and shall be approved by the Owner’s Representative or Agent(s). All 
required unit work which includes mowing, edging, trim mowing, string trimming shall 
be 100% complete before commencing to another mowing site.  Alternate mowing 
patterns are required every cycle to avoid turf damage. 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 
TENTATIVE MOWING FREQUENCIES 7 DAY SCHEDULE: 

 
January 0 July  4 

February 0 August 4 

March  1 September 4 

April 4 October 4 

May 4 November 2 

June 4 December 0 

 

TENTATIVE MOWING FREQUENCIES 20 DAY SCHEDULE: 

 
January 0 July 2 

February 0 August 2 

March 2 September 2 

April 2 October 2 

May 2 November 2 

June 2 December 0 

 
c. Edging: All sidewalks, curbed plant material beds, and game courts shall be edged to a 

depth of one inch and all non-curbed plant beds shall be edged to a depth necessary to 
achieve appropriate results. All edging shall be performed concurrently with mowing at 
each site.  String trimmers or curb dressers may not be used for edging. 
 

d. Trimming: All string trimming must be done to achieve a height uniform with the 
mowing height. Maintenance of drains and exposed playa lake shorelines due to 
evaporation or receding of the lake and mowable areas that retain water shall be the 
Contractor’s responsibility. Trimming must be performed around trees, plant beds, 
buildings, playground equipment, signs, fences, and any other plants or structures. All 
play surfaces, hard surfaces, sidewalks, streets, street medians, parking areas, parking lots 
and drainage channels must be kept free of grass, weeds and debris. This task must be 
completed the same day the mowing is performed. Optional spraying of six (6) inches 
away from the tree(s) main trunk is also permitted to eliminate tree bark damage. Four (4) 
to six (6) inch wide. Optional chemical edging only on chain link fence lines with Turf on 
either side of the fence is permitted. 

 
2) Planting Bed Maintenance: 

a. Maintenance schedule for November through February – Remove litter/tree leaves; 
remove failed plants; schedule necessary replantings; monitor plants for disease 



control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a fifteen (15) day 
cycle, 10 cycles total. 

b. Maintenance schedule for March through October – Remove litter/debris; remove 
failed plants; schedule necessary replantings; remove grasses/weeds/noxious 
plants/woody plants; ensure proper watering schedule; monitor plants for disease 
control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a seven (7) day 
cycle, 32 cycles total. 

 
3) Woody Plant Maintenance: 

a. Maintenance schedule for November through February – Remove damaged 
limbs/branches; inspect/replace failed tree wrapping; inspect/reset plant staking; 
remove dead trees; schedule necessary replantings; ensure proper watering 
schedule; monitor plants for disease control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be 
completed once in a thirty (30) day cycle, 4 cycles total. 

b. Maintenance schedule for March through October – Remove damaged 
limbs/branches; ensure proper watering schedule; monitor plants for disease 
control/fertilizer needs; this activity is to be completed once in a thirty (30) day 
cycle, 8 cycles total. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 
City of Lubbock, Tx 
RFP 25-18399-LV 

Mowing & Maintenance – Streetscapes, Medians, Right of Ways 
 

Turf Maintenance as per Section 1.0: 

Mowing/Edging/Trimming 

        TENTATIVE MOWING FREQUENCIES SCHEDULE: 
 

7 Day Schedule: $_________ 
 
20 Day Schedule $________ 
 

     Planting Bed Maintenance as per Section 2.0 

a. 32 Cycles: $_________ 
 

b. 9 Cycles: $   
 

       Woody Plant Maintenance as per Section 3.0: 
 
 

a. 4 Cycles: $   
 

b. 8 Cycles: $   
 

 

 



 



  



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



  



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



  





  



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



City of Lubbock
RFP 25-18399-LV

Mowing Maintenance of 
Streetscapes, Medians, and 

Right of Ways
Price Proposal Sheet

Location
Total Cost

Quantity 
Required

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

1
#1-1 Mowing/ Edging/ Trimming 32       1,495.00   47,840.00 
#1-2 Mowing/ Edging/ Trimming 9       4,100.00   36,900.00 
2

#2-1 Planting Bed Maintenance as per Section 32          750.00   24,000.00 

#2-2 Planting Bed Maintenance as per Section 9          750.00     6,750.00 
3

#3-1 Woody Plant Maintenance as per Sectio 4          650.00     2,600.00 

#3-2 Woody Plant Maintenance as per Sectio 8          650.00     5,200.00 

$123,290.00
Amarillo, TX

Reeder Landscape

Attachment B



 

VENDOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
In compliance with this procurement, the undersigned offeror having examined the request for 
proposal, instructions to offerors, documents associated with the request for proposals, and being 
familiar with the conditions to be met, has reviewed the information regarding: 

 Insurance Requirements 

 Suspension and Debarment Certification  

 Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 

 Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 

 Texas Government Code 2274 

 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 

portion may result in proposal rejection. 

 

 

 

 

               

Authorized Signature    Title 

 

              

Print/Type Name     Date 
 

 

               

Company Name     Address 

 

               

City, State Zip Code 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact for questions, clarifications, etc. 

Name and Title:  

Mailing Address:  

City, State, Zip:  

Telephone No:  

Fax No:  

E-Mail:  

President 

Blake Reeder 1.25.25

Reeder Industries Inc 11902 I 27 

Amarillo TX 79119

Blake Reeder 

11902 I 27 

Amarillo TX 

806.356-6163

blake@reederlandscape.com



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 

Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the 

named underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and 

which shall furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE 

CITY SHALL HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL 

SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during the effective 

period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits when 

deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 

or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 

Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as are 

approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the 

duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance 

coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the 

following type(s) and amount(s): 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be 

combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is 

perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 

Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed operations.  

Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising 

Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 

independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 

Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a 

copy of their driver's license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 

Pollution Liability Requirements: $500K occurrence / $1M aggregate. 

* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded

additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except

professional liabilities and workers' comp.

* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC.

* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement.

* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-

payment.

* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A-or better.

* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.

Attachment C



IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements thereto 

and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy terms, 

conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or regulation 

binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies).  Upon such request by 

the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, 

and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 

certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the following 

required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as 

additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any 

other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices not 

less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement CERTIFICATE OF 

INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

    City of Lubbock 

1314Avenue K, 9th Floor 

    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the Contractor shall 

not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents as set forth in the 

contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by the insurance 

company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 25-18399-LV 

Mowing & Maintenance of Streetscapes,  

Medians, and Right of Ways 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 12 & January 19, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 13 to January 29, 2025. 

41 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

20 vendors were notified separately.  

5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 13294 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 36. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 10028284, with Angel Armor, LLC, for the purchase of ballistic
vests with load-bearing carriers for the Lubbock Police Department. 

Item Summary
The vests are being purchased through Buy Board Contract #698-23. This purchase
will be for 38 Level III Ballistic Vests with corresponding rifle-resistant plates and
load-bearing carriers for these vests. These vests will be dispersed among the
Lubbock Police Department Officers that are due for new vests. 

Fiscal Impact
The $118,103.84 for the vests is budgeted in the Adopted FY 2025-2026 Police
Operating Budget. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police 

Attachments
Resolution- Angel Armor 
Purchase Order- Angel Armor 





 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 2/26/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10028284 OP000
Branch/Plant         5735

ANGEL ARMOR LLC CITY OF LUBBOCK
4557 DENROSE CT POLICE DEPARTMENT

1401 15TH STFORT COLLINS CO 80524
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered                              .Freight2/26/2025
Taken ByRequested 4/30/2025 A ESPARZA

BUYBOARD CONTRACT #698-23Delivery PER L PEDERSON   REQ. 62893

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Rise Stealth Carrier Black III 26.000 1,096.5000 EA 28,509.00        4/30/2025

01-00632-01

Rise Stealth Carrier Black III 12.000 1,147.5000 EA 13,770.00        4/30/2025

01-00650-01
2xl or Larger

Rise Flex Carrier Dark Navy 38.000 468.1800 EA 17,790.84        4/30/2025

01-00488-02
Load Bearing Carrier Only

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 2.000 561.0000 EA 1,122.00        4/30/2025

01-00554
8x10 SC

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 1.000 561.0000 EA 561.00        4/30/2025

01-00553
8x10 FC

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 4.000 663.0000 EA 2,652.00        4/30/2025

01-00552
9x11 SC

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 8.000 663.0000 EA 5,304.00        4/30/2025

01-00551
9x11 FC

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 32.000 765.0000 EA 24,480.00        4/30/2025

01-00550
10x12 SC

Truth SNAP 308 Ultra AAU301 29.000 765.0000 EA 22,185.00        4/30/2025

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lisa Pederson at 806-775-2765 or via email LPederson@mylubbock.us.



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 2/26/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10028284 OP000
Branch/Plant         5735

ANGEL ARMOR LLC CITY OF LUBBOCK
4557 DENROSE CT POLICE DEPARTMENT

1401 15TH STFORT COLLINS CO 80524
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered                              .Freight2/26/2025
Taken ByRequested 4/30/2025 A ESPARZA

BUYBOARD CONTRACT #698-23Delivery PER L PEDERSON   REQ. 62893

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
01-00549
10x12 FC

Shipping 1.000 1,730.0000 EA 1,730.00         4/30/2025

NET 30Terms                                                                                                                                       Total Order           118,103.84

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $118,103.84 awarded to Angel Armor, LLC. of Fort Collins, CO, on  

   . The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 

February 18, 2025, from Angel Armor, LLC. of Fort Collins, CO, and BuyBoard Contract #698-23. 

 

Resolution #____________________ 

 

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK:     ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________________  _______________________________________     

Mark McBrayer, Mayor                       Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lisa Pederson at 806-775-2765 or via email LPederson@mylubbock.us.



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


Customer Quote

Date 2/18/2025

Quote # QUO80584-BB

Bill To
City of Lubbock
Accounts Payable
PO Box 2000
Lubbock TX 79457
United States

Ship To
Lubbock Police Department
1205 15th Street
Lubbock TX 79401
United States

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

99CMS - Cruz Martin Melchor Sanchez
Expires: 3/16/2025

Quote Date 2/18/2025

698-23

Part Number

01-00632-01

Description

RISE, Stealth Carrier, Black, Elite IIIA

Name: John Geeslin Serial: JMC209813 Front: 2213 Back: 2014

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Daniel Morales Serial: JMC209817 Front: 2517 Back: 2518

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: William Davis Serial: JMC209818 Front: 2516 Back: 2518

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Joshua Gafford Serial: JMC209819 Front: 2215 Back: 2214

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Kolton Pirkle Serial: JMC209820 Front: 2216 Back: 2016

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Juston Wood Serial: JMC209821 Front: 2518 Back: 2519

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Rusty Arp Serial: JMC209823 Front: 2216 Back: 2216 G-Hook

Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Kevin Cranfill Serial: JMC209824 Front: 2218 Back: 2217

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Timothy Moore Serial: JMC209827 Front: 2517 Back: 2518

Qty

26

Unit Price

1,096.50

Amount

28,509.00



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number Description

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Aaron Gast Serial: JMC209829 Front: 2517 Back: 2516 G-Hook

Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Spencer Hillard Serial: JMC209830 Front: 2216 Back: 2016

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Jason Cruce Serial: JMC209831 Front: 2514 Back: 2516 G-Hook

Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Carlton Peterson Serial: JMC209832 Front: 2015 Back: 2015

G-Hook Belt: XS  Belly Band:S

Name: Shane Barnes Serial: JMC209833 Front: 2515 Back: 2216

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:S

Name: Mark Ellison Serial: JMC209834 Front: 2515 Back: 2516

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Ross Wuarles Serial: JMC209835 Front: 2215 Back: 2016

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Luke Master Serial: JMC209837 Front: 2516 Back: 2517

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Steven Fulgham Serial: JMC209838 Front: 2215 Back: 2216

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Luke Backus Serial: JMC209839 Front: 2515 Back: 2217

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:S

Name: Ernie Garcia Serial: JMC209841 Front: 2515 Back: 2215

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:S

Name: Thomas Young Serial: JMC209842 Front: 2516 Back: 2516

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:M

Name: Chad Taska  Serial: JMC209843 Front: 2214 Back: 2014 G-Hook

Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Qty Unit Price Amount



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number

01-00650-01

Description

Name: Charlene Jennings Serial: JMC209844 Front: 2213 Back: 2213

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Morgan Newbold Serial: JMC209846 Front: 2215 Back: 2216

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Christopher Kiss Serial: JMC209847 Front: 2215 Back: 2016

G-Hook Belt: S  Belly Band:S

Name: Jeremy Perez Serial: JMC209850 Front: 2515 Back: 2216

G-Hook Belt: M  Belly Band:S

RISE, Stealth Carrier, Black, 2XL & Larger, Elite IIIA

Name: Ryan Brumley Serial: JMC209814 Front: 2818 Back: 2518

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Michael Everette Serial: JMC209815 Front: 2817 Back: 2518

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Derick Smith Serial: JMC209816 Front: 2816 Back: 2517

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Mykel Luera Serial: JMC209822 Front: 2815 Back: 2516

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Steve Thurman Serial: JMC209825 Front: 2817 Back: 2517

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Joe Randolph Cook Serial: JMC209826 Front: 2815 Back: 2516

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Trey Mayer Serial: JMC209828 Front: 2816 Back: 2516 G-Hook

Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Doak Funk Serial: JMC209836 Front: 2817 Back: 2517 G-Hook

Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Anthony Ortiz Serial: JMC209840 Front: 2817 Back: 2517

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Qty

12

Unit Price

1,147.50

Amount

13,770.00



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number

01-00488-02

Description

Name: Sean Dickerson Serial: JMC209845 Front: 2816 Back: 2516

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Jeremy Doney Serial: JMC209848 Front: 2816 Back: 2517

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

Name: Christopher Mitchell Serial: JMC209849 Front: 2817 Back: 2518

G-Hook Belt: L  Belly Band:M

RISE, Flex Carrier, Dark Navy, Load Bearing, Carrier Only

Name: John Geeslin Serial: JMC209962 Front: 2213 Back: 2014

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Ryan Brumley Serial: JMC209963 Front: 2818 Back: 2518

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Michael Everette Serial: JMC209964 Front: 2817 Back: 2518

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Derick Smith Serial: JMC209965 Front: 2816 Back: 2517

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Daniel Morales Serial: JMC209966 Front: 2517 Back: 2518

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: William Davis Serial: JMC209967 Front: 2516 Back: 2518

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Joshua Gafford Serial: JMC209968 Front: 2215 Back: 2214

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Kolton Pirkle  Serial: JMC209969 Front: 2216 Back: 2016

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Juston Wood Serial: JMC209970 Front: 2518 Back: 2519

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Mykel Luera Serial: JMC209971 Front: 2815 Back: 2516

Qty

38

Unit Price

468.18

Amount

17,790.84



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number Description

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Rusty Arp Serial: JMC209972 Front: 2216 Back: 2216

QRLB360: MR  Belly Band:S

Name: Kevin Cranfil Serial: JMC209973 Front: 2218 Back: 2217

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Steve Thurman Serial: JMC209974 Front: 2817 Back: 2517

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Joe Randolph Cook Serial: JMC209975 Front: 2815 Back: 2516

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Timothy Moore Serial: JMC209976 Front: 2517 Back: 2518

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Trey Mayer Serial: JMC209977 Front: 2816 Back: 2516

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Aaron Gast Serial: JMC209978 Front: 2517 Back: 2516

QRLB360: LN  Belly Band:M

Name: Spencer Hillard Serial: JMC209979 Front: 2216 Back: 2016

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Jason Cruce Serial: JMC209980 Front: 2514 Back: 2516

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Carlton Peterson Serial: JMC209981 Front: 2015 Back: 2015

QRLB360: SR  Belly Band:S

Name: Shane Barnes Serial: JMC209982 Front: 2515 Back: 2216

QRLB360: LN  Belly Band:S

Name: Mark Ellison Serial: JMC209983 Front: 2515 Back: 2516

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Ross Quarles Serial: JMC209984 Front: 2215 Back: 2016

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Qty Unit Price Amount



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number Description

Name: Doak Funk Serial: JMC209985 Front: 2817 Back: 2517

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Luke Master Serial: JMC209986 Front: 2516 Back: 2517

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Steven Fulgham Serial: JMC209987 Front: 2215 Back: 2216

QRLB360: MR  Belly Band:S

Name: Luke Backus Serial: JMC209988 Front: 2515 Back: 2217

QRLB360: LN  Belly Band:S

Name: Anthony Ortiz Serial: JMC209989 Front: 2817 Back: 2517

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Ernie Garcia Serial: JMC209990 Front: 2515 Back: 2215

QRLB360: LN  Belly Band:S

Name: Thomas Young Serial: JMC209991 Front: 2516 Back: 2516

QRLB360: LR  Belly Band:M

Name: Chad Taska Serial: JMC209992 Front: 2214 Back: 2014

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Charlene Jennings Serial: JMC209993 Front: 2213 Back: 2213

QRLB360: MR  Belly Band:S

Name: Sean Dickerson Serial: JMC209994 Front: 2816 Back: 2516

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Morgan Newbold Serial: JMC209995 Front: 2215 Back: 2216

QRLB360: MR  Belly Band:S

Name: Christopher Kiss Serial: JMC209996 Front: 2215 Back: 2016

QRLB360: MN  Belly Band:S

Name: Jeremy Doney Serial: JMC209997 Front: 2816 Back: 2517

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Name: Christopher Mitchell Serial: JMC209998 Front: 2817 Back: 2518

QRLB360: XLN  Belly Band:M

Qty Unit Price Amount



Customer Quote
Quote # QUO80584-BB

I authorize the purchase above and  acknowledge that I have read and accepted the Angel Armor, LLC Terms and Conditions of Sale
and the Angel Armor, LLC Product Sample Disclaimer located at angelarmor.com/terms-and-conditions/

Signature:__________________________ Date:_______________________

Accounts Payable

Email:________________________________

Phone Number:_________________________

Part Number

01-00554

01-00553

01-00552

01-00551

01-00550

01-00549

Description

Name: Jeremy Perez Serial: JMC209999 Front: 2515 Back: 2216

QRLB360: LN  Belly Band:S

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301, 8x10“, SC, III

Charlene Jennings

John Geeslin

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301, 8x10”, FC, III

Charlene Jennings

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301, 9x11“, SC, III

Kevin Cranfill

Jason Cruce

Carlton Peterson

Chad Taska

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301 9x11”, FC, III

Christopher Kiss

Chad Taska

Ross Wuarles

Carlton Peterson

Kolton Pirkle

Joshua Gafford

John Geeslin

Spencer Hillard

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301,10x12“, SC, III

Truth SNAP, 308 Ultra, AAU301, 10x12”, FC, III

Qty

2

1

4

8

32

29

Unit Price

561.00

561.00

663.00

663.00

765.00

765.00

Amount

1,122.00

561.00

2,652.00

5,304.00

24,480.00

22,185.00

Subtotal
Shipping Cost (UPS® Ground)
Total

116,373.84
1,730.00

$118,103.84



 AI# 13296 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 37. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 10028285, with GT Distributors, Inc., for the purchase of Glock
service pistols for the Lubbock Police Department. 

Item Summary
This purchase will be for 335 Glock G45 MOS7 9mm ACRO AG service pistols.
The Police Department will be exchanging 335 used service pistols for a discount
with the new purchase. The new service pistols will be distributed to the Lubbock
Police Department Officers.

The Glock pistols are being purchased through Buy Board Contract #698-23.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 10028285, with GT Distributors, Inc. of Pflugerville, Texas
for $196,880.40, is budgeted in the Adopted FY 2025-2026 Police Operating
Budget, Seized Funds. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police 

Attachments
Resolution - GT Distributors Inc. 
Purchase Order- GT Distributors Inc. 





 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 2/26/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10028285 OP000
Branch/Plant         5713

GT DISTRIBUTORS, INC. CITY OF LUBBOCK 
1124 NEW MEISTER LN. STE 100                                                   POLICE ACADEMY
PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660                                                               REESE CENTER

508 DAVIS DRIVE
LUBBOCK TX 79416

Ordered                              .Freight2/26/2025
Taken ByRequested 4/30/2025 A ESPARZA

BUYBOARD CONTRACT #698-23Delivery PER L PEDERSON   REQ. #62904

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
GLOCK G45 MOS7 9mm ACRO P2 335.000 580.2400 EA 194,380.40         4/30/2025

GLOCK-PA455S302MO
AG NTF

 
FREIGHT 1.000 2,500.0000 EA 2,500.00         4/30/2025

NET 30Terms                                                                                                                                      Total Order            196,880.40

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $196,880.40 awarded to GT Distributors, Inc. of Pflugerville, TX, on  
   . The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 
February 19, 2025, from GT Distributors, Inc. of Pflugerville, TX, and BuyBoard Contract #698-23. 
 
Resolution #____________________ 
 
 
CITY OF LUBBOCK:     ATTEST:  
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________     
Mark McBrayer, Mayor                       Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lisa Pederson at 806-775-2765 or via email at LPederson@mylubbock.us.



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


000383
Master No.

0/0/0000

GT Distributors - Austin

NET 15

Lubbock, City of

1

QTE0200104

Lubbock, City of (TX)

2/19/2025

250219  GLOCK 45MO    2,987,601 
Purchase Order No. Customer ID Salesperson ID Shipping Method Payment Terms Req Ship Date

Quantity Item Number Description UOM Unit Price Ext. Price

Ship To:Bill To:

Quote
Date
Page:

Attn: Accounts Payable
PO Box 2000
Lubbock TX    79457

916 Texas Avenue
Lubbock TX    79401

CH

(512) 451-8298  Ext. 0000

1124 New Meister Ln., Ste 100
Pflugerville TX 78660

    ($311.00) ($104,185.00) UG-GLOCK45MOS Used Gun Glock 45 MOS Gen 5 EA         335 

         $0.00           $0.00 NOTES: Notes: EA           1 

Trade assumes box and 3 magazines.
*Subtract $5.00 for missing gun box
*Subtract $18.00 per missing magazine

         $0.00           $0.00 NOTES: Notes: EA           1 

All guns must be fully functional to receive
full trade value.

         $0.00           $0.00 NOTES: Notes: EA           1 

The agency is responsible for packaging
and all freight charges on trades to G T
Distributors.

         $0.00           $0.00 NOTES: Notes: EA           1 

Trade ins must be received within 60 days
after receipt of new guns.

       $891.24  $298,565.40 GLOCK-PA455S302MO Glock G45 MOS7 9mm ACRO P2 AG NTF/NTR EA         335 

         $0.00           $0.00 NOTES: Notes: EA           1 

Quotation reflects BuyBoard Contract 698-23.
Contract period 4/1/23-3/31/25.
Email BuyBoard PO's to info@buyboard.com

Your salesperson is Octavio Montalvo. Thank You.

$194,380.40 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$196,880.40 

$2,500.00 

Jared Flood 806-507-0325

 
JFlood@mylubbock.us

Subtotal
Misc
Tax
Freight

Total

QUOTE IS GOOD FOR 30 DAYS.  IN ORDER TO RECEIVE QUOTED PRICE
PLEASE PRESENT A COPY OF QUOTE AT POINT OF SALE IN STORES OR
REFERENCE QUOTE NUMBER ON PO OR REQUISITION



 AI# 13297 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 38. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 10028288, with SSD International Inc., for the purchase of
ammunition for the Lubbock Police Department.

Item Summary
The ammunition is necessary to equip, train and maintain officers' proficiency with
their firearms. The department's duty pistols and rifles are calibrated to this specific
ammunition. SSD International is the only distributor of this ammunition in
Texas. 

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 10028288, for $294.739 for the ammunition, is budgeted in the
Adopted FY 2025-2026 Police Operating Budget, Abandoned Vehicle Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-SSD International 
Purchase Order- SSD International 





 
 
 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 2/27/2025P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10028288 OP000
Branch/Plant         5713

SSD INTERNATIONAL INC CITY OF LUBBOCK 
1349 S ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL                                                POLICE ACADEMY
APOPKA FL 32703                                                                             REESE CENTER

508 DAVIS DRIVE
LUBBOCK TX 79416

Ordered                              .Freight2/27/2025
Taken ByRequested 6/30/2025 A ESPARZA

PUR-2025-18707   SOLE SOURCEDelivery PER L PEDERSON   REQ. 62892

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Hornaday 223 REM 53 GR TAP 1,000.000 218.7800 EA 218,780.00        6/30/2025
                         80295 
                         PATROL 200RD CS 
 

Hornaday 9MM LUGER+P 135 GR 50.000 269.1800 EA 13,459.00        6/30/2025
                         90225 
                        CRITICAL DUTY LE 500 RD CS 
 

Magtec 9MM 124 FMJ 1000 RD CS 250.000 250.0000 EA 62,500.00        6/30/2025
                         MT9B 

NET 30Terms                                                                                                                                      Total Order             294,739.00

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $294,739.00 awarded to SSD International, Inc. of Apopka, FL, on  

   . The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 

February 26, 2025, from SSD International, Inc. of Apopka, FL, and Sole Source. 

 

Resolution #____________________ 

 

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK:     ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________________  _______________________________________     

Mark McBrayer, Mayor                       Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

184487
Typewritten Text
If you have any questions about this order, please contact Lisa Pederson at 806-775-2765 or via email at LPederson@mylubbock.us.



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


 

 

1349 South Orange Blossom Trail, Apopka, FL 32703 Tel. 407.410.6914 

 

SALES QUOTATION  

QUOTED BY: 
Austin Weber 
Law Enforcement Account Manager  
SSD International Inc. 

DATE: 02/26/2025  
QUOTE: LUBBOCKPDAW-16 

 

SELL TO: 
Rangemaster Tim Vaden 
Lubbock Police Department 
1205 15th St Lubbock, TX, 79401 

SHIP TO: 
Rangemaster Tim Vaden 
Lubbock Police Department  
508 Davis Drive Lubbock, TX, 79416 

ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY PRICE TOTAL 

80295 HORNADY 223 REM 53 GR TAP PATROL® 200 RD CS 1000 $218.78 $218,780.00 

90225 HORNADY 9MM LUGER+P 135 GR CRITICAL DUTY® LE 500 RD CS 50 $269.18 $13,459.00 

MT9B MAGTECH 9MM 124 FMJ 1000 RD CS 250 $250.00 $62,500.00 

SHIP SHIPPING 1 $0.00 $0.00 

 TOTAL $294,739.00 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS      

Prices are in US Dollars. 
Quotes are valid for 30 days. Prices are subject to change after 30 days.                                                                                                                                                    
Payment Terms: Purchase Order, payable within 30 days of delivery.   
Returns: All returned and cancelled orders are subject to a 25% restocking fee.  Return shipments require an RA number before 
products can be shipped back to the manufacturer or SSD.  
Shipment Terms: Delivery to agency.  Freight paid on orders over $10,000 in value.   
Estimated time to shipping:  120-180 days after receipt of signed purchase order.  



 AI# 13326 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 39. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 2 to
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Agreement No. 16514, to alter the
payout agreement for the previously approved funding.  

Item Summary
On April 26, 2022, the City Council approved an American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) Funding Agreement with MB3, LLC, for construction of infrastructure to
serve an affordable housing development.  On April 23, 2023, Amendment #1
changed the participating bank from Happy State Bank to Peoples Bank.  No other
terms were changed through the amendment.    

Mr. Lal Williams is the owner/representative for the endeavor.  The proposed
development was to be located directly to the north of Estacado High School.  The
boundaries for the development were as follows:
  

On the North: East Municipal Drive;
On the South: East Erskine Street
On the East: North Magnolia Drive; and
On the West: North Ivory Avenue. 

The newly constructed infrastructure would serve sixty-six (66) newly constructed
affordable housing units.  The original payout of the ARPA grant funds would be
disbursements as follows: 

The first $625,000 of the funds would be disbursed once the planned
infrastructure had been constructed, inspected by the City, and dedicated to
the City for public use (all but a small portion of the electic installation has
been completed);

1.

The next payout would be made to MB3, LLC, in the amount of $9,470,
following the issuance of building permits by the City for each of the

2.



first thirty-three (33) homes. 
The final payout of $312,500 would be disbursed upon the completed
construction of the final thirty-three (33) homes. 

3.

Mr. Williams has completed four (4) homes to date.  Unfortunately, market
conditions, including inflation and high interest rates, have been a barrier to finding
qualified home buyers.  Because of these conditions, Mr. Williams stated that he
would not be able to start construction on any of the remaining homes without an
infusion of cash.

The proposed Amendment No. 2 suggests an alternative payout, which is
explained below: 

Upon completion of the first four (4) single-family residences, the City will
disburse $450,806.86.  The construction has been completed on all four (4)
houses, and all inspections have been performed;

1.

The final balance of $112,701.71 will be disbursed in payouts of $9,391.81.
This amount will be disbursed when Mr. Williams obtains the building
permits for each of the next twelve (12) homes.

2.

To date, the City has paid out a total of $686,491.43, leaving a total balance of
$563,580.57. Following the disbursements outlined above for Amendment #2, the
ARPA funding of $1,250,000 will have been fully expended, allowing the City to
reach the ARPA spending deadline well in advance of the statutorily imposed date
of December 31, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
This amendment has no fiscal impact other than to change the timing of the
disbursement of the previously allocated amount.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Amendment #2 
Amendment #2 - MB3,LLC 
Original Agreement - MB3, LLC 
Resolution and Amendment No.1 



































































 AI# 13292 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case
1112-G, a request of Presto Hail Lifters for Lon Miller, for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial (AC), at
2110 and 2112 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and west of Avenue U,
Felix Addition, Lot 10 and the west 37.5 feet of Lot 9, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department
Staff Report attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the
request. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on March 6, 2025,
and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1112-G 
Staff Report 1112-G 
Documentation 1112-G 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1112-G 
City Council Meeting March 25, 2025 

Applicant Presto Hail Lifters 

Property Owner Lon Miller 

Council District  2 

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 15, 1949, Ordinance No. 0948: The subject properties were annexed into city limits and 

zoned Single-Family District (R-1).
• August 28, 1952, Zone Case 0363, Ordinance No. 1265: The subject properties were rezoned from R-1 

to Two-Family District (R-2).
• June 22, 1961, Zone Case 0919, Ordinance No. 3480: The subject properties were rezoned from R-2 to 

Multi Family District (R-3).
• December 20, 1962, Zone Case 1045, Ordinance No. 3965: The subject properties were rezoned from 

R-3 to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A).
• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were 

rezoned from C-2A to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code.

• March 6, 2025, Zone Case 1112-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from NC to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 5-0-0.  

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 46
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject properties were platted August 8, 1963 as Felix Addition, Lot 10 and the west 37.5 feet of Lot 9, and 
are currently developed with a commercial retail center.  

Adjacent Property Development 
Properties to the north are zoned Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and High Density Residential District 
(HDR) and are developed with a mixture of single family residences and a duplex. To the east, south and west, 
the properties are zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), and are developed with a variety of commercial 
uses. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 2110 and 2112 50th Street, and are located north of 50th Street and west 
of Avenue U. The applicant requests a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban 
Commercial District (AC).   

Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Requested zoning: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) zoning is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 
moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 
standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

The intent of the proposed Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) zoning is, “… to provide for a broad range of 
single-use and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses 
typically with on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with 
increased intensity.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change is along 50th Street and west of Avenue U. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, 
designates 50th Street as a Principal Arterial and Avenue U as a Collector Street. Arterial streets are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve the high-volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Collectors are 
designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds (i.e., 30-35 mph).  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.   

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to AC would 
be in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent lower 
intensity commercial land uses, and fronting along an Arterial Street.    

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The properties are located along an 
arterial, and the requested zoning district is appropriate adjacent to the nearby commercial land uses. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need any additional public improvements. 

Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea   Greg Hernandez 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096 806-775-3147
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us ghernandez@mylubbock.us

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us


Attachment A      Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 1112-G 

Allowable Uses:  

Transportation:  

Auto Urban Commercial District (AC)    

The proposed development has a point of access from 50th Street. 

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

50th Street, 
Principal Arterial 

Complete  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven‐lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven‐lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:   No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.1       Zone Case 1112‐G: Presto Hail Lifters for Lon Miller, request for a zone change from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Auto‐Urban Commercial (AC), at:  

 2110 and 2112 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and west of Avenue U, Felix Addition,

Lot 10 and the west 37.5 feet of Lot 9.

 PLANNING MANAGER GREG HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions  from the Commission. 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

APPLICANT KATHY CANTU, 2106 50th Street, gave comments about the request and answered questions from 

the Commission. 

IN FAVOR MIKE MALDONADO, 1105 81st Street, further explained the request, explaining it should attract more 

business, and therefore he is in favor of the proposed zone change. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1112‐G, a motion was made by ROBERT WOOD and seconded by TAREK REDWAN to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-580










1112-G

East View.

North View—Subject Property West View.

South View.





 AI# 13319 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
03/25/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance (Single Reading) - Finance: Consider approval of an ordinance
providing for the issuance of City of Lubbock, Texas, General Obligation Bonds,
in one or more series, in a principal amount not to exceed $54,000,000, for the
purpose of paying the costs of acquiring, constructing and reconstructing street
improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line relocation and
traffic signalization, necessary and related storm damage facilities and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor, levying a tax in payment thereof;
providing for the award of the sale thereof in accordance with specified parameters;
approving an official statement; approving execution of a purchase contract; and
enacting other provisions relating thereto. Street bond projects funded by the
2022 voter authorization include Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street, 114th
Street from Frankford Avenue to Slide Road, 114th Street from Indiana Avenue to
University Avenue, and Residential Unpaved Roadways East of I-27. Street bond
projects funded by the 2024 voter authorization include Broadway from Avenue Q
to Avenue E, University Avenue from 50th Street to Loop 289, Avenue P from
130th Street to 146th Street, 146th Street from University Avenue to Avenue P,
and 146th Street from Slide Road to Quaker Avenue. 

Item Summary
The General Obligation (GO) Bonds issued out of the voter-authorized $200
million bond referendum that passed in November 2022 are for the following
projects: 

Upland Avenue - 4th Street to 19th Street1.
114th Street - Frankford Avenue to Slide Road2.
114th Street - Indiana Avenue to University Avenue3.
Residential Unpaved Roadways - East of I-274.

The GO Bonds issued out of the voter-authorized $103.4 million bond referendum
that passed in November 2024 are for the following projects: 



Broadway - Avenue Q to Avenue E1.
University Avenue - 50th Street to Loop 2892.
Avenue P - 130th Street to 146th Street3.
146th Street - University Avenue to Avenue P4.
146th Street - Slide Road to Quaker Avenue5.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of the Project costs financed with the Revenue Bonds will not
exceed the $54,000,000 total principal amount of one or more series of General
Obligation Bonds. The annual debt service payments for the Bonds are budgeted
through the annual operating budget process and are included in long-term
financial planning and rate models.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 



 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Ordinance No. 2025-O[____] 

 
 

ORDINANCE 

relating to 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

 

Adopted: March 25, 2025 

 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

 

i 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01 Definitions.............................................................................................................. 2 
Section 1.02 Findings.................................................................................................................. 4 
Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles and Headings ................................................................. 5 
Section 1.04 Interpretation .......................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE II 
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01 Tax Levy ................................................................................................................ 5 
Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund ...................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE III 
AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01 Authorization ......................................................................................................... 6 
Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest ......................................................... 6 
Section 3.03 Medium, Method and Place of Payment ................................................................ 7 
Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Bonds .................................................................... 8 
Section 3.05 Ownership .............................................................................................................. 9 
Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer and Exchange ..................................................................... 9 
Section 3.07 Cancellation ......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.08 Temporary Bonds ................................................................................................. 10 
Section 3.09 Replacement Bonds ............................................................................................. 10 
Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System ..................................................................................... 11 
Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book Entry Only 

System .................................................................................................................. 12 
Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co ....................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01 Limitation on Redemption ................................................................................... 13 
Section 4.02 Optional Redemption ........................................................................................... 13 
Section 4.03 Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption ................................................................. 13 
Section 4.04 Partial Redemption............................................................................................... 13 
Section 4.05 Notice of Redemption to Owners ........................................................................ 14 
Section 4.06 Payment Upon Redemption ................................................................................. 14 
Section 4.07 Effect of Redemption ........................................................................................... 15 
Section 4.08 Lapse of Payment ................................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE V 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01 Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar ............................................................. 15 
Section 5.02 Qualifications ....................................................................................................... 15 
Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar ................................................................... 15 
Section 5.04 Termination .......................................................................................................... 16 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

ii 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners ................................................................................ 16 
Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions....................................................... 16 
Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor ........................................................................ 16 

ARTICLE VI 
FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01 Form Generally .................................................................................................... 16 
Section 6.02 CUSIP Registration .............................................................................................. 17 
Section 6.03 Legal Opinion ...................................................................................................... 17 
Section 6.04 Statement of Insurance ......................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE VII 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

Section 7.01 Sale of Bonds; Official Statement ........................................................................ 17 
Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Bonds ............................................................................ 19 
Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds ............................................................................................. 19 

ARTICLE VIII 
INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01 Investments .......................................................................................................... 19 
Section 8.02 Investment Income ............................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE IX 
PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01 Payment of the Bonds .......................................................................................... 20 
Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants ................................................................. 20 
Section 9.03 Covenants to Maintain Tax Exempt Status .......................................................... 21 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01 Events of Default ................................................................................................. 23 
Section 10.02 Remedies for Default ........................................................................................... 24 
Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive ...................................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE XI 
DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01 Discharge ............................................................................................................. 24 

ARTICLE XII 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01 Annual Reports .................................................................................................... 24 
Section 12.02 Event Notices ....................................................................................................... 25 
Section 12.03 Identifying Information ........................................................................................ 26 
Section 12.04 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ......................................................... 26 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

iii 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
AMENDMENTS; ATTORNEY GENERAL MODIFICATION 

Section 13.01 Amendments ........................................................................................................ 27 
Section 13.02 Attorney General Modification ............................................................................ 28 

ARTICLE XIV 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

Section 14.01 Effective Immediately .......................................................................................... 29 
 

EXHIBIT A - DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION................................................................................................ A-1 

EXHIBIT B - SALE PARAMETERS ...................................................................................... B-1 
EXHIBIT C - FORM OF THE BONDS ................................................................................... C-1 
 



 

1 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY 
OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, IN 
ONE OR MORE SERIES; LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE AWARD OF THE SALE 
THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFIED 
PARAMETERS; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT; 
APPROVING EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE CONTRACT; 
AND ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”) hereby finds and 
determines that it is in the best interests of the City to issue bonds to pay the costs of making 
permanent public improvements authorized by the voters of the City at bond elections held on 
November 8, 2022 and November 5, 2024 (collectively, the “Elections”) in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 1331, Texas Government Code, as amended;  

WHEREAS, the City is an “Issuer” within the meaning of Chapter 1371, Texas 
Government Code (“Chapter 1371”), as amended, and the City Council desires to delegate, 
pursuant to Chapter 1371 and the parameters of this Ordinance, to the Authorized Officer, the 
authority to approve the principal amount, the interest rate(s), the date(s) of sale and the number 
of series, the price and the terms of the Bonds authorized hereby and to otherwise take such actions 
as are necessary and appropriate to effect the sale of the Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUBBOCK: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01 Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in this 
Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Authorized Officer” means each of the Mayor, City Manager and the Chief Financial 
Officer, acting individually. 

“Bond” means any of the Bonds. 

“Bond Date” means the date designated as the initial date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) 
of this Ordinance. 

“Bonds” means the City’s bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Ordinance. 



 

- 2 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday or other day 
on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Chapter 1331” means Chapter 1331, Texas Government Code, as amended.   

“Chapter 1371” means Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended.   

“City” means the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, if any, 
enacted on or before the Issue Date. 

“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means the Designated Payment/Transfer Office, as 
designated in the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, or such other location designated by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any successor 
securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System. 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 10.01 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City Council. 

“Gross Proceeds” has the meaning stated in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

 “Initial Bond” means the initial bond or bonds authorized by Section 3.04 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means each interest and sinking fund or accounts established 
by Section 2.02 of this Ordinance. 



 

- 3 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Bonds is 
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, as set forth in the 
Pricing Certificate. 

“Investment” has the meaning stated in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

“Issue Date” for each series of Bonds is the respective date on which such series of Bonds 
is delivered against payment therefor. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 “Official Statement” means a document described in Section 7.01(c) prepared for 
dissemination to potential investors in connection with the public offering and sale of the Bonds. 

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in 
the Register. 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means the bank or trust company identified in the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement referred to in Section 5.01 of this Ordinance, or any successor thereto 
as provided in this Ordinance. 

“Preliminary Official Statement” means a document described in Section 7.01(c) prepared 
for dissemination to potential investors prior to the availability of the final Official Statement. 

“Pricing Certificate” means a certificate or certificates signed by an Authorized Officer 
establishing the terms and features of each series of Bonds in accordance with Section 7.01 hereof 

“Purchase Contract” means any contract, agreement or investment letter pursuant to which 
the Bonds of each series are sold to the Purchaser thereof.  

“Purchaser” means the purchaser or purchasers of the Bonds of each series identified in the 
Pricing Certificate. 

“Record Date” means the date specified in the Pricing Certificate. 

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Regulations” means the final or temporary Income Tax Regulations applicable to the 
Bonds issued pursuant to Sections 141 through 150 of the Code.  Any reference to a section of the 
Regulations shall also refer to any successor provision to such section hereafter promulgated by 
the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Sections 141 through 150 of the Code and applicable to 
the Bonds. 

“Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the City and 
DTC. 

 “Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.  

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 



 

- 4 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

 “Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

“Tax-Exempt Bonds” shall mean Bonds, the interest on which is excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, as determined and set forth in the Pricing Certificate 
therefor. 

“Taxable Bonds” shall mean Bonds the interest on which is not excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, as determined and set forth in the Pricing Certificate 
therefor.  

“Term Bonds” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.03 hereof 

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds as the same come due and payable and remaining 
unclaimed by the Owners of such Bonds after the applicable payment or redemption date. 

“Yield” means the yield computed under Section 1.148-4 of the Regulations for a Bond or 
issue of Bonds, and yield computed under Section 1.148-5 of the Regulations for an investment. 

Section 1.02 Findings. 

The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions hereof. 

Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.04 Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural number 
and vice versa. 

(b) Any action required to be taken on a date which is not a Business Day shall be done 
on the next succeeding Business Day and have the same effect as if done on the date so required. 

(c) Any duty, responsibility, privilege, power, or authority conferred by this Ordinance 
upon an officer shall extend to an individual who occupies such office in an interim, acting or 
provisional capacity. 



 

- 5 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(d) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed 
to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 

ARTICLE II 
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND 

Section 2.01 Tax Levy. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the State 
of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each 
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the 
City, at a rate sufficient, within the limits prescribed by law, to pay the debt service requirements 
of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their redemption at 
maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever amount is greater), when 
due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection. 

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all 
property appearing on the tax rolls of the City most recently approved in accordance with law and 
the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and committed 
irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as due and 
payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

(d) If the lien and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner permitted 
by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately 
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be 
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding Bonds, there shall be subtracted the amount of any Bonds that 
have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar for such redemption. 

Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(a) A special fund or account for each series of Bonds (each, an “Interest and Sinking 
Fund”) shall be and is hereby created solely for the benefit of the Bonds of such series and each 
such fund or account shall be maintained at an official depository bank of the City separate and 
apart from all other funds and accounts of the City.  

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest 
and Sinking Fund established for each series of Bonds shall be used solely for the purpose of 
paying the interest on and principal of the Bonds of such series when and as due and payable in 
accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 



 

- 6 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE III 
AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 

REGARDING THE BONDS 

Section 3.01 Authorization. 

The City’s bonds (the “Bonds”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in 
accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including specifically Chapter 
1331, Chapter 1371, and Article VIII of the City’s Home-Rule Charter.  The Bonds may be issued, 
from time to time, in one or more series, on the dates and in the aggregate principal amount 
designated in the Pricing Certificate therefor, for the purpose of (i) acquiring, constructing and 
reconstructing street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line relocation 
and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities and the acquisition of land 
and rights-of-way therefor and (ii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds.  The aggregate principal 
amount of all Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall not exceed $54,000,000.   

If the Bonds are issued in more than one series, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply 
to each such series in the manner, to the extent and subject to such terms and conditions as shall 
be specified in the Pricing Certificate therefor.  

Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest. 

(a) The Bonds shall be dated the date set forth in the Pricing Certificate (the “Bond 
Date”).  The Bonds shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except 
the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1, or in such other manner provided in the Pricing 
Certificate. 

(b) The Bonds shall mature on the date or dates, in the years and in the principal 
amounts set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or 
prior redemption, from the later of the date set forth in the Pricing Certificate or the most recent 
Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for 
each respective maturity specified in the Pricing Certificate.  Such interest shall be payable on each 
Interest Payment Date until maturity or prior redemption.  Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated 
on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) 
days each, or on such other basis as set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 

Section 3.03 Medium, Method and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be paid in lawful money of the 
United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at 
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of interest 
on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest 
payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when 



 

- 7 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment 
Date,” which shall be fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five 
Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class United States mail, postage prepaid, 
to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the Register at the close of business on the 
last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of the Interest Payment Date, and sent by 
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, at 
the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary banking arrangement 
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided, however, that the Owner shall 
bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least 
$1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank 
account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date 
(whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof) upon presentation and 
surrender of such Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a 
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions 
are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect 
as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason 
of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable. 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in 
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the accounts of the Owners of the Bonds to 
which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, Unclaimed 
Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after the applicable 
payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on the Bonds 
thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains three years after the retirement 
of all outstanding Bonds, shall be paid to the City to be used for any lawful purpose.  Thereafter, 
neither the City, the Paying Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to 
any Owners of such Bonds for any further payment of such unclaimed monies or on account of 
any such Bonds, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Bonds. 

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor and the City 
Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the City shall be 
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the 
same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said officers, 
and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of the City 
had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds. 



 

- 8 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature appears 
on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before the 
delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient for 
all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or 
be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon the 
Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly authenticated 
by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  It 
shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds.  In lieu of the executed 
Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Bond delivered at the Closing 
Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate substantially in the form 
provided herein, manually executed by (or, to the extent allowed by law, bearing a facsimile 
signature of) the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized 
agent, which certificate shall be evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas, that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City and that it has 
been registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Bond of each series reflecting the terms set forth 
in the Pricing Certificate and representing the entire principal amount of all Bonds of such series, 
payable in stated installments to the Purchaser, or its designee, executed by the Mayor and City 
Secretary of the City by their manual or facsimile signatures, approved by the Attorney General, 
and registered and manually signed by (or, to the extent allowed by law, bearing a facsimile 
signature of) the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the Purchaser or its designee.  
Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Bond and 
deliver a single registered, definitive Bond for each maturity, in the aggregate principal amount 
thereof, to DTC on behalf of the Purchaser. 

Section 3.05 Ownership. 

(a) The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the person in 
whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of making 
and receiving payment as provided herein (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose 
name such Bond is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), and for 
all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall 
discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent of 
the sums paid. 

Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the City shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in 



 

- 9 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar 
with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar.  
No transfer of any Bond shall be effective until entered in the Register. 

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the 
same maturity and interest rate and in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple 
of $5,000 and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Bonds 
presented for exchange.  The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and 
deliver Bonds exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section. 

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/ Registrar in accordance with 
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to 
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which 
such exchange Bond is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent 
transfer, or exchange for any different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 
governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration, transfer 
or exchange of a Bond. 

(f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer, 
or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, where such redemption is 
scheduled to occur within forty five (45) calendar days after the transfer or exchange date; 
provided, however, such limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the 
uncalled principal balance of a Bond. 

Section 3.07 Cancellation. 

All Bonds paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this Ordinance, 
and all Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are authenticated and 
delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be cancelled and proper records shall be made 
regarding such payment, redemption, exchange or replacement.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
then return such cancelled Bonds to the City or may in accordance with law destroy such cancelled 
Bonds and periodically furnish the City with certificates of destruction of such Bonds. 

Section 3.08 Temporary Bonds. 

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the 
preparation of definitive Bonds, the City may execute and, upon the City’s request, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more temporary Bonds that are printed, 
lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed or otherwise produced, in any denomination, 
substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which they are delivered, without 



 

- 10 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as the 
officers of the City executing such temporary Bonds may determine, as evidenced by their signing 
of such temporary Bonds. 

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall 
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 

(c) The City, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in 
exchange therefor Bonds of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the authorized 
denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bonds in temporary form 
surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge therefor to any 
Owner. 

Section 3.09 Replacement Bonds. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 
Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously 
outstanding.  The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to pay 
a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in 
connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence 
of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall 
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number 
not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or 
her ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction or theft of such Bond; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the City harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar and any tax or other 
governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the original 
Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, 
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such replacement Bond from 
the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, 



 

- 11 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of 
any loss, damage, cost or expense incurred by the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection 
therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 
Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its 
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond if it has become due and 
payable or may pay such Bond when it becomes due and payable. 

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute 
an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the benefits and 
security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such 
replacement Bond is delivered. 

Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bonds, the 
Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds 
shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate fully registered certificate for each of the 
maturities thereof. 

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 
the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the 
Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 
Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as shown 
on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or 
(iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a bondholder, as shown 
in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is 
registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of payment of 
principal of and interest on such Bonds, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other 
matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfer with respect to such 
Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal 
of and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective owners, as shown in the 
Register as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, 
and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s 
obligations with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the 
sum or sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive a 
certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & 
Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 



 

- 12 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(c) An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Representation Letter applicable to the City’s obligations (including the Bonds) delivered in book-
entry-only form to DTC as securities depository. 

Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only 
System. 

In the event that the City determines that it is in the best interest of the City and the 
beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event DTC 
discontinues the services described herein, the City shall (i) appoint a successor securities 
depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor 
securities depository and transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor securities 
depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated 
Bonds and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered Bonds to 
DTC Participants having Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no 
longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or 
in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in 
accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any 
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to 
principal of and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such Bonds, shall be made 
and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01 Limitation on Redemption. 

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in 
this Article IV and the Pricing Certificate. 

Section 4.02 Optional Redemption. 

(a) The City reserves the option to redeem Bonds in the manner provided in the Form 
of Bond attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as are required by the Pricing Certificate. 

(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional redemption, 
the City shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and 
shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot, or by any other customary method that results 
in a random selection, the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in 
such principal amounts for redemption. 



 

- 13 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(c) The City, at least forty-five (45) days before the redemption date, unless a shorter 
period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar 
of such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed. 

Section 4.03 Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. 

Bonds designated as “Term Bonds,” if any, in the Pricing Certificate are subject to 
scheduled mandatory redemption and will be redeemed by the City, out of moneys available for 
such purpose in the Interest and Sinking Fund, in the manner provided in the Form of Bond 
attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as are required by the Pricing Certificate.  Term 
Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption at the price, on the dates, and in the respective 
principal amounts set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 

Section 4.04 Partial Redemption. 

(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be redeemed, 
but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof If such a Bond is to 
be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 portion of the Bond as 
though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption. 

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in 
accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Bond 
or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond so 
surrendered, such exchange being without charge. 

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be redeemed. 

Section 4.05 Notice of Redemption to Owners. 

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by 
sending notice by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days 
before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, 
at the address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding 
the date of mailing such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which 
the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding are to be 
redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed. 

(c) The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem 
Bonds under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice may 
state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, 
in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption 
date or (ii) that the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled 
redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and such notice and 



 

- 14 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited 
or if the notice is rescinded.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such 
rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners.  Any Bonds subject to 
conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain outstanding, and the 
rescission shall not constitute an event of default.  Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, 
the failure of the City to make moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole 
on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of default. 

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 

Section 4.06 Payment Upon Redemption. 

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the City shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date 
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar 
from the City and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and accrued 
interest on the Bonds being redeemed. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of 
redemption from the money set aside for such purpose. 

Section 4.07 Effect of Redemption. 

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this 
Ordinance and subject to any conditions or rights reserved by the City under Section 4.05(c), the 
Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed 
for redemption and, unless the City defaults in its obligation to make provision for the payment of 
the principal thereof, or accrued interest thereon, such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to bear 
interest from and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and 
surrendered for payment on such date. 

(b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption 
date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall remain outstanding and continue 
to bear interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same 
by the City. 

Section 4.08 Lapse of Payment. 

Money set aside for the redemption of Bonds and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of 
such Bonds shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof. 



 

- 15 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE V 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01 Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The form of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement presented at the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was approved and the appointment of the Paying Agent/Registrar identified therein are 
hereby approved. 

The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar, specifying the duties and responsibilities of the City 
and the Paying Agent/Registrar, in substantially the form presented at the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was approved with such changes as may be approved by an Authorized Officer.  The 
signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary. 

Section 5.02 Qualifications. 

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized under 
the laws of the State of Texas, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as 
and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds. 

Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) At all times while any Bonds are outstanding, the City will maintain a Paying 
Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance. 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the City 
will promptly appoint a replacement. 

Section 5.04 Termination. 

The City, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the 
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to be 
terminated written notice of such termination. 

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners. 

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the City will 
cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class postage 
prepaid, at the address in the Register thereof, stating the effective date of the change and the name 
and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar and executing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Paying Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the provisions 
of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and functions of Paying Agent/Registrar 
prescribed thereby. 



 

- 16 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor. 

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the 
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

ARTICLE VI 
FORM OF THE BONDS 

Section 6.01 Form Generally. 

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment 
form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be generally in the form set forth in Exhibit C hereto, 
with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are permitted or 
required by this Ordinance and the Pricing Certificate, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or 
other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on 
Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such 
legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, 
consistently herewith, may be determined by the City or by the officers executing such Bonds, as 
evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, 
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds. 

(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced 
in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced 
by their execution thereof 

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be 
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced. 

Section 6.02 CUSIP Registration. 

The City or the Purchaser may secure identification numbers through CUSIP Global 
Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ, and may 
authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Bonds.  It is expressly provided, however, 
that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be of no significance or effect 
as regards the legality thereof and neither the City nor the attorneys approving said Bonds as to 
legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly printed on the Bonds. 

Section 6.03 Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, may 
be attached to or printed on the reverse side of each Bond over the certification of the City 
Secretary of the City, which may be executed in facsimile. 



 

- 17 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Section 6.04 Statement of Insurance. 

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for any Bond 
or Bonds may be printed on or attached to such Bond. 

ARTICLE VII 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

Section 7.01 Sale of Bonds; Official Statement. 

(a) The Bonds shall be sold to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this 
Ordinance, including this Section 7.01(a) and Exhibit B hereto, provided that all of the conditions 
set forth in Exhibit B can be satisfied.  As authorized by Chapter 1371, the Authorized Officer is 
authorized to act on behalf of the City, upon determining that the conditions set forth in Exhibit B 
can be satisfied, in selling and delivering the Bonds, and carrying out the other procedures 
specified in this Ordinance, including determining (i) the manner of sale (which may be by 
private placement, negotiated or competitive sale, limited or public offering or any combination 
thereof), (ii) the total aggregate principal amount and the number of series of the Bonds 
(including the aggregate principal amount of each series of Bonds issued to effect the purposes 
identified in Section 3.01 of this Ordinance), (iii) the date(s) on which the Bonds of each series 
will be sold and delivered, (iv) whether to acquire bond insurance for the Bonds, (v) the price at 
which the Bonds will be sold, (vi) the number and title or designation for the Bonds of each series 
to be issued, (vii) whether particular Bonds will be issued as Tax-Exempt Bonds or Taxable 
Bonds (viii) the form in which the Bonds shall be issued, (ix) the dates on which the Bonds will 
mature, the principal amount to mature in each year, the rate of interest to be borne by each such 
maturity, the interest payment dates, and the initial date from which interest will accrue, (x) the 
dates, prices and other terms upon and at which the Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity (including terms for optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption), and (xi) all 
other terms and provisions of the Bonds and all other matters relating to the issuance, sale and 
delivery thereof, all of which shall be specified in the Pricing Certificate. 

The Authorized Officer may approve modifications to this Ordinance to conform to the 
terms of the Bonds, as approved by the Authorized Officer, and execute any instruments, 
agreements and other documents as the Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or appropriate in 
connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance. 

The authority granted to the Authorized Officer under this Section 7.01(a) shall expire at 
11:59 p.m., on the one-year anniversary following the date of adoption of this Ordinance (the 
“Expiration Date”), unless otherwise extended by the City Council by separate action.  Bonds sold 
pursuant to a Purchase Contract (in the case of a private placement or negotiated sale) or winning 
bid (in the case of a competitive offering) executed on or before the Expiration Date may be 
delivered after such date. 

In satisfaction of Section 1201.022(a)(3), Texas Government Code, the City Council 
hereby determines that the delegation of the authority to the Authorized Officer to approve the 
final terms and conditions of each series of the Bonds as set forth in this Ordinance is, and the 
decisions made by the Authorized Officer pursuant to such delegated authority and incorporated 



 

- 18 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

in a Pricing Certificate will be, in the best interests of the City and shall have the same force and 
effect as if such determination were made by the City Council, and the Authorized Officer is 
hereby authorized to make and include in a Pricing Certificate an appropriate finding to that effect.  
Any finding or determination made by the Authorized Officer relating to the issuance and sale of 
the Bonds and the execution of the Purchase Contract in connection therewith shall have the same 
force and effect as a finding or determination made by the City Council. 

(b) The Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Purchase Contract (in the case of a private placement or negotiated sale) or the winning bid (in the 
case of a competitive offering)  in the form and on the terms approved by the Authorized Officer 
and all other officers, agents and representatives of the City are hereby authorized to do any and 
all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for the 
issuance and delivery of the Bonds.   

(c) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted for use in 
connection with the public offering and sale of each series of Bonds, with such appropriate 
variations as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer, and the Preliminary Official Statement 
is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) 
of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Authorized Officer 
is hereby authorized and directed to cause to be prepared a final Official Statement (the “Official 
Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information and other terms pertaining to the Bonds, 
and to execute the same by manual or facsimile signature and deliver appropriate numbers of 
executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved, executed and 
delivered, with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer and the 
Purchaser, may be used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale of the Bonds.  The use and 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary public offering of the Bonds 
by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. In the event the Bonds are sold 
pursuant to a competitive sale, the Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to approve the 
preparation and distribution of a notice of sale. 

(d) All officers of the City are authorized to execute such documents, certificates, 
receipts and other instruments as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery 
of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of sale therefor including, without limitation, the 
Purchase Contract. 

(e) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the 
closing conditions set forth in the Purchase Contract being satisfied, including specifically the 
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bond Counsel, which opinion shall 
be dated as of and delivered on the Closing Date. 

Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Bonds. 

(a) The Authorized Officer of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial 
Bonds and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, 
examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the 



 

- 19 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange 
or transfer by, the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds 
shall be made to the Purchaser under and subject to the general supervision and direction of the 
Authorized Officer, against receipt by the City of all amounts due to the City under the terms of 
sale. 

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute 
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City 
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and 
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for 
the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed by 
the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively. 

Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds. 

Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds shall be applied in accordance with the provisions set 
forth in the Pricing Certificate, which may provide for the creation of any special accounts deemed 
necessary or appropriate by the Authorized Officer. 

ARTICLE VIII 
INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01 Investments. 

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance and any special 
accounts provided for in the Pricing Certificate pursuant to Section 7.03, at the City’s option, may 
be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.  The Authorized 
Officer, and any other officer of the City authorized to make investments on behalf of the City, are 
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City, any and all investment 
agreements, guaranteed investment contracts or repurchase agreements in connection with the 
investment of moneys on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund and the special account provided 
for in the Pricing Certificate pursuant to Section 7.03, but only to the extent such investment 
agreements, guaranteed investment contracts or repurchase agreements are authorized investments 
under applicable law. 

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is so 
invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the 
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from 
the fund from which the investment was made. 

Section 8.02 Investment Income. 

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund shall 
be credited to such fund. 



 

- 20 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of other funds to be deposited 
pursuant to Section 7.03 hereof shall be credited to the fund or account where deposited or shall 
be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund as shall be determined by the City Council.   

ARTICLE IX 
PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01 Payment of the Bonds. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the 
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of the Bonds as 
will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date, maturity date or date of prior 
redemption. 

Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The City will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, 
stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Bond; the City will promptly 
pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Bond on the dates and at the places 
and manner prescribed in such Bond; and the City will, at the times and in the manner prescribed 
by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts of money specified by this 
Ordinance. 

(b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the Bonds; 
all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and effectively taken; 
and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable obligations 
of the City in accordance with their terms. 

Section 9.03 Federal Income Tax Exclusion for Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

(a) Not to Cause Interest on Tax-Exempt Bonds to Become Taxable.  The City shall 
not use, permit the use of or omit to use Gross Proceeds of any Tax-Exempt Bonds or any other 
amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed 
directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds) in a manner which, if made or omitted, respectively, 
would cause the interest on such Tax-Exempt Bonds to become includable in the gross income, as 
defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, unless and until the City shall have received a written 
opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field of municipal bond law to the effect that failure 
to comply with such covenant will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income tax of 
the interest on any Tax-Exempt Bonds, the City shall comply with each of the specific covenants 
in this Section.   

(b) No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except as permitted by Section 141 of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall, at all times after the Issue Date of 
any Tax-Exempt Bond and prior to the last stated maturity of the Tax-Exempt Bonds 



 

- 21 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(i) exclusively own, operate, and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross 
Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Bonds and not use or permit the use of such Gross Proceeds 
or any property acquired, constructed, or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any 
activity carried on by any person or entity other than a state or local government, unless 
such use is solely as a member of the general public, or 

(ii) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment 
for use of Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Bonds or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with such 
Gross Proceeds other than taxes of general application and interest earned on investments 
acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for their intended purposes. 

(c) No Private Loan.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code and 
the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt 
Bonds to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local government.  For 
purposes of the foregoing covenant, Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person or 
entity if (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to 
such person or entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income tax purposes, (2) 
capacity in or service from such property is committed to such person or entity under a take-or-
pay, output, or similar contract or arrangement, or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of 
ownership, of such Gross Proceeds or such property are otherwise transferred in a transaction 
which is the economic equivalent of a loan.   

(d) Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the earlier 
of the final stated maturity or final payment of such Tax-Exempt Bonds, directly or indirectly 
invest Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Bonds in any Investment (or use such Gross Proceeds 
to replace money so invested), if as a result of such investment the Yield of all Investments 
allocated to such Gross Proceeds whether then held or previously disposed of, exceeds the Yield 
on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.   

(e) Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 149(b) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action 
which would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of 
Section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder.   

(f) Information Report.  The City shall timely file with the Secretary of the Treasury 
the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds on 
such forms and in such place as such Secretary may prescribe.   

(g) Payment of Rebate Amount.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall:   

(i) account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, expenditures and 
investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from all other funds (and 
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all records of such 



 

- 22 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

accounting for at least six years after the final Computation Date.  The City may, however, 
to the extent permitted by law, commingle Gross Proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds with 
other money of the City, provided that the City separately accounts for each receipt and 
expenditure of such Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired therewith,   

(ii) calculate the Rebate Amount with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds not 
less frequently than each Computation Date, in accordance with rules set forth in Section 
148(f) of the Code, Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations, and the rulings thereunder.  The 
City shall maintain a copy of such calculations for at least six years after the final 
Computation Date,   

(iii) as additional consideration for the purchase of the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
by the initial purchaser thereof and the loan of the money represented thereby, and in order 
to induce such purchase by measures designed to ensure the excludability of the interest 
thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, pay 
to the United States the amount described in paragraph (ii) above at the times, in the 
installments, to the place, in the manner and accompanied by such forms or other 
information as is or may be required by Section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, and   

(iv) exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are made in the 
calculations required by paragraph (ii) and, if such error is made, to discover and promptly 
to correct such error within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, including payment to 
the United States of any interest and any penalty required by the Regulations.   

(h) Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not enter into any transaction 
that reduces the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection (h) of this 
Section because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted 
if the transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, not been 
relevant to either party.   

Section 9.04 Disposition of Project.  The City covenants that the property financed or 
refinanced with the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be sold or otherwise disposed in 
a transaction resulting in the receipt by the City of cash or other compensation, unless the City 
obtains an opinion of a nationally-recognized bond counsel substantially to the effect that such 
sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Tax-Exempt Bonds.  
For purposes of this Section, the portion of the property comprising personal property and disposed 
of in the ordinary course of business shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the receipt of 
cash or other compensation.  For purposes of this Section, the City shall not be obligated to comply 
with this covenant if it obtains an opinion of a nationally-recognized bond counsel to the effect 
that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax 
purposes from gross income of the interest.   



 

- 23 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01 Events of Default. 

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an Event of Default: 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the 
Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, 
agreement or obligation of the City, which default materially and adversely affects the 
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to, their prospect or ability to be repaid in 
accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days 
after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the City. 

Section 10.02 Remedies for Default. 

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized 
representative thereof, including but not limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed 
against the City for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this 
Ordinance, by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law, in any 
court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted by law, including the specific performance 
of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be 
unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of such remedies. 

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the 
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding. 

Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive. 

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other 
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in 
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right to 
accelerate the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall not be available as a remedy under this Ordinance. 

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other available remedy. 



 

- 24 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

ARTICLE XI 
DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01 Discharge. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, the Bonds may be defeased, 
discharged or refunded in any manner permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE XII 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01 Annual Reports. 

(a) The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six (6) months after the 
end of each Fiscal year of the City, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
City of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 7.01 of this 
Ordinance, being information of the type described in Exhibit A hereto, including financial 
statements of the City if audited financial statements of the City are then available, and (2) if not 
provided as part such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the 
City, when and if available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in 
accordance with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A, or such other accounting 
principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or 
regulation, and (ii) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such financial statements and the 
audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such 
financial statements is not complete within twelve (12) months after any such Fiscal year end, then 
the City shall file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial 
statements for the applicable Fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such financial statements 
becomes available. 

(b) If the City changes its Fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of 
the date of the new Fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section 
may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific referenced to any 
document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the 
MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

(d) An Authorized Officer is authorized to establish and implement written procedures 
to ensure compliance with the reporting requirements imposed by this Section.   Such procedures 
may be modified and amended by the Authorized Officer from time to time to the extent the 
modification or amendment of such procedures are deemed necessary, useful or appropriate.   



 

- 25 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

Section 12.02 Event Notices. 

(a) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten 
(10) Business Days after the occurrence of an event), of any of the following events with respect 
to the Bonds: 

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) nonpayment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;  

(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, 
or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners, if material; 

(viii) redemption calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) defeasances; 

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Bonds, if material; 

(xi) rating changes; 

(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 

(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving 
the City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 
pursuant to its terms, if material; 

(xiv) appointment of a successor trustee or change in the name of the trustee, 
if material; 

(xv) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 



 

- 26 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

(xvi) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, 
or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties. 

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (xii) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 
or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has 
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the City in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the City, and (b) the City intends the words used in the immediately preceding 
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the 
same meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, 
dated August 20, 2018. 

(b) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 12.01 of this Ordinance 
by the time required by such Section. 

Section 12.03 Identifying Information. 

All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Article shall be provided in 
electronic format and be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 12.04 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. 

(a) The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this 
Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with respect 
to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice of 
any Bond calls and any defeasances that cause the City to be no longer an “obligated person.” 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes to 
provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it 
has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY 



 

- 27 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY 
COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY 
SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 

(c) No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article 
shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit 
the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or 
a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (i) the provisions 
of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in 
the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or individual 
person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines 
that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and beneficial owners 
of the Bonds.  If the City so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended 
financial information or operating data next provided in accordance with Section 12.01 an 
explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change 
in type of financial information or operating data so provided. 

ARTICLE XIII 
AMENDMENTS; ATTORNEY GENERAL MODIFICATION 

Section 13.01 Amendments. 

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the City, and 
shall not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Bond remains outstanding except as 
permitted in this Section.  The City may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from time to 
time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the 
Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein.  
In addition, the City may, with the written consent of the Owners of the Bonds holding a majority 
in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, amend, add to, or rescind any of the 
provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all Owners of outstanding 
Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (i) extend the time or times of payment 
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption 
price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the 
principal of, or interest on the Bonds, (ii) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, 



 

- 28 - 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

or (iii) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be held by Owners for consent 
to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

Section 13.02 Attorney General Modification. 

In order to obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, 
any provision of this Ordinance may be modified, altered or amended after the date of its adoption 
if required by the Attorney General in connection with the Attorney General’s examination as to 
the legality of the Bonds and approval thereof in accordance with the applicable law.  Such 
changes, if any, shall be provided to the City Secretary and the City Secretary shall insert such 
changes into this Ordinance as if approved on the date hereof. 

ARTICLE XIV 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

Section 14.01 Effective Immediately. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the City Charter, this Ordinance shall become effective 
immediately upon its adoption at this meeting pursuant to Section 1201.028, Texas Government 
Code. 

[Signature Page Follows.] 





 

 Exhibit A-1 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION* 

The following information is referred to in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other 
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 

1. The portions of the financial statements of the City appended to the Official 
Statement as APPENDIX B, but for the most recently concluded Fiscal year. 

2. Statistical and financial data set forth in the Official Statement in “APPENDIX A - 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY” (Tables 1-5 and 7-17). 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles 
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 above. 

__________________ 
 
* Subject to any changes prescribed by the Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit B-1 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

SALE PARAMETERS 

In accordance with Section 7.01(a) of the Ordinance, the following conditions with respect 
to the Bonds must be satisfied in order for the Authorized Officer to act on behalf of the City in 
selling and delivering the Bonds to the Purchaser: 

(a) the price to be paid for the Bonds of any series shall not be less than 90% of the 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of such series; 

(b) the Bonds shall not bear interest at a rate greater than the maximum rate allowed 
by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended;  

(c) no Bond shall mature later than twenty-one (21) years after the date of its delivery;  

(d) the principal amount of the Bonds of each series shall produce proceeds in an 
amount sufficient, as determined by the Authorized Officer, to fund the purpose(s) identified in 
Section 3.01 being financed by the issuance of the Bonds of such series and such principal amount 
(when combined with the aggregate principal amount of any other series of Bonds issued pursuant 
to this Ordinance) shall not exceed the maximum amount authorized in Section 3.01 of this 
Ordinance; and  

(e) the Bonds to be issued, prior to delivery, must have been rated by a nationally 
recognized rating agency for municipal securities in one of the four highest rating categories for 
long term obligations. 



 

 Exhibit C-1 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FORM OF THE BONDS 

The form of the Bond, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller 
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar and 
the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be generally as follows, provided, however, 
that the substantially final form of the Bonds shall be set forth in or attached to the Pricing 
Certificate and shall incorporate and reflect the final terms of the Bonds set forth in the Pricing 
Certificate: 

(a) Form of Bonds. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
No. _____ $___________ 

 
United States of America  

State of Texas  
County of Lubbock  

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS  
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND  

[TAXABLE] SERIES 20__ 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 
_____% ___________ _________1 _____________ 

 
The City of Lubbock (the “City”), in the County of Lubbock, State of Texas, for value 

received, hereby promises to pay to 

________________________ 

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 

_________________ DOLLARS 

unless this Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal 
hereof shall have been paid or provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from the 
later of ___________1 specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest 
has been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been paid or provided 
for, at the per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360 day year of 
twelve 30 day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each 
year, commencing __________2.  All capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the 
meaning assigned to them in the Ordinance (defined below). 

                                                 
1 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 
2 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-2 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the 
corporate trust office in Dallas, Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”) of 
____________3, the initial Paying Agent/Registrar or, with respect to a successor Paying 
Agent/Registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of such successor.  Interest on this 
Bond is payable by check dated as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to the registered owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar or by such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all 
risk and expenses of such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least 
$1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank 
account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment 
of interest on this Bond, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is 
registered at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last Business Day of 
the month next preceding such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of 
nonpayment of interest on a scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date 
for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the 
City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest 
(the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent 
at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class United States mail, 
postage prepaid, to the address of each owner of a Bond appearing in the registration books of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date 
of mailing of such notice. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by 
law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is 
not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions are required or 
authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on 
the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment 
on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.   

This Bond is one of a series of fully registered bonds specified in the title hereof issued in 
the aggregate principal amount of $____________4 (herein referred to as the “Bonds”), issued 
pursuant to a certain ordinance of the City (the “Ordinance”) for the purposes of providing funds 
with which to acquire, construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to 
sidewalks, utility line relocation and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage 
facilities and the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor, and to pay the costs of issuing the 
Bonds. 

[The City has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 
20__, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on ________, 20__, or 

                                                 
3 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 
4 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-3 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for 
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all of the Bonds are 
to be redeemed, the City shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be 
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary method that 
results in a random selection the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity and in such 
principal amounts, for redemption] [Bonds maturing on February 15 in each of the years ______ 
through ____, inclusive (the “Term Bonds”), are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
prior to their scheduled maturity, and will be redeemed by the City, in part at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued to the redemption 
date, on the dates and in the principal amounts shown in the following schedule: 

Term Bonds Maturing February 15, 20____ 

Redemption Date Principal Amount 

February 15, 20___  
February 15, 20___  
February 15, 20___ (maturity)  

 
The Paying Agent/Registrar will select by lot or by any other customary method that results 

in a random selection the specific Term Bonds (or with respect to Term Bonds having a 
denomination in excess of $5,000, each $5,000 portion thereof) to be redeemed by mandatory 
redemption.  The principal amount of Term Bonds required to be redeemed on any redemption 
date pursuant to the foregoing mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions hereof shall be 
reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any Bonds which, at least forty-five 
(45) days prior to the mandatory sinking fund redemption date (i) shall have been acquired by the 
City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Bonds plus accrued interest to the date 
of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, or (ii) shall have 
been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions hereof and not previously credited 
to a mandatory sinking fund redemption.5 

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner 
of each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  In the Ordinance, the City reserves the 
right in the case of an optional redemption to give notice of its election or direction to redeem 
Bonds conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice may state (i) that the 
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount 
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such 
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date or (ii) that the City 
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled redemption date if the 
City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded.  
The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice 

                                                 
5 Insert mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, if any, and revise as necessary to conform to the Pricing 
Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-4 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

of redemption to the affected owners.  Any Bonds subject to conditional redemption where 
redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission shall not constitute an 
event of default.  Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make 
moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date 
shall not constitute an event of default.]6 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Bond 
is transferable upon surrender of this Bond for transfer at the designated office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same stated maturity, 
of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same aggregate principal 
amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or 
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within 
forty five (45) calendar days of the transfer or exchange date; provided, however, such limitation 
shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of 
a Bond. 

The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose 
name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein 
provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the 
Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable) and for all other purposes, whether or not this 
Bond be overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected by notice 
to the contrary. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Bond and the series 
of which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and 
have happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem 
taxes upon all taxable property in the City have been levied for and pledged to the payment of the 
debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total 
indebtedness of the City, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory 
limitation. 

                                                 
6 Insert mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, if any, and conform as necessary to the Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-5 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the City has been duly impressed or placed 
in facsimile on this Bond. 

_________________________________________
Mayor, City of Lubbock, Texas 

__________________________________ 
City Secretary, 
City of Lubbock, Texas 

[SEAL] 

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate. 

The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive 
Bonds if such certificate on the Initial Bond is fully executed. 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §  
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO. ______ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §  

 
I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office an opinion of the Attorney 

General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required by 
law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State 
of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City of Lubbock, Texas, and that this 
Bond has this day been registered by me. 

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, __________________. 

  
   
[SEAL] Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State 

of Texas 
 

(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of Paying 
Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 
appears thereon. 

 



 

 Exhibit C-6 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of Bonds 
was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred to in the within-
mentioned Ordinance. 

 [BANK] 
  _____________________________________  
 as Paying Agent/Registrar 
  
  
Dated:    By:    
 Authorized Signatory 

 

 
(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):_______________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
(Social Security or other identifying number:  _________________) the within Bond and all rights 
hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ____________________attorney to 
transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power of substitution 
in the premises. 

Dated:    NOTICE:  The signature on this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Bond in every particular and must 
be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Signature Guaranteed By: 

  
Authorized Signatory 

 
(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of this 

Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST 
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As shown 
below”; and 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above” shall be deleted and the following will be inserted:  “on February 15 in 



 

 Exhibit C-7 
 4153-1523-4134.1 
 

each of the years, in the principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates 
in accordance with the following schedule: 

Years Principal Installments Interest Rate 
 

(Information to be inserted from the Pricing Certificate  
pursuant to Section 3.02 of this Ordinance) 

 
 


	Agenda
	1.03.__Executive Session Board Appts.
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_2.25.2025
	       ATT_3.5.2025 S State of the City
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 11
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 11
	5.01.1.__Contract 18627 with CRS Business Park, LLC
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18627
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP 92903 - Budget Detail
	5.02.__Budget Amendment 15
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 15
	5.03.__Montford Dam 
	       ATT_Montford Dam reso
	       ATT_Montford Dam
	5.04.__Excess Liability
	       ATT_Excess Liability reso
	       ATT_Excess Liability
	5.05.__Excess Workmens' Comp
	       ATT_Excess Workers' Comp Resolution
	       ATT_Excess Workers' Comp Quote
	5.06.__Work Comp TPA Services
	       ATT_Workers' Comp TPA Resolution
	5.07.__Block 102, Overton - Alley Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance Alley Closure Overton,Blk102
	       ATT_20203-08-09_Alley Closure Description and Exhibit
	Alley Closure Metes and Bounds
	40975.23 Alley Closure Exhibit-8.5X11 L
	8.5X11 L


	       ATT_GIS Map Alley Closure Overton,Blk102
	5.08.__West Business Park - Easement Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - West Business Park
	       ATT_Exhibit A - West. Bus. Pk. mandb
	       ATT_West. Bus. Pk. GIS map
	5.09.__Overton Block 102, Lot 19 - Easement Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance Easement Closure Overton,Lot 19, Blk102
	       ATT_Easement Closure Application-22197
	       ATT_GIS Map Easement Closure Overton,Blk102, Lot 19
	5.10.__Huntington - 4C-4F, Easement Closure
	       ATT_Huntington Business Park, Tr. 4C- 4F - Ordinance
	       ATT_Huntington Bus. Pk. Tr. 4C-4F, mandb
	       ATT_Huntington Business Park, Tr. 4C- 4F - GIS map
	5.11.__82nd St. and Cedar Ave - ROW Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - Section 6, Block E, Closure
	       ATT_13308_301_E_82ND_STREET_-_SURPLUS_ROW_EXHIBIT (rs)
	       ATT_13308_111_E_82ND_STREET_-_SURPLUS_ROW_EXHIBIT (rs)
	       ATT_GIS map - EWJ 301 E 82ndSt
	       ATT_GIS Map 82nd St.  Antioch Baptist Church
	5.12.__Right of Way Deed: Upland 19th to 34th - Parcel 37
	       ATT_Parcel 37 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 37 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 37 - GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP  92816 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92816 - Project Detail
	5.13.__82nd St. Parcel 22 - Street Use and Right-of-Way Deed
	       ATT_P22 - Resolution
	       ATT_P22_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_P22 - GIS map
	       ATT_CIP 92825) - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP92825 - Project Detail
	5.14.__114th St. Parcel 52 - Street Use and Right-of-Way Deed
	       ATT_Resolution_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305
	       ATT_Deed_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305
	       ATT_GIS map_Parcel 52_114_FS_20250305
	       ATT_CIP 92820 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92820 - Project Detail
	5.15.__Sale of City Owned Property - Avenue C and 3rd St.
	       ATT_Resolution -  Sales Contract and Deed, M_M Homes
	       ATT_Sales Contract and Deed, M_M Homes
	       ATT_GIS Map Parkview, MandM Homes
	5.16.__Texland - Allen Industrial Park - Street Use License
	       ATT_Resolution - Texland, Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park
	       ATT_Street Use License - Texland, Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park
	       ATT_GIS map Municipal Dr. Allen Ind. Park
	5.17.__Street and Alley Use License - Texland, 13 locations Loop 289 & I-27
	       ATT_Resolution - Texland Street and Alley Use License
	       ATT_Street and Alley Use License - TEXLAND
	5.18.__MCC-100 Time only Amendment 1 to Contract 18087
	       ATT_Resolution - Freese and Nichols, Inc. Amendment 1
	       ATT_Amendment 1 Contract
	       ATT_Original Contract
	       ATT_Council Map
	       ATT_CIP 02843 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92843 - Project Detail
	5.19.__Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 17130
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment No. 3
	       ATT_Amendment No. 2
	       ATT_Amendment No. 1
	       ATT_Contract 17130
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP 92813 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92813 - Project Detail
	5.20.__Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 17625
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1
	       ATT_Contract 17625
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP 92824 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92824 - Project Detail
	5.21.__Annex - Guava
	       ATT_Ordinance - East Bluefield and North Guava
	       ATT_Municipal Services Plan - East Bluefield and North Guava
	       ATT_Annexation Map - East Bluefield and North Guava
	       ATT_Petition - East Bluefield and North Guava
	5.22.__Sewer line inspection camera equipment
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92701 - Project Detail
	5.23.__Lift Station 48 Flygt Pumps
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_CIP 92803 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92803 - Project Detail
	       ATT_Sole Source Memo
	       ATT_Sole Source Letter
	5.24.__DSHS Amendment No. 2, Contract No. HHS001331300015 Immunization 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	5.25.__Professional Services Agreement with TTUHSC for the Public Health Department Intermediary Care Clinic
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Services Agreement
	5.26.__CDBG other LCHC
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.27.__2025 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) to LSSS
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.28.__CDBG other CAC
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.29.__Architectural/Engineering Services at LPSIA - RS&H, Inc. and Parkhill
	       ATT_Resolution - RSandH, Inc. Contract 18761
	       ATT_Contract 18761 - RSandH, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution Parkhill Contract 18543
	       ATT_Contract 18543 - Parkhill
	5.30.__Second Floor Renovations at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport
	       ATT_Resolution - FMG Construction Group, LLC
	       ATT_Contract FMG Construction Group, LLC
	       ATT_CIP 92859 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92859 - Project Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary - ITB 25-18651-AE
	5.31.__Hillcrest Manor 4% HTC
	       ATT_Resolution
	5.32.__Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Plan Document
	       ATT_Resolution - Plan Document for Health Reimbursement Arrangement
	       ATT_Plan Document for Health Reimbursement Arrangement
	5.33.__A&E new pump station and irrigation system at the cemetery
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.34.__Mowing Contract 18669 - City Facilities
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	5.35.__Mowing Contract 18399 - City Streets, Median, Turnarounds and Right of Ways
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	5.36.__Contract - Angel Armor 
	       ATT_Resolution- Angel Armor
	       ATT_Purchase Order- Angel Armor
	5.37.__Contract-GT Distributors
	       ATT_Resolution - GT Distributors Inc. 
	       ATT_Purchase Order- GT Distributors Inc.
	5.38.__Contract- SSD International Inc. 
	       ATT_Resolution-SSD International
	       ATT_Purchase Order- SSD International
	5.39.__Amendment #2 for MB3, LLC, ARPA Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution - Amendment _2
	       ATT_Amendment _2 - MB3,LLC
	       ATT_Original Agreement - MB3, LLC
	       ATT_Resolution and Amendment No.1
	6.01.__ZC 1112-G
	       ATT_Ordinance 1112-G
	       ATT_Staff Report 1112-G
	       ATT_Documentation 1112-G
	1112-G photos.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	6.02.__2025 General Obligation Bonds Parameters Ordinance
	       ATT_Ordinance

